
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 8 Medi 2021 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
CABINET 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cabinet o bell trwy Timau Microsoft ar Dydd Mawrth, 14 Medi 2021 am 14:30. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    
 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    

 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 16 
 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 20/07/2021 

 
4.  Model Cyflenwi Gwasanaethau yn y Dyfodol  

 
17 - 26 

5.  Diweddariad Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2022-23 i 2025-26  
 

27 - 36 

6.  Darpariaeth Gwasanaeth Camddefnyddio Sylweddau ym Mwrdeistref Sirol 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr  
 

37 - 44 

7.  Gweithredu Rhaglen Trawsnewid Trefi (TT) 2021-2022  
 

45 - 52 

8.  Newyddiad Contract Menter Ymchwil Busnesau Bach  
 

53 - 58 

9.  Moderneiddio Ysgolion Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol a Thir Yn Plas Morlais  
 

59 - 66 

10.  Moderneiddio Ysgolion - Ysgol Eginblanhigion Canolig Cymraeg Porthcawl  
 

67 - 70 

11.  Atal Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract y Cyngor a Dyfarnu Contract ar gyfer 
Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth Rhieni  
 

71 - 76 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


12.  Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg  
 

77 - 128 

13.  Penodi Llywodraethwyr Awdurdod Lleol  
 

129 - 132 

14.  Strategaeth Gaffael  
 

133 - 166 

15.  Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract Diwygiedig  
 

167 - 200 

16.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â pharagraff 2.4 (e) o'r Rheolau 
Trefn y Cabinet yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

Nodyn: Sylwch: Yn sgil yr angen i gadw pellter cymdeithasol, ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei 
gynnal yn ei leoliad arferol. Yn hytrach, bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion 
yn mynychu o bell. Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio i’w ddarlledu ar wefan y Cyngor cyn gynted 
ag sy'n ymarferol ar ôl y cyfarfod. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â 
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148. 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
HJ David 
CE Smith 

HM Williams 
D Patel 

NA Burnett 
SE Baldwin 



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD O BELL TRWY TIMAU MICROSOFT 
DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021, AM 14:30 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd HJ David – Cadeirydd  

 
CE Smith HM Williams D Patel NA Burnett 
SE Baldwin    

 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Gill Lewis Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog 151 Dros Dro 
Kelly Watson Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio 
Andrew Rees Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Jackie Davies Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol Oedolion 
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau 
Pete Tyson Rheolwr Grŵp - Contractau Comisiynu a Monitro Contractau 
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu 
Joseph Cassinelli Prif Swyddog Cynllunio – Trafnidiaeth Strategol 
Wayne Palmer Rheolwr  Prosiect     
Paul Ryan Uwch Syrfëwr Datblygu  

 
686. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 

 
Datganodd y Cynghorydd N Burnett fuddiant personol yn eitem 10 ar yr agenda - Atal y 
Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract ar gyfer Cludiant o'r Cartref i'r Ysgol Bysiau Mini a 
Thacsis gan fod ganddi gyfrifoldebau cyd-rianta dros blentyn ag anghenion cymhleth 
sy'n mynd drwy'r broses bontio. 
 

687. CADARNHAU COFNODION 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: bod cofnodion y cyfarfod o’r Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 

18/05/21 a 22/06/21 yn cael eu cadarnhau fel cofnod gwir 
a chywir. 

 
688. MONITRO CYLLIDEB 2021-22 RHAGOLWG REFENIW CHWARTER 1 

 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid ar y wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am sefyllfa ariannol refeniw'r Cyngor ar 30 Mehefin 2021.  Dywedodd wrth 
y Cabinet fod y Cyngor, yn ei gyfarfod ar 24 Chwefror 2021, wedi cymeradwyo cyllideb 
refeniw net o £298.956m ar gyfer 2021-22 a chrynhoi'r gyllideb refeniw net a'r alldro 
rhagamcanol ar gyfer 2021-22, a ddangosodd droswariant net o £904,000 ar 
gyfarwyddiaethau ac amcanestyniad ‘break even’ ar gyllidebau'r cyngor cyfan.   
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi sefydlu cronfa galedi Covid-19, gyda'r Cyngor wedi llwyddo i hawlio £15m 
mewn gwariant a thros £5.5m mewn hawliadau incwm a gollwyd yn 2020-21.  
Dywedodd y bydd y Cyngor yn parhau i    o'r gronfa Caledi yn erbyn y meini prawf a 
bydd cyfarwyddiaethau cymwys yn parhau i gasglu costau a ysgwyddir o ganlyniad i 
effaith barhaus pandemig Covid-19.  Darperir diweddariadau i'r Cabinet yn yr 
adroddiadau monitro cyllideb refeniw chwarterol.   
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

Dywedodd wrth y Cabinet fod Cronfa Adfer Covid-19 o £1m wedi'i sefydlu gyda'r nod o 
hybu adferiad nad oedd Llywodraeth Cymru yn debygol o dalu amdano.  Tynnodd sylw 
at yr honiadau am wariant Covid-19 a wnaed.  Roedd cais pellach am golli incwm yn 
cael ei wneud i Lywodraeth Cymru am y chwarter cyntaf ar 23 Gorffennaf 2021.  
Dywedodd fod y Cyngor, yn ogystal â cholli incwm, hefyd yn debygol o weld gostyngiad 
yn incwm y Dreth Gyngor.  Gallai gostyngiad o 1% yn y gyfradd gasglu gyfateb i bwysau 
ychwanegol i'r Cyngor o £1m.   
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid ar sefyllfa'r 
gostyngiadau cyllidebol a oedd heb eu talu yn y flwyddyn flaenorol, sef bod diffyg o 
£310,000 ar gyfer 2012-22 a thynnodd sylw at y cynigion nad ydynt yn debygol o gael eu 
cyflawni o hyd.  Tynnodd sylw at sefyllfa gostyngiadau yn y gyllideb yn 2021-22, a 
ddangosodd ddiffyg rhagamcanol o £65,000, a'r mwyaf arwyddocaol oedd ail-leoli'r 
Ganolfan Ailgylchu yn y Gymuned o Tythegston i'r Pîl.   
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau at yr hawliadau a oedd ar gadw ac roedd 
yn ddiolchgar am y cyllid a oedd ar gael i gefnogi digartrefedd ond nododd y gwaith o 
dapro cyllid.  Holodd pa hawliadau sydd ar stop ac a fyddai'n effeithio ar ddigartrefedd.  
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid wrth y Cabinet fod y 
Cyngor, yn ystod y cyfnod clo, wedi sicrhau bod yr holl bobl ddigartref yn derbyn llety, 
ond mae gan y Cyngor nifer cynyddol o bobl mewn llety dros dro, gyda 170 i 200 o bobl 
yr wythnos yn cyflwyno eu hunain yn ddigartref.  Bydd tapro cyllid yn achosi pwysau ar 
gyllideb y Cyngor, lle nad yw costau'n cael eu hariannu.  Dywedodd yr Arweinydd wrth y 
Cabinet fod y Cyngor yn gweithio gyda'i bartneriaid ar atebion tai arloesol ac roedd 
angen cynyddu'r cyflymder, oherwydd y cynnydd mewn digartrefedd. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar at y 
tanwariant niferus a geir yn yr adroddiad, sy'n adlewyrchu diffyg capasiti ac sy'n effaith 
negyddol ar staff.  Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau 
Dynol a Rheoleiddiol wrth y Cabinet nad oedd y tanwariant yn cael ei briodoli i arbedion, 
ond lle mae swyddi gwag mewn rolau na ellir eu torri.  Mae rheolwyr yn gwneud eu 
gorau glas ac yn edrych ar arloesedd, gan gynnwys cyfleoedd ar gyfer prentisiaethau a 
chynllun graddedigion.     
 
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod y Cyngor wedi bod yn ddibynnol ar y cyllid a gafodd 
gan gronfa galedi Llywodraeth Cymru a'i fod yn dal i brofi effaith y pandemig ynghyd â 
mesurau llymder.  Cwestiynodd y rheswm dros lefel y tanwariant ar y gyllideb dysgu 
oedolion yn y gymuned.  Soniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i 
Deuluoedd am bwysigrwydd y gwasanaeth dysgu oedolion yn y gymuned, a brofodd 
anawsterau wrth recriwtio i lenwi swyddi gwag.  Fodd bynnag, oherwydd y pandemig, bu 
lefelau uwch o gyllid grant a oedd wedi galluogi i gyrsiau gael eu darparu ar-lein. 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd y bydd y Cyngor yn parhau i gyflwyno sylwadau i Lywodraeth 
Cymru, sydd yn ei thro yn cael ei chyllid gan Lywodraeth y DU oherwydd y pwysau 
ariannol a wynebir gan y Cyngor ac i sicrhau bod gwasanaethau'n cael eu hariannu'n 
llawn. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:     Bod y Cabinet wedi nodi’r sefyllfa refeniw a ragwelwyd ar 

gyfer 2020-21;     
 

689. ALLDRO RHAGLENNI CYFALAF 2020-21 AC ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARU 
CHWARTER 1 2021-22 
 
Cyflwynwyd adroddiad gan y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid i 
gydymffurfio â gofyniad Cod Darbodus y Sefydliad Siartredig Cyllid Cyhoeddus a 
Chyfrifyddiaeth (CIPFA) ar gyfer Cyllid Cyfalaf mewn Awdurdodau Lleol; rhoddodd y 

Page 4



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am yr alldro cyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21; rhoddodd y wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am y sefyllfa gyfalaf ar gyfer 2021-22 ar 30 Mehefin 2021; gofynnodd am 
gytundeb gan y Cabinet i gyflwyno adroddiad i'r Cyngor i'w gymeradwyo rhaglen gyfalaf 
ddiwygiedig ar gyfer 2021-22 i 2030-31 ac i nodi'r Dangosyddion Darbodus a 
Dangosyddion Eraill a ragwelir ar gyfer 20221-22. 
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Cyngor ar 26 
Chwefror 2020 wedi cymeradwyo rhaglen gyfalaf, a oedd wedi'i diwygio a'i 
chymeradwyo ymhellach gan y Cyngor yn ystod y flwyddyn.  Y rhaglen ddiweddaraf ar 
gyfer 2020-21 o £35.440m a gymeradwywyd gan y Cyngor ym mis Chwefror 2021 fel 
rhan o'r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig, y mae £12.419m ohono'n cael ei dalu o 
adnoddau'r Cyngor, gan gynnwys derbyniadau cyfalaf, cyfraniadau refeniw o gronfeydd 
wrth gefn a benthyca a glustnodwyd, gyda'r £23.021m sy'n weddill yn dod o adnoddau 
allanol.  Hysbysodd y Cabinet am welliannau i'r rhaglen gyfalaf, gyda 
chymeradwyaethau newydd o £3.060m o ganlyniad i gynlluniau grant newydd gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru, sy'n cynnwys £2.329m o Grant Cynhaliaeth Ysgolion, £0.149m ar 
gyfer Yr Hwb Dwyrain yn Ysgol Gyfun Brynteg, grant Adfer Gwyrdd gwerth £0.174m a 
grant Economi Gylchol gwerth £0.148m a £0.318m o gyllid a ddygwyd yn ôl o 2021-22 i 
adlewyrchu proffiliau gwariant wedi'u diweddaru, gan ddod â'r gyllideb ddiwygiedig i 
£38.818m.    
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid ar y wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am raglen gyfalaf y Cyngor ar gyfer 2021-22 ers i'r gyllideb gael ei 
chymeradwyo ddiwethaf gan y Cyngor a oedd yn ymgorffori unrhyw gynlluniau newydd a 
chymeradwyaethau grant.  Ar hyn o bryd, cyfanswm y rhaglen ddiwygiedig ar gyfer 
2021-22 oedd £87.347m, ac mae £53.067m ohono'n cael ei dalu o adnoddau'r Cyngor, 
gan gynnwys derbyniadau cyfalaf, cyfraniadau refeniw o gronfeydd wrth gefn a benthyca 
a glustnodwyd, gyda'r £34.280m sy'n weddill yn dod o adnoddau allanol, gan gynnwys y 
Grant Cyfalaf Cyffredinol. Tynnodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a 
Newid sylw at y sefyllfa gan bob Cyfarwyddiaeth.  Crynhodd y tybiaethau ariannu 
presennol ar gyfer y rhaglen gyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21 a bod adnoddau cyfalaf yn cael eu 
rheoli i sicrhau bod y budd ariannol mwyaf posibl i'r Cyngor yn cael ei gyflawni, a allai 
gynnwys adlinio cyllid i wneud y mwyaf o grantiau'r llywodraeth.   
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid ar nifer o ddiwygiadau 
a wnaed i'r rhaglen gyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21 fel a ganlyn: 

 Band B Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 

 Depo Bryncethin 

 Rhwydwaith Gwres Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 

 Neuadd Evergreen 

 Neuadd Tref Maesteg 

 Grant Galluogi  

 Grant Adnewyddu Priffyrdd Cyhoeddus Llywodraeth Leol 

 Fflyd 

 Cronfa Teithio Llesol 

 Cronfa Ffyrdd Cydnerth Llywodraeth Cymru a Grantiau Cronfa Trawsnewid 
Cerbydau Allyriadau Isel Ultra  

 Paneli Solar Maes yr Haul 

 Canopi Allanol Ysgol Gyfun Cynffig 

 Cynllun Adfywio Glannau Porthcawl 
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid hefyd ar fonitro 
dangosyddion Darbodus a dangosyddion eraill ar gyfer 2021-22 i 2023-24 ynghyd â rhai 
dangosyddion lleol.  Bwriad y Strategaeth Gyfalaf yw rhoi trosolwg o sut mae gwariant 
cyfalaf, cyllid cyfalaf a gweithgarwch rheoli trysorlys yn cyfrannu at ddarparu 

Page 5



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

gwasanaethau ynghyd â throsolwg o sut y caiff risg gysylltiedig ei rheoli a'r goblygiadau 
ar gyfer cynaliadwyedd yn y dyfodol.  Cafodd nifer o ddangosyddion darbodus eu 
cynnwys, a'u cymeradwyo gan y Cyngor.  Yn unol â gofynion y Cod Darbodus, mae'n 
ofynnol i'r Prif Swyddog Cyllid sefydlu gweithdrefnau i fonitro perfformiad yn erbyn pob 
dangosydd darbodus blaengar a'r gofyniad a bennir.  Manylodd ar y dangosyddion 
gwirioneddol ar gyfer 2020-21, y dangosyddion amcangyfrifedig ar gyfer 2021-22 a nodir 
yn Strategaeth Gyfalaf y Cyngor a'r dangosyddion rhagamcanol ar gyfer 201-22 yn 
seiliedig ar y Rhaglen Gyfalaf ddiwygiedig, sy'n dangos bod y Cyngor yn gweithredu yn 
unol â'r terfynau cymeradwy.  
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Strategaeth 
Gyfalaf hefyd yn gofyn am fonitro buddsoddiadau rheoli nad ydynt yn ymwneud â'r 
trysorlys a rhwymedigaethau hirdymor eraill.  Dywedodd fod gan y Cyngor bortffolio 
buddsoddi sy'n bodoli eisoes sydd 100% wedi'i leoli yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol ac yn bennaf y 
sectorau swyddfa a diwydiannol.  Mae ffrydiau incwm wedi'u gwasgaru rhwng y 
buddsoddiadau swyddfa sengl ac aml-osod ar Barc Gwyddoniaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, 
yr ystadau diwydiannol aml-osod a'r buddsoddiadau rhent tir rhydd-ddaliad.  Cyfanswm 
gwerth Eiddo Buddsoddi oedd £5.035m ar 31 Mawrth 2021.  Dywedodd wrth y Cyngor 
fod ganddo nifer o Rwymedigaethau Hirdymor Eraill wedi'u cynnwys yn y Strategaeth 
Gyfalaf.  
 
Dywedodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd wrth gymeradwyo'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf ddiwygiedig ei bod 
yn cynrychioli gwariant o £190m ar draws y Fwrdeistref Sirol dros gyfnod o 10 mlynedd 
i'w wneud yn lle da i fyw, gweithio ac ymweld ag ef.  Bydd y rhaglen gyfalaf hefyd yn 
helpu i gyflawni amcanion datgarboneiddio'r Cyngor. 
 
Gwnaeth yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau sylwadau ar bwysigrwydd y rhaglen teithio 
llesol ar gyfer tramwyo ar draws y Fwrdeistref Sirol gan nad oes gan bawb fynediad i'w 
cludiant eu hunain.   
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at y Grant Galluogi a gofynnodd sut y byddai'n effeithio'n 
gadarnhaol ar bobl sy'n agored i niwed.  Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro - Cyllid, 
Perfformiad a Newid wrth y Cabinet y bydd y Grant Galluogi yn caniatáu i addasiadau ar 
raddfa fach ddigwydd er mwyn galluogi pobl i aros yn eu cartrefi eu hunain a byw'n 
annibynnol, ar ôl iddynt gael eu rhyddhau o'r ysbyty.   
 
Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd hefyd am eglurhad ar y gwariant ar y Gronfa Ffyrdd Gwydn a’r 
rhaglen Allyriadau Isel Iawn.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau wrth 
y Cabinet y bydd tua £0.5m yn cael ei ddefnyddio i dargedu ffyrdd sy'n agored i lifogydd 
i'w gwneud yn fwy cadarn i effaith newid hinsawdd.   
 
Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd ymhellach am eglurhad ar ariannu grant Cynhaliaeth Cyfalaf 
Ysgolion sy’n werth £2.424m.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau mai 
nod y cyllid yw sicrhau bod y gwerth gorau'n cael ei gyflawni drwy dendro am yr un 
cynllun ar draws ysgolion er mwyn gwneud y defnydd gorau o arian a sicrhau bod ystâd 
yr ysgol yn addas i'r diben.                          
 
PENDERFYNWYD:           Bod y Cabinet wedi:  
 

  wedi nodi'r alldro cyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21 (Atodiad A i'r 
adroddiad) 

  nodi diweddariad Rhaglen Gyfalaf 2021-22 Chwarter 1 y Cyngor i 
30 Mehefin 2021 (Atodiad B i'r adroddiad)  

  cytuno y dylid cyflwyno'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf ddiwygiedig (Atodiad C) 
i'r Cyngor i'w gymeradwyo 

Page 6



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

 nodi'r Dangosyddion Darbodus ac Eraill rhagamcanol ar gyfer 
2021-22 (Atodiad D) 

 
690. ADOLYGIAD O DARGEDAU'R CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL AR GYFER 2021-22 YN 

DILYN EFFAITH COVID-19 
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad y Prif 
Weithredwr a oedd yn gofyn i'r Cabinet gymeradwyo'r newidiadau arfaethedig i 
dargedau'r Cynllun Corfforaethol ar gyfer 2021-22 cyn eu cyflwyno i'r Cyngor i'w 
cymeradwyo.  
 
Adroddodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod y Cynllun 
Corfforaethol wedi'i adnewyddu ar gyfer 2021-22 ym mis Chwefror 2021, wedi'i 
gymeradwyo gan y Cabinet ac yna’r Cyngor yn unol â'r gofyniad statudol arferol i 
adolygu'r Cynllun Corfforaethol yn flynyddol.  Fel rhan o'r broses gymeradwyo ar gyfer y 
Cynllun Corfforaethol newydd, cydnabuwyd bod COVID-19 wedi cael effaith ar y cylch 
cynllunio, gan ei gwneud y gwaith o osod targedau ar gyfer 2021-22 yn fwy heriol.  
Cytunodd y Cyngor fod angen dull hyblyg o bennu targedau cynlluniau corfforaethol er 
mwyn sicrhau bod cynllunio busnes yn gadarn ac yn effeithiol.   
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid wrth y Cabinet fod 
pob cyfarwyddiaeth, fel rhan o gynllunio adfer COVID-19, wedi cael cyfle i ystyried 
targedau ar gyfer 2021-22, yn seiliedig ar ddata diwedd blwyddyn a ddilyswyd.  
Dywedodd fod newidiadau arfaethedig i dargedau wedi'u hystyried yng nghyfarfod y 
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ar 5 Gorffennaf 2021 er mwyn sicrhau her a 
thryloywder priodol.  Nododd y newidiadau targed arfaethedig, a fyddai'n cael eu 
cyhoeddi fel atodiad i'r Cynllun Corfforaethol presennol.  Fel rhan o adolygiad ehangach 
o berfformiad a llywodraethu oherwydd Deddf Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru) 
2021, cynigiwyd bod cynllunio corfforaethol yn mabwysiadu'r dull hwn o osod targedau 
mewn cylchoedd cynllunio yn y dyfodol, er mwyn sicrhau bod y cynllun corfforaethol 
cyhoeddedig yn parhau i fod yn gyfredol â'r data diwedd blwyddyn diweddaraf ac yn 
osgoi cyhoeddi'r Cynllun Corfforaethol heb dargedau oherwydd diffyg data. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Les a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol i gymeradwyo'r dull ar 
gyfer targedau diwygiedig ar gyfer y Cynllun Corfforaethol at y perfformiad gwirioneddol 
ar gyfer canran y bobl sy'n cyflwyno eu hunain yn ddigartref neu a allai fod yn ddigartref, 
sef 50.4% yn hytrach na'r targed o 10%, yn cael ei briodoli i ehangu'r ddyletswydd 
oherwydd y pandemig a'r newid yn y categoreiddio y mae dyletswydd ar y Cyngor iddo.  
Fodd bynnag, rhoddodd yr Aelod Cabinet sicrwydd i'r Aelodau fod y pwysau'n cael ei 
drin. 
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Les a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol, er gwaethaf y 
pandemig, fod y Cyngor wedi llwyddo i ddod â 2 annedd yn ôl i ddefnydd a bod y Cyngor 
wedi ymrwymo i sicrhau bod rhagor o eiddo'n cael ei ddefnyddio eto.  Diolchodd yr 
Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau i'r tîm eiddo gwag wrth ddod ag eiddo yn ôl i ddefnydd.  
Dywedodd fod llawer o resymau dros eiddo gwag yng nghanol trefi ac nad oeddent yn 
eiddo i'r Cyngor.  Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau nad oedd y 
rhan fwyaf o eiddo yng nghanol trefi yn eiddo i'r Cyngor a bod manwerthu nad yw'n fwyd 
wedi dioddef yng nghanol trefi yn ystod y pandemig, ond byddai'r Cyngor gyda Phrif 
Gynllun Canol Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn edrych ar gyfleoedd cyflogaeth a byw yng 
nghanol y dref gyda'i bartneriaid, gyda chyfleoedd ar gyfer gofod manwerthu ar y lloriau 
gwaelod a phreswyl ar y lloriau uchaf.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
Cymunedau wrth y Cabinet fod cynllun tebyg yn y broses o gael ei gyflwyno yng 
Nghanol Tref Maesteg.   
 

Page 7



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau at nifer y Trosglwyddiadau Asedau 
Cymunedol nad oedd yn cyrraedd ei darged o 15 trosglwyddiad a gofynnodd a oedd 
capasiti o fewn y tîm wedi'i effeithio yn ystod y pandemig.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol Cymunedau wrth y Cabinet fod y targed o 15 trosglwyddiad wedi'i osod 
cyn y pandemig a diolchodd i'r Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol a'r tîm am 
ddarparu 13 o Drosglwyddiadau Asedau Cymunedol yn ystod y flwyddyn.  Dywedodd 
fod pob trosglwyddiad yn destun llawer iawn o ddiwydrwydd dyladwy a chan fod y targed 
wedi'i fethu o fwy na 10%, nid yw'n adlewyrchu ar berfformiad y tîm.  Byddai'r tîm yn cael 
ei gryfhau drwy recriwtio iddo a gobeithiai y byddai 10 trosglwyddiad arall yn cael eu 
cwblhau.     
 
Cwestiynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau y rheswm dros y gostyngiadau 
canrannol yn y gyllideb a gyflawnwyd, sef 85.8%, gan fethu ei tharged o 89.42%.  
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Dros Dro – Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid wrth y Cabinet fod 
swyddogion wedi gweithio'n galed i leihau'r gyllideb a sicrhaodd y Cabinet fod arbedion 
yn cael eu gweithio'n barhaus. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar at yr 
amcanion llesiant sy'n cael eu harwain gan y galw a thalodd deyrnged i ymdrechion staff 
yn y Timau Cymorth Cynnar a'r Timau Ymyriadau am eu hymdrechion rhagorol yn ystod 
y pandemig.   
 
PENDERFYNWYD:     (1) Bod y Cabinet wedi cymerawdyo targedau diwygiedig y 

Cynllun Corfforaethol ar gyfer 2021-2022 ac mae'n ei 
argymell i'r Cyngor i'w gymeradwyo ar 21 Gorffennaf 2021.  

 
(2) Bod y Cabinet hefyd wedi cymeradwyo’r cynnig i 
gyflwyno proses hyblyg i adolygu'r broses o bennu 
targedau a lywir gan ddata diwedd blwyddyn. Yna bydd 
unrhyw dargedau diwygiedig yn cael eu cyhoeddi fel 
atodiad i'r Cynllun Corfforaethol.    

   
691. AILGOMISIYNU GOFAL A CHYMORTH A REOLEIDDIR YN Y CARTREF 

 
Cyflwynodd Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles ar ddiweddariad am y gwaith ail-
gomisiynu sy'n cael ei wneud ar gyfer gwasanaethau Gofal Cartref Annibynnol (IDC) a 
Seibiannau Byr.   
 
Adroddodd fod y Cabinet, yn ei gyfarfod ym mis Tachwedd 2014, wedi cymeradwyo'r 
cynllun gweithredu ailfodelu gofal cartref, a oedd yn nodi bwriadau'r Cyngor i ateb y galw 
cynyddol am ofal cartref mewnol a gofal cartref allanol mewn ffordd gynaliadwy a 
rheoledig.  Cynigiodd y dylid sefydlu cytundeb fframwaith ar gyfer darparu gofal cartref a 
gomisiynwyd yn allanol, a oedd yn caniatáu i'r Cyngor brofi'r farchnad bresennol, 
cryfhau'r trefniadau cytundebol presennol, ac agor y farchnad i ddarparwyr newydd, a 
oedd yn rheoli'r heriau a'r galwadau cynyddol. Ym mis Ionawr 2016, cymeradwyodd y 
Cabinet ddyfarnu cytundeb fframwaith i 13 o ddarparwyr ar gyfer darparu pecynnau 
newydd o ofal cartref ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 1 Ebrill 2016 a 31 Mawrth 2018, gydag 
opsiwn i ymestyn am gyfnod pellach o hyd at 24 mis.  Yn dilyn sesiynau ymgysylltu a 
gynhaliwyd gyda rhanddeiliaid a darparwyr, cymeradwyodd y Cabinet ym mis Ionawr 
2017 y cynllun comisiynu terfynol ar gyfer y sector gofal cartref annibynnol ym Mhen-y-
bont ar Ogwr, a chymeradwyodd wahoddiad tendrau i sefydlu cytundeb fframwaith ar 
gyfer darparu pob pecyn o ofal cartref a gomisiynwyd.  Ym mis Medi 2017, 
cymeradwyodd y Cabinet ddyfarnu cytundeb fframwaith i 15 darparwr (13 darparwr 
presennol a 2 ddarparwr newydd) ar gyfer darparu gofal cartref ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng 
1 Ionawr 2018 a 31 Rhagfyr 2019 gydag opsiwn i ymestyn am gyfnod pellach o hyd at 

Page 8



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

24 mis.  Mae'r cyfnod ymestyn llawn wedi'i ddefnyddio wedyn, gyda'r trefniadau IDC 
presennol yn dod i ben ar 31 Rhagfyr 2021. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion fod cyfres o ddigwyddiadau 
ymgysylltu ac ymgynghori â rhanddeiliaid wedi'u cynnal yn ystod 2019/20 i gyd-
gynhyrchu'r model ar gyfer gwasanaeth seibiannau byr newydd.  Roedd hyn wedi arwain 
at ddatblygu llwybr newydd ar gyfer gwasanaethau gofalwyr ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  
Rhan allweddol o'r llwybr hwnnw yw darparu seibiannau byr priodol i ofalwyr drwy 
ddarparu gofal newydd yn hyblyg i unigolion sydd angen gofal a chymorth, a fydd yn rhoi 
mwy o lais, dewis a rheolaeth i unigolion a'u gofalwyr drwy'r gallu i fancio oriau a asesir 
yn wythnosol i'w defnyddio'n hyblyg o fewn cyfnod o 4 wythnos.  Yn dilyn ymarfer tendro 
llwyddiannus, rhoddwyd cymeradwyaeth (drwy Bwerau Dirprwyedig) i ddyfarnu 
contractau ar gyfer darparu Gwasanaeth Seibiant Byr cartref rheoleiddiedig i unigolion 
a'u gofalwyr ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  Hyd y contractau yr ymrwymwyd iddynt oedd 2 
flynedd, gan ddechrau ym mis Gorffennaf 2019, gyda'r opsiwn i ymestyn am hyd at 24 
mis arall. 
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion fod gwasanaethau gofal diogel, 
hyblyg ac effeithiol yn y cartref yn rhan hanfodol o strategaeth y Cyngor i helpu a 
chefnogi unigolion i gynnal eu hannibyniaeth.  O ganlyniad i gynyddu'r capasiti o fewn 
gwasanaethau gofal a chymorth yn y cartref, roedd wedi galluogi'r Gyfarwyddiaeth i reoli 
nifer y lleoliadau a wnaed mewn cartrefi gofal.  Dywedodd nad yw'r galwadau am ofal a 
chymorth yn y cartref ar ôl Covid wedi'u deall yn llawn eto, ond mae'r gwasanaeth eisoes 
yn profi cynnydd sylweddol mewn angen.   
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion fod y pandemig, ochr yn ochr â'r 
pwysau galw, wedi tynnu sylw at bwysigrwydd sylfaenol gofal a chymorth yn y cartref, a 
rôl gweithwyr gofal proffesiynol, o ran darparu gofal personol hanfodol a chymorth i bobl 
sy'n agored iawn i niwed i'w cadw'n ddiogel, yn iach ac yn gysylltiedig.  Roedd gofyniad 
sylfaenol hefyd o ran y gweithlu gofal cymdeithasol a gofynion penodol o ran cofrestru a 
chymwysterau, sy'n gofyn am weithlu proffesiynol, medrus iawn yn gweithio gyda phobl 
ar adegau mwyaf heriol eu bywydau.  Roedd y farchnad gofal cymdeithasol yn parhau'n 
fregus, gyda recriwtio a chadw staff yn her sylweddol.   
 
Adroddodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion ar gynnig i sefydlu Gwasanaeth 
Gofal yn y Cartref a reoleiddir yn hyblyg ac sy'n canolbwyntio ar ganlyniadau, sy'n 
ymwneud â ffordd fwy penodol o gomisiynu yn ogystal â chanlyniadau gofal personol.  
Dywedodd fod digwyddiad profi'r farchnad wedi'i gynnal ym mis Mai 2021, ac yn dilyn 
hynny, yr opsiwn a ffefrir ar gyfer ail-gomisiynu gwasanaethau gofal cartref yw defnyddio 
model a chysyniad tebyg ar gyfer manyleb y gwasanaeth, lle bydd pwyslais clir ar lais, 
dewis a rheolaeth i unigolion a gofalwyr.  Bydd hyn yn helpu'r Cyngor i gyflawni ei 
strategaeth gorfforaethol o helpu i gadw pobl yn wydn a byw mor annibynnol â phosibl 
yn eu cartrefi eu hunain.  Fel gyda'r cytundebau fframwaith presennol sydd ar waith, y 
cynnig yw gweithredu Cytundeb Fframwaith pedair blynedd (2 flynedd gyda'r opsiwn i 
ymestyn 24 mis), a fydd yn dod â'r ddau fath o wasanaeth (IDC a Seibiannau Byr) yn 
unol â'i gilydd. Bwriedir cynnal yr ymarfer ailgomisiynu yn yr un modd â phan fydd 
gwasanaethau IDC a Seibiannau Byr wedi'u tendro o'r blaen, lle na fydd pecynnau gofal 
presennol ond yn symud drosodd i ddarparwr newydd yn ystod y cyfnod adolygu, er 
mwyn tarfu cyn lleied ag y bo modd ar unigolion. 
 
Adroddodd y Pennaeth Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion ar yr amserlen brisiau ar gyfer 
IDC a chyfraddau seibiant byr a brofwyd gyda darpar gynigwyr yn y digwyddiad profi'r 
farchnad. 
 
Pwysleisiodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar, 
wrth gymeradwyo'r argymhellion, bwysigrwydd darparwyr sy'n talu'r cyflog byw go iawn i 

Page 9



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

staff, a fydd yn gwneud gwahaniaeth sylweddol i'r gofal y mae unigolion yn ei dderbyn a 
bod yr awdurdod yn gosod y cyflymder i awdurdodau eraill ei ddilyn.  Roedd yr 
Arweinydd hefyd yn falch y byddai hyn yn gam sylweddol tuag at symud tuag at staff a 
gomisiynwyd yn derbyn y cyflog byw go iawn, a ddangosai ymrwymiad yr awdurdod i 
werthfawrogi staff gofal.        
 
PENDERFYNWYD:            Bod y Cabinet: 
 

• Wedi nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad; 
• Wedi cymeradwyo caffael Cytundeb Fframwaith Gofal yn y 

Cartref a Reoleiddir gan ddarparwyr arbenigol a 
gomisiynwyd; 

• Wedi dirprwyo awdurdod i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles i dendro'r Cytundeb 
Fframwaith ar gyfer y Cytundeb Fframwaith Gofal a 
Reoleiddir yn y Cartref mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Prif 
Swyddog - Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Rheoleiddiol a nododd y bydd adroddiad pellach yn cael ei 
gyflwyno i'r Cabinet ar ôl i'r Cytundeb Fframwaith gael ei 
gaffael ar gyfer penderfyniad ynghylch a ddylid dyfarnu'r 
Cytundeb Fframwaith a cheisio cymeradwyaeth i ymrwymo 
i'r Cytundeb Fframwaith gyda chynigwyr llwyddiannus; ac 

• Wedi cymeradwyo hepgor Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract y 
Cyngor o dan Reol 3.2.9.3 o'r rhannau perthnasol o'r 
Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract ar gyfer ymestyn telerau 
presennol y Fframwaith ar gyfer Gofal Cartref Annibynnol 
am 3 mis arall i 31 Mawrth 2022. 

 
692. CYNLLUN ADFYWIO GLANNAU PORTHCAWL : GORCHYMYN PRYNU GORFODOL 

ARFAETHEDIG 
 
Gofynnodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau am benderfyniad ffurfiol gan y 
Cabinet i greu, hysbysebu, hysbysu a chadarnhau cynnydd o Orchymyn Prynu Gorfodol 
(GPG) i gaffael tir, ac i awdurdodi hysbysebu'r bwriad i roi tir sy'n eiddo i'r Cyngor at 
ddibenion cynllunio i gefnogi Cynllun Adfywio Glannau Porthcawl. 
 
Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau ar y camau a gymerwyd a'r camau 
nesaf wrth wneud GPG i gaffael tir i alluogi cyflawni'r prosiect hwn.  Dywedodd fod y 
Cyngor yn berchen ar dir yn ardal Sandy Bay a Coney Beach, ac yn 2011 ymrwymodd i 
gytundeb gyda pherchennog tir trydydd parti i farchnata a gwaredu'r holl dir ar y cyd er 
mwyn galluogi cynllun ehangach Ardal Adfywio Porthcawl i ddod gerbron fel datblygiad 
defnydd cymysg strategol allweddol.  Cynigiwyd bod gwaredu naill ai i un datblygwr neu 
i ddatblygwyr lluosog.  Dywedodd fod rhai parseli tir gwag lle mae angen glanhau'r teitl 
neu sydd ym mherchnogaeth trydydd parti ac y mae angen eu caffael.  Dywedodd fod y 
Cyngor wedi ceisio caffael y tir trydydd parti drwy gytundebau a negodwyd, lle mae 
perchnogaeth yn hysbys.  Fodd bynnag, hyd yma, ni fu'n bosibl caffael tir trydydd parti 
drwy gytundeb ac ystyriwyd y dylai'r Cyngor geisio defnyddio ei bwerau o dan adran 
226(1)(a) o Ddeddf Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref 1990 i gaffael tir yn orfodol o fewn y ffin 
goch yn y cynllun drafft, fel y disgrifir yn y GPG drafft ac am y rhesymau a nodir yn y 
Datganiad o Resymau drafft.   
 
Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau ar gynnig i ddarparu datblygiad 
defnydd cymysg sy'n cynnwys y cydrannau canlynol yn unol â chynlluniau a pholisïau 
strategol yr awdurdodau caffael i greu cyswllt cerbydau i'r dwyrain i'r gorllewin; "Parc 
Griffin" agored mawr newydd;  tua 912 o anheddau ar safleoedd Parc Difyrion Sandy 
Bay/Coney Beach a mwy na 328 o anheddau ar safle Salt Lake; cyfleoedd hamdden; 

Page 10



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

manwerthu a datblygu masnachol; parciau a mannau agored newydd a gwell, ysgol 
newydd neu ehangu cyfleusterau addysgol presennol.   
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau wrth y Cabinet mai'r targed 
presennol ar gyfer cwblhau'r cynllun yw diwedd y 2020au, gyda'r Cyngor yn ceisio 
caffael y tir erbyn dechrau 2023 fan bellaf.  Y bwriad oedd nodi'r datblygwr neu'r 
datblygwyr a ffefrir, yn dibynnu a yw un neu ddatblygwyr lluosog yn cael eu dewis drwy 
farchnata cam cyntaf y safle yn agored yn gynnar i ganol 2022.  Y nod yw sicrhau'r 
caniatâd cynllunio angenrheidiol ar gyfer y cam cyntaf erbyn diwedd 2023.  Mae'r 
Cyngor yn bwriadu gwaredu'r tir drwy dendr, unwaith y bydd y broses gaffael wedi'i 
chwblhau.  Ystyriwyd bod achos cymhellol dros gaffael yn orfodol i sicrhau'r ardaloedd 
bach hyn o dir sydd eu hangen i ddarparu ailddatblygiad cynhwysfawr cyn datrys yr holl 
ansicrwydd; ac mae rhagolygon realistig y Cyngor wedyn yn sicrhau'r caniatâd cynllunio 
angenrheidiol ar gyfer y Cynllun. Er mwyn cyflawni'r Cynllun, ystyriwyd bod angen i'r 
Cyngor uno'r holl fuddiannau yn y tir sydd i'w gaffael.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau at y categorïau arbennig o dir i'w 
caffael, ynghyd â'r ffaith bod tir y Cyngor yn cael ei feddiannu.  Cyfeiriodd at y 
goblygiadau o ran hawliau dynol yn hynny at y dibenion y gwneir gorchymyn prynu 
gorfodol ar eu cyfer ac mae unrhyw benderfyniad i feddiannu tir yn cyfiawnhau ymyrryd 
â hawliau dynol y rhai sydd â diddordeb yn y tir yr effeithir arno.  
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio y bydd y bwriad i ailddatblygu'r 
glannau yn cwmpasu Salt Lake a Sandy Bay, sy'n ymestyn o Fae Rest i Newton.  
Cadarnhaodd y bydd yr ymgynghoriad yn cynnwys strategaeth parcio ceir.  Bydd yr 
ymgynghoriad yn dechrau ar ôl i'r ymgynghoriadau ar gyfer y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol a'r 
Uwchgynllun ddod i ben.  Dywedodd na fyddai unrhyw ddatblygiad yn digwydd nes y 
cytunir ar strategaeth parcio ceir a gofynnodd i'r Uwch Syrfëwr Datblygu egluro'r sefyllfa 
o ran prynu hen barc hamdden y pentref enghreifftiol.   
 
Eglurodd yr Uwch Syrfëwr Datblygu fod gan bartner y Cyd-fenter brydles o hen barc 
hamdden y pentref enghreifftiol, gyda'r diddordeb rhydd-ddaliad a ddelir gan 
ymddiriedolaeth deuluol.  Mae llawer o'r ymddiriedolwyr yn oedrannus ac roedd rhai 
wedi marw; byddai'r Cyngor yn cael y budd lesddaliad.  Dywedodd y telir iawndal i'r 
perchnogion yn seiliedig ar brisiad o'r tir gan y prisiwr a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru.   
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd wrth y Cabinet na fyddai GPG ar ei ben ei hun yn sicrhau 
datblygiad y safle a byddai angen caniatâd cynllunio, y CDLl a'r Uwchgynllun cyn y gellid 
gwneud unrhyw ddatblygiad.  Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau 
fod hyn yn wir a bod y GPG yn newid perchnogaeth y tir ac y byddai angen arolygon 
manwl, trafnidiaeth a briffiau gwneud lle, cyn proses gynllunio fanwl. 
 
Cwestiynodd Aelodau'r Cabinet gytundeb y perchnogion a chyfrifo'r rhaniad 60/40.  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau ei fod yn seiliedig ar werth tir yn 
hytrach nag arwynebedd y tir a bod prisiadau annibynnol wedi'u gwneud, gyda'r trydydd 
parti wedi anfonebu bob chwarter.  Dywedodd y byddai rhydd-ddaliad hen barc 
hamdden y pentref enghreifftiol wedyn ym mherchnogaeth y Cyngor yn dilyn y 
Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol.      
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd mai'r camau nesaf yw y gwneir gorchmynion sy'n rhoi cyfle i 
wrthwynebiadau a fyddai'n cael eu cyfeirio at Weinidogion Cymru i wneud penderfyniad. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:            Bod y Cabinet wedi: 
 

(1) Awdurdodi'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau a'r Prif 
Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 

Page 11



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

Rheoleiddiol i wneud Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol ar y ffurflen 
yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad (yn amodol ar unrhyw ddiwygiadau 
y gall Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol y Cyngor eu hawdurdodi) a 
chyhoeddi Datganiad o Resymau ar y ffurflen yn Atodiad 3 
(yn ddarostyngedig i unrhyw ddiwygiadau y gall Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol y Cyngor eu hawdurdodi) i gaffael y tir sydd 
wedi'i ymylu'n goch ar y cynllun atodedig, at ddibenion 
galluogi datblygiad cynhwysfawr Cynllun Adfywio Glannau 
Porthcawl. 

 
(2) Awdurdodi'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau a'r Prif 

Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Rheoleiddiol i wneud cais i Weinidogion Cymru am dystysgrif 
o dan adran 19 o Ddeddf Caffael Tir 1981 y mae ardal y 
traeth i'w phrynu er mwyn sicrhau ei bod yn cael ei chadw neu 
ei gwella 

 
(3) Awdurdodi'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau a'r Prif 

Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Rheoleiddio i hysbysebu a rhoi hysbysiad o wneud y 
Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol; a chyflwyno'r un peth i 
Weinidogion Cymru i'w gadarnhau,  

 
(4) Rhoi awdurdod i'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau a'r 

Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Rheoleiddiol a'r rhai y caniateir eu hawdurdodi ganddi i 
ymateb i unrhyw wrthwynebiadau a dderbyniwyd ac i fwrw 
ymlaen ag unrhyw ymchwiliad cyhoeddus y gallai 
Gweinidogion Cymru ddymuno ei gynnull mewn perthynas â 
gwneud y Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol.  

 
(5) Awdurdodi'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau a'r Prif 

Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a 
Rheoleiddiol i hysbysebu bwriad y Cyngor i roi'r tir ar gyfer 
mannau agored fel y dangosir ar y cynllun yn Atodiad 5 yr 
adroddiad, i ddefnydd at ddibenion cynllunio ac i adrodd yn ôl 
i'r Cabinet i ystyried unrhyw wrthwynebiadau a gafwyd i'r 
dyraniadau arfaethedig.                          

    
693. PONT HEOL PENCOED A CHROESFAN PENCOED 

 
Adroddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau ar y cynnydd presennol mewn 
perthynas â buddsoddiad trafnidiaeth cyfalaf mawr i wella hygyrchedd aml-foddol ym 
Mhencoed a thrwyddo a rhoddodd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y gwaith diweddar a 
wnaed ynghyd â gwybodaeth gefndir am y sefyllfa bresennol a'r dyhead posibl a 
cheisiodd awdurdodiad i fynd allan i ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus maes o law.    
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau y bydd y cynigion trafnidiaeth ym 
Mhencoed yn hwyluso teithio llesol ar Ffordd Hendre drwy ddileu'r gofyniad i gerddwyr a 
beicwyr aros nes bod trên wedi mynd heibio, drwy ddarparu pont deithio llesol bwrpasol.  
Byddai hefyd yn ceisio gwella'r seilwaith teithio llesol ym Mhont Penprysg drwy wella 
diogelwch, cyfleustra a defnyddioldeb i gerddwyr a beicwyr. Dywedodd fod WelTAG 
Cam Un wedi'i gwblhau ym mis Mehefin 2019 a oedd yn nodi, datblygu ac arfarnu rhestr 
hir o opsiynau a ddefnyddiwyd i ddarparu atebion i'r materion sy'n her ar hyn o bryd i 
gysylltedd rhwng gorllewin a dwyrain Pencoed.  Nododd y broses pa rai o'r opsiynau 
hynny o'r rhestr hir y dylid eu datblygu a'u hymchwilio ymhellach yng Ngham Dau 

Page 12



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

WelTAG, sef archwilio'n fanylach y rhestr fer o opsiynau ar gyfer mynd i'r afael â'r 
broblem dan sylw, fel y cytunwyd gan adroddiad Cam Un WelTAG.  Dywedodd mai 
argymhelliad astudiaeth Cam Dau WelTAG oedd yr opsiwn a oedd yn cynnwys cyfuniad 
o ddarpariaeth bont newydd a chau'r groesfan i'w symud ymlaen i WelTAG Cam Tri.  
Rhagwelir y byddai cau'r groesfan yn cynnwys darparu pont teithio llesol newydd.  
Dywedodd wrth y Cabinet fod Grŵp Llywio wedi'i sefydlu sy'n cynnwys cynrychiolwyr o'r 
gymuned, y Cyngor, yr AS, AoS yr etholaeth, y cyngor tref, Swyddfa Cymru, 
Llywodraeth Cymru, Network Rail a Thrafnidiaeth Cymru.  Mae atodiad i WelTAG Cam 2 
bron â'i gwblhau sy'n canolbwyntio ar opsiynau pontydd teithio llesol yn Ffordd Hendre. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau mai'r cam nesaf yw ymgynghori â'r 
cyhoedd ar y cynigion i ddechrau'n ffurfiol sy'n hanfodol i broses WelTAG, a fydd yn 
galluogi cysylltu'n uniongyrchol â rhai tirfeddianwyr yr effeithir arnynt i drafod cysyniad y 
cynllun a'r gweithgareddau peirianneg cychwynnol sydd eu hangen i ddatblygu proses 
WelTAG.  Mae'r gwaith cychwynnol hyn yn cynnwys gofynion ar gyfer mynediad tir 
trydydd parti i hwyluso arolygon topograffig, ymchwiliadau tir, arolygon ecoleg a 
mynediad i offer.  Mae'r cam ymgynghori cyhoeddus yn hanfodol i ddyluniad y cynllun ac 
unrhyw ychwanegiadau cyhoeddus dilynol.  Dywedodd fod ymgysylltu wedi'i wneud a 
bod trafodaethau wedi dechrau gyda Network Rail i hwyluso'r mynediad gofynnol ar 
gyfer yr arolwg cychwynnol.  Dywedodd wrth y Cabinet y byddai'r prosiect, yn dilyn 
ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ffafriol, yn gallu mynd ymlaen i WelTAG Cam Tri. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau wrth y Cabinet fod yr asesiadau 
WelTAG presennol wedi'u hariannu gan Gronfa Trafnidiaeth Leol Llywodraeth Cymru a 
weinyddir o dan Raglen Metro Dinas-ranbarth Caerdydd a darperir costau adeiladu 
manwl yn WelTAG Cam Tri.  Fodd bynnag, yr amcangyfrif presennol yw y byddai'r 
opsiwn a ffefrir yn costio tua £17 miliwn, yn amodol ar newidynnau ac amodau newidiol. 
Nododd fod ffynonellau cyllid posibl ar gyfer gwaith technegol ac adeiladu yn y dyfodol 
yn cynnwys cyfraniadau cynllunio Adran 106, grantiau Llywodraeth Cymru, grantiau 
Llywodraeth y DU, Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd a Network Rail.  
Dywedodd wrth y Cabinet y byddai angen i'r Cyngor archwilio'n llawn opsiynau ariannu 
yn y dyfodol ar y cyd â'r Grŵp Llywio a bydd y rhain yn cael eu hadrodd yn ôl maes o 
law. 
 
Llongyfarchodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio, y tîm o swyddogion am y 
cynnydd yr oeddynt wedi'u gwneud gyda'r prosiect hwn hyd yma.  Cyfeiriodd at amlder 
trenau yn defnyddio'r brif linell ac y byddai'r prosiect yn effeithio'n gadarnhaol ar 
ddyfodol gwasanaethau sy'n galw yng ngorsaf y Pîl ac ar y llinell i Faesteg.  Cyfeiriodd 
at ganslo'r prosiect trydaneiddio i'r gorllewin o Gaerdydd a gofynnodd a fyddai'r bont 
dros y rheilffordd yn cael ei diogelu yn y dyfodol pe bai trydaneiddio yn digwydd i geblau 
gael eu rhedeg o dan y bont.  Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau y 
byddai'r bont yn cael ei diogelu yn y dyfodol ac mae cynigion yn cael eu llunio gyda 
Capita a Network Rail. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau am fanylion ynghylch pryd y bydd yr 
ymgynghoriad yn dechrau er mwyn sicrhau bod yr ymgynghoriad yn cymryd rhan fwyaf.  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau y bydd ymgynghoriad yn dechrau 
yn yr hydref.  Bydd strategaeth ymgynghori yn cael ei datblygu er mwyn gweithio gyda'r 
gymuned a chael manteision economaidd a sicrhau bod yr ymgynghoriad yn cyrraedd 
cymaint o bobl â phosibl.  Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a 
Datblygu, wrth y Cabinet fod angen i'r prosiect wneud y mwyaf o gysylltedd trafnidiaeth a 
manteision economaidd.  Gallai'r prosiect fod gryn amser yn y broses o wneud, gan 
olygu bod angen cau'r brif linell ar adegau yn ystod y gwaith adeiladu.   
 
Gofynnodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd a oedd ystyriaeth wedi'i rhoi i adeiladu twnnel i gymryd 
y brif linell.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Cymunedau fod hyn wedi'i ystyried 

Page 13



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

ond ei fod wedi'i ddiystyru oherwydd yr ansefydlogrwydd y gallai twnnel ei achosi.  
Dywedodd y Prif Beiriannydd Rheoli Prosiect wrth y Cabinet fod twnnel wedi'i ystyried yn 
fyr, ond byddai ei adeiladu yn golygu bod angen cau'r brif linell am 5 i 6 mis, ynghyd â'r 
costau, a fyddai wedi bod yn enfawr.   
 
Soniodd yr Arweinydd am arwyddocâd y prosiect peirianneg hwn ac edrychodd ymlaen 
at weld canlyniad yr ymgynghoriad. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:            Bod y Cabinet wedi: 
  

(1) Nodi’r wybodaeth yn yr adroddiad. 
(2) Dirprwyo awdurdod i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 

Cymunedau i gynnal ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus llawn ar y 
cynllun, cysylltu â thirfeddianwyr yr effeithir arnynt ar y 
dyluniad arfaethedig a pharhau i weithio'n agos gyda 
Network Rail i ddylunio, hwyluso a chyflawni'r cynllun. 

(3)  Cytuno bod adroddiad pellach ar ganlyniadau'r 
ymgynghoriad, dyluniadau arfaethedig ac unrhyw ffrydiau 
ariannu posibl yn dod gerbron cyfarfod o'r Cabinet yn y 
dyfodol cyn bwrw ymlaen ymhellach.               

              
694. ATAL Y RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFN CONTRACT AR GYFER CLUDIANT O'R 

CARTREF I'R YSGOL BYSIAU MINI A THACSIS 
 
Ceisiodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd gymeradwyaeth 
y Cabinet i atal y rhannau perthnasol o Reolau Gweithdrefn Contract y Cyngor mewn 
perthynas â'r gofyniad i ail-dendro 154 o gontractau arfaethedig ar gyfer gwasanaethau 
cludiant o'r cartref i'r ysgol, a'i fod wedi'i awdurdodi i ymrwymo'n uniongyrchol i'r 
contractau gyda gweithredwyr perthnasol ar gyfer tymor yr hydref 2021-2022. 
 
Adroddodd fod y Cabinet ar 20 Hydref 2020 wedi cymeradwyo ymarfer caffael i wahodd 
tendrau i wneud cais am gontractau ar gyfer nifer o wasanaethau cludiant o'r cartref i'r 
ysgol am gyfnod o bum mlynedd gyda'r opsiwn i ymestyn o ddau gyfnod pellach o 
flwyddyn, gyda chyfanswm gwerth dangosol am y tymor llawn yn £34.2m.  Dywedodd 
wrth y Cabinet fod ymarfer caffael wedi'i ddatblygu yn ystod mis Mehefin a mis 
Gorffennaf 2021 ar gyfer tacsis, bysiau mini, tacsis arbennig a bysiau mini arbennig, sy'n 
cynnwys 154 o lwybrau ar wahân, gan ddod i ben ar ddiwedd blwyddyn academaidd 
bresennol 2020-2021.   
 
Adroddodd fod materion technegol gyda hysbysiad GwerthwchiGymru ynghyd â 
gwybodaeth ddiweddar am newidiadau i ganllawiau gweithredol COVID-19 ar gyfer 
ysgolion sy'n debygol o fod ar waith ar gyfer dechrau tymor yr hydref ym mis Medi 2021, 
wedi cael effaith ar y llwybrau, a gallu cerbydau sydd eu hangen i ddarparu'r 
gwasanaeth a fyddai wedi gofyn am newid sylweddol i'r gwahoddiad cyhoeddedig i 
dendro.  Felly, mae'r Cyngor wedi canfod bod angen rhoi'r gorau i'r broses gaffael cyn y 
dyddiad cau ar gyfer cyflwyno tendrau.  Y bwriad oedd dyfarnu contractau newydd ym 
mis Awst 2021 yn barod ar gyfer dechrau tymor yr hydref ym mis Medi 2021. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:           Bod y Cabinet wedi:  
 

 Cytuno i atal y rhannau perthnasol o reolau gweithdrefn contract y Cyngor mewn 
perthynas â'r gofyniad i aildendro'r contractau a restrir yn Nhabl 1 (ym mharagraff 
4.2) o'r adroddiad hwn ar gyfer gwasanaethau cludiant o'r cartref i'r ysgol;  

 

 Awdurdodi swyddogion i nodi gweithredwyr addas ar gyfer pob llwybr y cyfeirir ato yn 
Nhabl 1 (ym mharagraff 4.2); ac  

Page 14



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

 
Awdurdodi'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol (Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd) i ymrwymo i'r 
contractau gyda gweithredwyr trafnidiaeth o 3 Medi 2021 tan 17 Rhagfyr 2021.    
 

695. POLISÏAU ADNODDAU DYNOL 
 
Ceisiodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Adnoddau Dynol a Datblygu Sefydliadol gymeradwyo 
Polisïau’r Gwasanaeth Datgelu a Gwahardd (GDG) a Datrys.   
 
Adroddodd fod adolygiadau wedi'u cynnal a'u cwblhau ar bolisi'r Gwasanaeth Datgelu a 
Gwahardd a'r polisïau Cwynion ac Urddas yn y Gwaith presennol a bod rheolwyr 
Gwasanaethau wedi chwarae rhan allweddol yn y gwaith o adolygu'r polisïau Cwynion 
ac Urddas yn y Gwaith a datblygu'r polisi Datrys newydd. Roedd ymgysylltu llawn wedi 
digwydd gyda chynrychiolwyr undebau llafur yn y broses ac yn cefnogi'r polisïau 
arfaethedig. 
 
Dywedodd wrth y Cabinet fod polisi'r Gwasanaeth Datgelu a Gwahardd yn nodi'r 
gofynion ar gyfer gwirio cofnodion troseddol, sy'n ofyniad i weithwyr penodol ac sydd 
hefyd yn gymwys mewn amrywiaeth o feysydd gwasanaeth eraill ac mae'n rhan annatod 
o'r cyngor yn cyflawni ei drefniadau diogelu. Mae'r polisi datrys yn bolisi newydd sy'n 
dwyn ynghyd y polisïau Cwynion ac Urddas a Gwaith presennol ac yn cryfhau'r 
darpariaethau sydd ar waith sy'n caniatáu i gyflogeion godi pryderon neu urddas yn y 
gwaith.  Mae'n ystyried y ddeddfwriaeth bresennol a'r arferion gorau gyda'r nod o 
ddatrys materion yn sensitif a heb oedi gormodol ac mae hefyd yn cynnwys hyrwyddo a 
defnyddio trafodaethau wedi'u hwyluso er mwyn sicrhau'r cyfle gorau posibl i ddatrys yn 
gynnar. 
 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd wrth gymeradwyo'r polisïau fod y polisïau newydd wedi'u 
datblygu i adlewyrchu'r newidiadau cyfreithiol a rheoliadol diweddaraf, wrth gefnogi 
anghenion y Cyngor ac ystyried arfer gorau.  Diolchodd i gydweithwyr yn Adnoddau 
Dynol am eu gwaith wrth gyflawni'r polisïau ac am ei gefnogaeth i wasanaethau rheng 
flaen yn ystod y pandemig.  Diolchodd hefyd i gydweithwyr undebau llafur am eu 
hymwneud â datblygu'r polisïau newydd.      
 
PENDERFYNWYD:            Bod y Cabinet wedi cymeradwyo: 
 

 Polisi'r Gwasanaeth Datgelu a Gwahardd (yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad) 
y Polisi Datrys (Atodiad 2). 

 
696. NODI ADRODDIAD GWYBODAETH 

 
Cyflwynwyd adroddiad gan y Prif Swyddog Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol 
a Rheoleiddiol, a oedd yn hysbysu'r Cabinet o'r adroddiadau canlynol a gyflwynwyd er 
gwybodaeth a gyhoeddwyd ers ei gyfarfod diwethaf a drefnwyd. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cydnabod cyhoeddiad y dogfennau a 

restrir yn yr adroddiad: 
 
Teitl                                                                                    Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 
Adroddiad Monitro – Cwynion, Rhyddid Gwybodaeth 14 Gorffennaf 2021  
a Diogelu Data  
Adroddiad Alldro Blynyddol Rheoli'r Trysorlys 2020-21 14 Gorffennaf 2021 
 

697. EITEMAU BRYS 
 

Page 15



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 20 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

 

Nid oedd unrhyw eitemau brys. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 17:28 
 

Page 16



 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
14 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
FUTURE SERVICE DELIVERY MODEL   
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the Council’s work to date and plans for its 

future service delivery model as it recovers from the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

  

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Covid-19 pandemic has presented the biggest challenge to local public services 

in a generation and has led to rapid and significant changes to the way in which the 
Council and its partners deliver services.  Since March 2020, the Council’s focus has 
been to preserve life, minimise the spread of the virus and support all our 
communities.  

 
3.2 The Council’s staff have demonstrated their willingness, flexibility, commitment and 

dedication to deliver front line services to the county borough’s communities.  For 
some staff it meant adapting to new ways of working from home.  To enable this there 
has been a significant investment and roll out of additional ICT and DSE equipment 
to staff with ICT issuing over 700 laptops within the first few weeks of the pandemic, 
and a shift towards the delivery of many services in a different and more remote way, 
with an emphasis on enhanced digital availability.  A significant investment was also 
made in core ICT infrastructure to support these changes and provide a reliable home 
working service.  Successful claims of £468,152 were made to the Welsh 
Government Covid-19 Hardship Fund to initially establish home working 
arrangements.  However the terms and conditions of the fund indicated that as the 
assets in place should provide longer term benefits to local authorities, then the 
balance of required investment of £458,497 was directly funded by the Council.   

 
3.3 In the main the delivery of services has been maintained very successfully with the 

Council responding very effectively to both the additional challenges of delivering new 
Covid related services such as track and trace and helping to implement the hugely 
successful vaccination programme, while also ensuring that, where significantly 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



increased demand for its services has emerged, resourcing has been prioritised to 
those services.  However, the unprecedented nature of the challenges the Council 
has faced has also raised risks and issues which have been identified in the Council’s 
corporate risk assessment. These include the risks to delivering transformational 
change and agreed financial savings, the recovery and restoration of services while 
ensuring a Covid safe environment for the public and staff, and workforce issues 
relating to attracting, developing and retaining staff with the necessary skills to meet 
the demands placed upon the Council and its services.  

 
3.4       A mission critical challenge for the Council now as we accelerate through the recovery 

phase from the pandemic is how we now most effectively plan for and embrace what 
has worked well over the past 18 months, while also continuing to address some of 
the issues and concerns that have arisen around staff wellbeing, team development 
and access to some services.  It is clear that an opportunity exists to develop and 
implement a new operating model for the delivery of many of the Council’s services 
which will ensure that the Council is ‘fit for purpose’  moving forward, with a focus on 
being as agile and customer focussed as possible. 

 
3.5    The Council is a diverse and disparate organisation delivering up to 800 different 

services and employing over 6,000 staff in total.  Many staff have continued 
throughout the pandemic to work as normally as possible, and for many depot based, 
school based and some social services staff, for example, the future service delivery 
model may not change in the same way as for other predominantly office based staff 
based on the nature of staff roles. 

 
 
 3.6     In addition to the work on the Council’s operating model and accommodation strategy 

it should be noted that the Council continues to focus on many other parts of 
‘recovery’ from the Covid-19 pandemic including implementing the recommendations 
from the elected member Cross Party Recovery panel.  The response to these 
recommendations and also other ongoing work to promote recovery has been 
positive, with action plans implemented in areas such as economic recovery and the 
response to homelessness.   

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The pandemic has created an opportunity to transform the way in which the Council 

operates, building on and implementing the lessons and experiences emerging from  
the pandemic which has seen far more of the Council’s services delivered remotely 
and virtually, and the public embracing new ways of doing business with us.  Clearly 
we must also be minded to ensure that none of the County Borough’s residents are 
excluded by any new ways of working and that, in particular, our services continue to 
be targeted effectively at those who are most in need and most vulnerable.  

 
 Project Board 
 
4.2 A project board has been established, chaired by the Chief Executive, to drive forward 

this work with a view to creating a new agile blended model of working.  The blended 
model of working will capitalise on the acceleration of digital transformation during 
the Covid-19 pandemic and seek to increase the efficiency of services. 

 

Page 18



4.3 The project board has established a number of work streams to support and inform 
its work; digitalisation, HR, communication, accommodation and management of the 
interim phase. 

 
 Strategic Principles 
 
4.4 A set of corporate strategic principles have been developed to guide the effective 

development and implementation of the future service delivery work programme. 
They have been shared initially with staff groups and the trade unions with a view to 
setting the parameters and managing expectations for work moving forward. It is 
recognised that any new delivery model should be informed by a clear view of what 
service delivery will look like going forward and so it will be important to recognise the 
differences within each directorate or service area and what is essential for effective 
service delivery.  The principles include the following:-  

 

 OPPORTUNITY - That the Council takes advantage of this once in a lifetime 
opportunity to effect change to the ways in which the organisation works, whilst 
recognising the challenges this will bring. 

 

 ALIGNMENT WITH WELSH GOVERNMENT (WG) - That the model will be 
developed to achieve, as a minimum, the Welsh Government goal of 30% of our 
workforce being agile and working from home, at any given point, by 2024. 

 

 SERVICE DELIVERY LED - That the Council’s proposed model should be 
directed by its ability to deliver effective services across the County Borough, 
demonstrating benefit to the Council and its customers. 

 

 CUSTOMER CENTRIC & IT ENABLED - That the model should maintain a 
customer centric approach and explore the potential to further enhance the 
delivery of digital services.  The model must be IT enabled. 

 

 CIVIC OFFICES AS THE MAIN CIVIC & OPERATIONAL BASE - The model will 
work on the assumption that the Civic Office will be retained as the main 
administrative and democratic base for the Council for the foreseeable future 
which will also ensure a visible and tangible Council presence in the town centre,  
but that in due course a rationalisation of other office buildings may be possible. 

 

 BLENDED MODELS OF WORKING - The model will recognise the wide range of 
services delivered by the Council.  That some employees may need to work full 
time from service delivery locations.  For others a hybrid agile model of office and 
remote working would be suitable. This must be service led whilst also taking 
account of employee wellbeing.  In particular new ways of working will encourage 
where appropriate,  less travel, allow more people with caring responsibilities or 
other circumstances that make it more difficult for them to attend in work all of the 
time to have greater flexibility in their work practices,  and promote better work, 
life balance.  

 

 COMMUNICATION & ENGAGEMENT - That clear communication with staff and 
trade unions will be critical.  Engagement should be taken forward on a set of pre-
determined principles and within an agreed set of parameters that can then be 
reviewed following feedback. 

 

Page 19



 PROJECT TIMESCALES - That a realistic timeline for the project with agreed 
milestones must be developed. At this stage, and while government advice 
remains that if you can work effectively from home you should do so, it is 
envisaged that an interim phase of a managed, gradual and cautious return to the 
office will be in place between now and next spring with a long term sustainable 
plan agreed and in place in readiness to be implemented after that. 

 
Potential Benefits 

 
4.5 There are a number of potential benefits that could be derived from a revised future 

service delivery model, including close alignment with agreed national and corporate 
objectives. It is recognised that these will have to be managed and monitored 
carefully moving forward.  

 

 Contribution to the discharge of the Council’s duties under the Well-being of 
Future Generations Act, and in particular an involvement for staff and their 
representatives in designing a new operating model and an enhanced work life 
balance for many staff. 

  

 Alignment with WG’s target for 30% of workers to be working from home by 2024. 
To be clear, Welsh Government advice remains at this time that if you can work 
effectively at home you should do so.  

 

 Positive contribution to the net carbon 2030 agenda by reducing the need to travel 
to work.  

 

 Contribution to the well-being of staff and a positive work life balance. It is 
noteworthy that in the recently completed staff survey the vast majority of staff 
welcomed and supported a more flexible and agile working model, based on 
blended working that included some home /remote working but with access to the 
offices and/or meeting rooms as necessary. 
 

 Contribution to the Council’s digitalisation strategy with goal of enabling a Digital 
Council by 2024. The Council’s budget consultation exercise last year showed 
significant support from the public to move in this direction. 

 

 Add value to, and enhance, the existing remote working model by enabling face 
to face, office based working. 

 

 Contribution to attendance - build on the positive reduction in sickness absence 
during 2020/2021, although long term trend analysis is not yet available. 

 

 Positive impact on retention and recruitment within some key service areas. This 
is particularly pertinent at a time when the Council is having difficulty recruiting 
and retaining staff in some key service areas, for example social care.  It is clear 
that the labour market has changed post Brexit and post Covid 19 pandemic, with 
greater competition and staff shortages at some grades of work, and a change 
from many major employers, including most local authorities, to more flexible 
ways of working for certain roles, which means that if this Council does not 
similarly adopt more flexible practices it would potentially be disadvantaged 
compared to its neighbours.     

 

Page 20



 Possible financial savings from the smarter use of resources including a medium 

term aim of further rationalising the Council’s office portfolio and /or sharing space 

with other public sector organisations. It is also possible that in due course surplus 

office space could be made available for alternative use by the private sector 

providing financial benefits to the Council and helping to sustain long term footfall 

in Bridgend town centre. 

Challenges 
 
4.6 This innovative work programme will also bring with it a series of significant 

challenges.  It will be important to understand these fully and ensure that the 
arrangements fit a corporate purpose, in addition to ensuring that each Directorate 
can deliver services effectively.  Those identified include the following: 

 

 There will be a need to manage expectations throughout the organisation and 
identify adequate resources and training requirements to deliver the cultural 
change and management required.  Crucially it is not possible for all staff, 
depending on their roles, to work in exactly the same way moving forward. 

  

 Work will need to be undertaken in two phases.  An interim phase likely to be from 
now at least until the spring of 2022, prior to a co-ordinated and managed move 
to the new model of working. This timeframe is necessary to allow all legal, 
employment and HR matters to be resolved.  

 

 Work will be dynamic and evolve with the organisation.  So reviews of the efficacy 
of the working arrangements will be necessary. This will include how the 
Directorates will manage the flexibility offered by a hybrid model. 

 

 There is potential for extremes of staff opinion – focus has to be on the effective 
delivery of each service area. 

 

 There will be a need for corporate agreement on interim working arrangements.  
 

 The work must recognise the potential impact on the town centre economy from 
the reduction in staff working on a full time basis in the town centre offices and 
continue to work closely with traders to maximise footfall and spend. 

 

 Recognition that there could be difficulty in re-locating some services if there were 
issues with the long term viability of their current accommodation as space in the 
remaining facilities may be at a premium. 

 
Interim Phase 

 
4.7 At present, the Council is operating within the interim phase of these plans.  An 

accommodation group has been established to consider business case applications 
from service areas to return to the office.  The business case must clearly set out how 
a return will benefit service delivery and a risk assessment of the health and safety 
considerations of that return.  A pilot scheme, that enables the Council to support the 
well-being of individual officers who, because of their circumstances, may prefer to 
return to work in an office base, has also been implemented within Ravens Court. 
Managers are able to book one of sixteen desks for their staff in advance for up to 12 

Page 21



weeks at a time.  This can be for as little as a single day to a few days each week.  
So far there have been 6 staff that have benefited from this arrangement with a total 
of 90 days booked between them so far. 

 
4.8 Staff are able to access a wide range of guidance and information to support them 

through this period and this has now all been brought together in the Portal for Covid-
19 and Recovery. The portal includes updated FAQs on coronavirus and any 
changes introduced as restrictions continue to ease.  It also includes updates on HR 
matters, practical homeworking advice and resources to support employee wellbeing. 

 
4.9 Within this phase, a Remote Working Questionnaire was issued to all Group 

Managers (in addition to Heads of Service and managers where requested) across 
the Authority by Internal Audit.  The purpose of the questionnaire was to identify any 
changes made to control or governance arrangements as a result of the increase in 
remote working due to Covid-19.  The responses were analysed to gain assurances 
that key controls are operating effectively and to detect any areas of weakness or 
risk.  The report in July 2021, concluded that the effectiveness of the internal control 
environment was reasonable and no specific recommendations were made. 

 
4.10 Engagement with the trade unions will continue throughout this interim phase and 

build on an initial discussion with the Chief Executive and HR officers, setting out the 
corporate strategic principles. 

 
 Staff Engagement 
 
4.11 As part of the interim phase, a survey was developed with the Heads of Service and 

sent to Group Managers and some Principal Officers, to help inform our 
understanding of how the remote delivery model has impacted service delivery and 
what, if any, changes could be made to further enhance future service delivery.  
Unsurprisingly, given the diverse nature of the Council, responses reflected the 
particular requirements of each service area.  A hybrid model or remote model was 
welcomed by those service areas with office based staff whilst for other more front 
facing services, many have already moved back to their service delivery locations or 
are in the process of working through the relevant health and safety protocols to 
support that move.  The need to ensure effective service delivery that meets the 
needs of the Council’s customers was highlighted by all. 

 
4.12 Some of the benefits have already been referenced above but managers highlighted 

increased efficiencies through having a more flexible and agile service and the move 
away from an over reliance on face-to-face meetings and paper processes.  Having 
an adequately resourced ICT enabled service was seen as critical and managers 
were keen to explore further digital solutions for delivery, providing further momentum 
to drive forward the Council’s aim of becoming a Digital Council by 2024, including 
options for the future management of member meetings.  The long term goal, 
provided that suitable IT solutions can be found to allow it, (voting processes etc)  
would be for elected members to have the choice of whether they attend Council 
meetings in person or remotely.  The well-being of staff was consistently raised as a 
concern within responses, along with the need to ensure that ICT enabled meeting 
spaces are made available to support team cohesion, future planning, training and 
induction.  Managers put forward various options to support a new office model, 
including a dynamic booking system and the identification of designated service 
areas with Civic; these will be worked through by the Board.  Multi-agency working 

Page 22



was also flagged as an area that will need consideration within the development of 
any new hybrid model along with the continued engagement of delivery partners and 
stakeholders. 

  
4.13 There is a need to continue to engage and consult appropriately with staff and trade 

unions, as proposals are developed.  Opportunities were taken during the recent staff 
survey, launched in June 2021, alongside a range of questions (on: culture; line 
management; corporate communications; knowledge and skills; health and safety 
and employee wellbeing) to seek views on homeworking. 

 
4.14 The survey was made available to 3,166 staff (non-schools) and overall 33% (1,046) 

of staff responded, with 52% of staff stating that they were working from home for all 
of their work and a further 18% said they were working from home but only for part of 
their work.  Some of the headline figures are as follows: 
 

84% of staff agree or strongly agree that they can work productively in their remote 
environment 

80% of staff agree or strongly agree that they have what they need to effectively 
work remotely 

90% of staff agree or strongly agree that feel it is important to keep social contact 
with colleagues 

77% of staff agree or strongly agree that they are able to take a break from their 
screen 

85% of staff stated that communication/contact with the line manager while working 
from home had been about right 

81% of staff felt that they did have an appropriate level of support from their 
manager while working from home 

50% of staff said they occasionally encountered any internet/network connection 
problems whilst working at home that have affected their ability to work effectively 

 
4.15 Within this section of the survey there was an open ended question enabling staff to 

comment on anything further about working from home. Over 200 comments were 
made, with the most common themes being I find working from home more effective 
(76), I have had lots of WCCIS issues (Social Services software system) working from 
home (36) and I would prefer a blended option working from home / office in the future 
(24).  It should be noted that the WCCIS issues are linked to national system 
performance issues that have affected all users, not just those working from home. 

 
4.16 Whilst this demonstrates a desire by staff in the main to continue some homeworking, 

there were also a variety of issues and concerns made throughout the survey where 
respondents took the opportunity to comment on issues linked to home working and 
these will be fully analysed and contribute to the developments and proposals for 
consideration.   

 
4.17 In conclusion,  an opportunity exists to develop a long-term operating model for the 

Council which embraces many of the benefits that have emerged from the way the 
Council has had to operate over the last 18 months during the pandemic,  while also 
addressing some of the concerns that staff and the public have expressed regarding 
wellbeing issues, opportunities to meet in person where appropriate, and further 
enhancement of digital services to modernise services while also ensuring that no 
one is excluded. This programme of work represents one of the most significant 
operational challenges this Council has faced since its formation in 1995, as such it 

Page 23



will need to be resourced properly, communicated effectively and implemented 
skilfully to ensure its success. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no immediate effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. This will 

be kept under review as policies are developed and any policy change will be 
approved through the appropriate governance arrangements.  
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report. Any policy changes, including any new HR policies, 
with be subject to EIAs in the normal manner. 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report and some of 
the proposals will support some of the well-being goals.  As proposals are developed 
and introduced the implications will be considered in detail.  

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1. There are no immediate financial implications of this report but inevitably these could 

emerge as the detail becomes clearer. 
 
8.2 As the future service delivery model is developed, all options will be subject to the 

development of business cases that will set out potential costs, savings, timescales 
and risk.  A new hybrid model will likely offer up savings on mileage, office resources 
(printing/stationery etc.) and building costs, contributing to the Council’s de-
carbonisation agenda.  These will need to be fully explored and considered against 
potential increases in ICT and office re-configuration costs, required to enable an 
effective and sustainable hybrid model. 

 
8.3 Any costs associated with the on-going delivery of the interim phase will also need to 

be considered.  To date the Council has made significant ICT investment in its core 
infrastructure, ensuring the delivery of a reliable home working service and in 
providing staff with over 700 additional laptops and DSE equipment.  If the model is 
to continue, significant further investment will be required to maintain and enhance 
these arrangements. 

 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

Page 24



  
i. Note the information contained within this report and the progress that has 

been made with regard to a new operating model for the Council, and 

 

ii. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to develop options for the longer 

term operating model of the Council and provide a further report for Cabinet 

approval in due course. 

Mark Shephard 
Chief Executive 
14 September 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Lisa Jones 

Team Leader Regeneration Funding and Regional 
Engagement 

 
Telephone:   (01656) 815081 
 
Email:   lisa.jones@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
Background documents:  
 
Cross party recovery panel recommendations and report to Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 9 June 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND 
CHANGE 

 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 2022-23 to 2025-26 UPDATE  

 
1. Purpose of report  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present Cabinet with an update on the development of 

the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2025-26, following the revision of in-
built assumptions, and updated information received since the MTFS 2021-22 to 2024-
25 was approved by Council in February 2021. 

 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study and 
visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 

steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the 
Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 

 
3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
2.2 The allocation of budget determines the extent to which the Council’s well-being 

objectives can be delivered. The Council reviewed and updated its Corporate Plan 
targets in July 2021 and it will be updated for 2022-23 and presented to Council for 
approval in February 2022. It is important that actions identified in the Corporate Plan 
to deliver outcomes are commensurate with the resources identified in the MTFS. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-22 to 2024-25, which was approved by 

Council on 24 February 2021, identified a potential budget gap of £22 million over the 
period 2021-22 – 2024-25, with savings of £1.76 million required in 2021-22 and 
estimated future years’ savings as follows: 

 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



  

 

  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Best Scenario 4,837 4,637 4,431 13,905 

Most Likely Scenario  6,959 6,780 6,596 20,335 

Worst Scenario 9,081 8,881 8,676 26,638 

 
 
 The future years’ savings were predicated on the basis of 0% change to Aggregate 

External Finance (AEF) alongside a council tax increase of 4.5%. This is on the back 
of £62.247 million of savings being made between 2012-13 and 2021-22. 

 
3.2 At the time the budget was set there was still a large degree of uncertainty around pay 

and price increases for 2021-22, along with the longer term impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic and Brexit on the Council’s finances. Assumptions were built into the budget 
around potential pay awards for teachers and non-teaching staff for 2021-22, which 
are yet to be finalised. In addition, provisions for price increases were made based on 
what had been a low inflation year in 2020-21, ranging from 0.3% CPI increase up to 
1.0% increase.  

 
3.3 The Revenue Budget Outturn 2020-21 Report, which was presented to Council in 

June 2021, outlined the significant reliance that the Council had placed on additional 
Welsh Government (WG) grant funding, through the Covid-19 Hardship Fund and 
other grants to enable it to return a balanced position at year end. This included 
funding from WG to support the shortfall in council tax income during the year, 
alongside additional support for council tax payers.  

 
3.4 The Statement of Accounts 2020-21 notes a total of £24.643 million of Covid-19 grants 

received during the financial year to cover additional expenditure on homeless 
individuals in providing them with accommodation, provision of free school meals 
(including during school holidays), additional staffing costs along with provisions to 
support social distancing and learning in schools, and additional costs of providing 
care and support for voids in Adult Social Care. The amount received also included 
support for loss of income mainly in respect of the reduction in school meal income 
and a contribution to the net loss of running the leisure services during the pandemic. 
Whilst it is anticipated that the majority of these costs will be either one-off or short 
term, and will reduce as we recover from the pandemic, there will be other cost 
pressures that will remain into the medium and longer term. 

 
3.5 The Welsh Government has allocated £206.6 million in its current budget to the 

Hardship fund to support local government for the first six months of 2021-22. In 
relation to support beyond this period, WG have recently confirmed the extension of 
Covid-cost related support for the adult social care sector up to the end of the current 
financial year. No further financial support for non-adult social care services is 
currently in place, which could place additional pressures on the 2021-22 and future 
years’ budgets. 

 
 
4.  Current situation/proposal 
 

4.1 The MTFS outlines the principles and detailed assumptions which drive the Council’s 
budget and spending decisions, outlines the financial context in which the Council is 
operating, and tries to mitigate any financial risks and pressures going forward, at the 

Page 28



  

 

same time as taking advantage of any opportunities arising. Given the unprecedented 
financial and economic situation the Council finds itself in at this time, it is felt that a 
review of the assumptions underlying the MTFS is warranted, and an updated budget 
strategy developed. 
 
The Economic and Financial Climate 

 
4.2 In the one-year Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) in November 2020 the 

Chancellor said that as the restrictions are eased, they expect the economy to start 
recovering, but that even with growth returning, "our economic output is not expected 
to return to pre-crisis levels until the fourth quarter of 2022". He also said that the 
Spending Review would deliver stronger public services with billions in additional 
funding, including £1.3 billion for Wales. He also announced targeted pay increases for 
NHS workers and those on low pay, with a pay freeze for most of the rest of the public 
sector. 

 
4.3 Following the CSR the Welsh Government’s budget, and therefore provisional local 

government settlement, was delayed until December 2020. Bridgend received an 
increase in AEF of 4.3%, compared to an average of 3.8% across Wales in the 
settlement, which was a much better settlement than had been anticipated. No 
changes were made to these figures in the final local government settlement 
announced in March 2021. 

 
4.4 In the March 2021 Budget the Chancellor of the Exchequer said his immediate priority 

continues to be supporting those hardest hit, with extensions to the Job Retention 
Scheme (JRS) or furlough scheme, self-employed support, business grants, loans and 
VAT cuts – bringing total fiscal support to over £407 billion. He also set out plans to 
drive jobs, growth and investment to help the economy rebound. However, at a certain 
point in time some of these measures will come to an end and the impact will be felt 
throughout the county borough. The JRS will end at the end of September 2021 and it 
is envisaged that this will impact negatively on employment rates. In addition, a 
number of businesses have been supported by business grants and business rates 
reliefs, which will also come to an end. The potential financial impact of these on the 
local economy, collection of council tax, council tax support, housing benefits and free 
school meals levels will need close monitoring and considering as part of the MTFS 
2022-2026. 

 
2021-22 Budget Position 
 

4.5 When the MTFS 2021-25 was approved in February 2021 it was based on 4.3% 
increase in AEF, a 3.9% increase in council tax, and included funding of £7.502 million 
for budget pressures, including for eradicating rough sleeping, demographic growth, 
additional learning needs and the National Living Wage. These were offset by £1.76 
million of budget reductions to balance the budget.  

 
4.6 A review of the MTFS scenarios was also undertaken at this time and the funding 

scenarios improved, taking into account the actual funding levels received over recent 
years, the worst of which was -0.1% in 2019-20. It was stated that these would 
continue to be monitored and amended as further fiscal and economic information is 
made known. 

 
4.7 The Council’s net budget (currently £298.956 million) is funded from 3 sources: 
 

Page 29



  

 

            £ % 

Revenue Support Grant 163,404,268 54.66 

Non Domestic Rates  48,787,286 16.32 

Council Tax Income 86,764,691 29.02 

Total 298,956,245 100% 

 
 
  Levels of Revenue Support Grant and Non Domestic Rates are set by Welsh 

Government so the Council only has control over the level and amount of council tax 
that is raised. Given that council tax only constitutes approximately 30% of the 
Council’s overall net funding, due to the ‘gearing effect’ any increase in council tax rate 
will have a disproportionate impact on the additional funding collected e.g. a 1% 
increase in council tax will only generate around 0.3% increase in the budget available 
(equivalent to around £870,000). 

 
4.8 The Council also collects council tax on behalf of Town and Community Councils and 

South Wales Police, and assumes risks of non-collection for those sums of monies 
too. Consequently a 1% reduction in collection tax collection can equate to around £1 
million as it includes not only the BCBC element. For the 2020-21 financial year Welsh 
Government provided additional grant to meet such shortfalls but no funding has yet 
been committed for 2021-22 onwards. However, in anticipation of a shortfall in council 
tax collection during this financial year, when the council tax base was set in 
November 2020 the assumed collection rate was reduced from 98% to 97.5%.   

 
4.9 A report was presented to Cabinet on 20 July 2021 outlining the revenue budget 

forecast for 2021-22 as at 30 June 2021. The position is a projected overspend of 
£904,000 which reflects a number of continuing base budget pressures such as Adult 
Social Care. These will need resolving to ensure that there are not unmet underlying 
pressures going forward into 2022-23. 

 
Key Pressures 

 
4.10 It is clear that there are a number of known key pressures that will need considering as 

part of the 2022-23 budget strategy, not least: 
 
 Pay Awards 
 
 As mentioned in paragraph 3.2 the pay awards for teachers and non-teachers for 

2021-22 are still under discussion. The pay award for teachers is out for consultation 
and is based on 1.75% increase across all grades from September 2021. The pay 
award for NJC staff is still being considered. Going forward for 2022-23 it is difficult to 
know what the position will be, with so much uncertainty even in the current year, so 
an assumption of around 2% is not unreasonable.  

 
 In addition, the Council is required to pay the National Living Wage (NLW), and also 

funds its external commissioned providers to do the same. The increase for 2021-22 
was 2.2% but it is currently estimated that this could increase by 3% - 4% in 2022-23 
as we move towards the Low Pay Commission target of the NLW reaching two-thirds 
of median earnings for workers aged 21 and over by 2024.  

 
 
 

Page 30



  

 

 Price Inflation 
 
 The fallout from the pandemic and Brexit is being manifested in higher prices through 

inflationary increases. Whilst inflation was low in 2020-21, since the beginning of the 
year the consumer price index (CPI) annual rate has increased from 0.7% in January 
2021 to 2.0% currently (as at July 2021). The Council’s Treasury Management 
advisors, Arlingclose, have stated that while the CPI rate may continue to rise in the 
coming months, they expect this will moderate towards year end. However, there will 
still be pressure on costs of goods and services, and contract costs, as we go forward. 

 
 Demographic Pressures 
 
 In terms of Bridgend’s overall population, indications are that the population will 

continue to increase over the next 10 to 15 years, from 143,000 in 2020 to 148,000 
in 2038. This will place increased pressure on the Council’s budget if no additional 
funding is provided, particularly in terms of school places, adult social care, 
infrastructure and transportation. However, whether or not this will attract additional 
funding will depend on population growth across Wales as a whole.  

 
 In addition, Office for National Statistics data shows that between 2018 and 2048, the 

proportion of the UK population aged over 80 is set to increase from 6% in 2018 to 
11% in 2048, and the proportion of the population aged 20-59 will fall from 51% in 
2018 to 46% in 2048. The fact that people live longer is a very positive development, 
but it does mean that the nature of demand for some public services will change. Also, 
the decline in the working age population potentially affects the tax base in Wales. 

 
Budget Strategy 2022-23 
 

4.11 The MTFS approved in February 2021 was based on the Most Likely scenario of 0% 
change to AEF and 4.5% council tax increase. Since then discussions with Cabinet 
and Corporate Management Board (CCMB) have centred around seeking the right 
balance in assumptions going forward on likely increases to AEF, what is a realistic 
level of savings targets given the historical level of savings made, level of funding 
required to meet unavoidable budget pressures, and subsequent required council tax 
increases to balance the budget.   

 
4.12 A review of provisions set aside for pay, prices and pressures has been undertaken, 

along with an analysis of different scenarios in respect of changes to AEF and council 
tax increases, and the outcome is as follows: 

 

  
 

A lower council tax increase will result in an increase to the level of savings to be 
made, but would be offset (partly or in full) by an increase in AEF.  
 

+0% +0.5% +1% +2% +3% +3.5% +4% +4.5%

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Best +3% 3,535 3,101 2,667 1,799 932 498 64 -370

Most Likely +2% 5,657 5,223 4,789 3,921 3,054 2,620 2,186 1,752

Worst +1% 7,779 7,345 6,911 6,043 5,176 4,742 4,308 3,874

Cash Flat 0% 9,900 9,466 9,032 8,164 7,297 6,863 6,429 5,995

AEF 

change

Council Tax change

Page 31



  

 

4.13 CCMB currently feel that an increase in AEF of 2% by Welsh Government is prudent. 
Given the scenarios set out in the table above this would result in the following savings 
targets for different levels of council tax increase: 

 

Council Tax 
Increase 

Savings 
Target 
£000 

+1% 4,789 

+2% 3,921 

+3% 3,054 

+4% 2,186 

 
For example, if the intention is for a 3% increase in council tax, then savings of £3.054 
million would still be required. Every effort will be made to minimise council tax 
increases and mitigate savings requirements, but this will ultimately depend on the 
settlement received from Welsh Government. Should the settlement be higher than a 
2% increase then these will be able to be mitigated in part or in full. An additional 
increase in funding from Welsh Government of 1% would generate an additional £2.1 
million. Conversely, a settlement lower than 2% could result in an increased savings 
requirement or council tax. 
 

4.14 Currently very few budget reduction proposals have been put forward by Directorates 
so there is a risk of not being able to set a balanced budget in February 2022, so work 
will continue, with support and input from the Budget Research and Evaluation Panel 
(BREP), to bring together budget reduction proposals for consideration and 
consultation on over the remainder of the financial year. 

 
4.15 The Council has recently received a report on its financial sustainability from Audit 

Wales. The conclusion from Audit Wales was that the Council has maintained a strong 
financial position during the pandemic and that there are no apparent risks to the 
Council’s financial sustainability. However, they also say that the immediate impact on 
the Council’s financial sustainability was mitigated by Welsh Government funding, 
which we know will not continue indefinitely, and that while the Council has a track 
record of delivering the majority of its in-year planned savings, like other Councils 
going forward, identifying and delivering future savings will be more challenging. As a 
general comment they did indicate that Councils that show a pattern of unplanned use 
of reserves to plug gaps in their revenue budget that result in reductions of reserve 
balances reduce their resilience to fund unforeseen budget pressures in future years.  
 

 Budget Consultation 
 
4.16 Following on from the Budget Consultation 2020, which focussed on recovery and 

access to services, we anticipate that this year’s consultation will focus on similar 
themes, with the aim to find out which services are most important to our residents, 
where they see the priorities for the future and where they would like to see investment 
opportunities.   

 
4.17 Like last year we will need to adapt to the limited face to face interactions that Covid-

19 and social distancing presents, therefore the budget consultation will be pre-
launched on social media prior to the live survey date. The public consultation is 
expected to go live on 20 September 2021 and close on 14 November 2021, with the 
outcome of the consultation reported to Cabinet on 14 December 2021. Consultation 
will also take place with scrutiny committees, the School Budget Forum and business 

Page 32



  

 

rate payers prior to the budget being presented to Council for approval in February 
2022.  

  
 Capital Programme 
 
4.18 The Council sets a 10 year rolling capital programme, which is updated and reported 

to Council for approval on a quarterly basis. The capital programme is based on the 
framework set out in the Council’s Capital Strategy, which is approved annually by 
Council alongside the MTFS. 

  
4.19 A report was presented to Council in June 2021 outlining a range of new capital 

schemes to be funded from Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) resources, 
including capital receipts and revenue contributions from earmarked reserves that 
were established at the end of 2020-21 from year end underspends. The schemes 
identified were part of an investment proposal to help accelerate the recovery of the 
County Borough from Covid-19 and to support its residents. These included grants to 
support businesses, apprentice and graduate schemes, wider regeneration investment 
highways maintenance, decarbonisation and active travel schemes.  

 
4.20 The capital programme will be updated for new schemes in line with the regular 

reporting cycle. The Council’s disposal strategy has been successful in recent years, 
with total receipts generated from the enhanced disposal programme between 2014 
and 2020 of £21.36 million. A significant amount of this funding was used to match 
fund the Welsh Government 21st Century Schools Band A Programme, as well as 
funding a range of other capital schemes, including a number of regeneration schemes 
and the Depot Rationalisation Programme. Consequently the availability of capital 
receipts is very much reduced, meaning the Council will either have to use the limited 
capital funding it receives from WG, already established earmarked reserves (most of 
which are committed to specific schemes), or borrowing, to fund new schemes, where 
allowable. However, borrowing has long term financial consequences and will result in 
a cost pressure to the Council’s revenue budget. The affordability of any repayment 
costs needs to be considered over the life of the borrowing (usually 25-30 years), 
especially given the challenges facing the budget overall and the potential level of 
savings already required. 

 
4.21 In order to advance some schemes the Council will also continue to seek to secure 

external grant funding towards schemes where possible, to reduce the impact on in-
house budgets. 

 
 Budget Timetable 
 
4.22 Welsh Government has indicated that the announcement of its draft budget, and 

subsequently the provisional local government settlement for 2022-23 is likely to, once 
again, be approximately two months later than usual, due to fact that the outcome of 
the Comprehensive Spending Review by the UK government is not likely to be until 
later in the year. This will mean that the final budget for 2022-23 is likely to be based 
on the provisional local government settlement as has happened in the last two years. 
The likely budget timetable is as follows: 

 

Date Action 

Sept – Nov 2021  CCMB to firm up budget proposals – budget reductions, 
budget pressures 

 Public Budget Consultation period 

Page 33



  

 

November 2021  Council Tax base approved by Council 

December 2021  Report to Cabinet on Budget Consultation 

 Welsh Government Draft Budget 

 Provisional Local Government Settlement 

January 2022  Report to Cabinet on Draft MTFS 2022-2026 

 Scrutiny Committees consideration of MTFS 

February 2022  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee makes 
recommendations to Cabinet 

 Final MTFS 2022-2026 presented to Cabinet and Council 
based on provisional settlement alongside the Corporate 
Plan, Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy 

March 2022  Final Welsh Government Budget 

 Final Local Government Settlement 

 
 
4.23 In addition, during the period September 2021 to January 2022, the BREP will meet 

with key officers to discuss the budget proposals and make recommendations to 
support Cabinet in shaping the budget. 

 
5.  Effect on policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 The budget setting process is outlined within the Council’s Constitution and Financial 

Procedure Rules.  
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 

6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 
and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. It 
is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report. 

 
6.2 A high level Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) will be undertaken on the Council’s 

budget proposals going forward and individual EIAs will be completed for 2022-23 
proposed budget reduction proposals which may impact on certain groups of citizens 
within the County Borough.  

 
7.  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. As the report is for information it is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result 
of this report. 

 
8. Financial implications 

 
8.1 The financial implications are mostly set out in the body of the report. The Section 151 

officer has statutory duties in relation to the financial administration and stewardship of 
the authority. This includes reporting to members on the overall budget performance 

Page 34



  

 

and recommending corrective action where appropriate, providing financial information 
and preparing the revenue budget and capital programme and reporting to full Council  
on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves. 

 
8.2 The level of Council reserves is sufficient to protect the Council in light of unknown 

demands or emergencies and current funding levels. It must be emphasised that the 
biggest financial risks the Council is exposed to at the present time relate to the 
uncertainty of Welsh Government funding, including longer term funding to mitigate 
the effects of Covid-19, the increasing difficulty in the delivery of planned budget 
reductions as well as the identification of further proposals. Therefore, it is imperative 
that the Council Fund balance is managed in accordance with the MTFS Principle 9, 
as set out in the MTFS, and it is essential that revenue service expenditure and capital 
expenditure is contained within the identified budgets. 
 

9. Recommendation 
 

9.1 Cabinet is asked to note the report on the updated MTFS 2022-23 to 2025-26. 
 

 
 

 
Gill Lewis CPFA 
INTERIM CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE  
September 2021 
 
Contact Officer:   Deborah Exton CPFA 

Deputy Head of Finance 
 
 

Telephone:    01656 643604 
 

Email:    deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address:   Raven’s Court 
     Brewery Lane 
     Bridgend 
     CF31 4AP 
 
 
Background Documents: Final Local Government Revenue and Capital Settlements 

2021-22 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
14 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELLBEING 

 
SUBSTANCE MISUSE SERVICE PROVISION IN BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH  
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 

 provide an update of the work to transition substance misuse services from the 
former Western Bay Area Planning Board into Cwm Taf Morgannwg Area Planning 
Board; 
 

 seek approval for Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, (RCTCBC) to 
undertake the procurement exercise on behalf of Bridgend County Borough Council  
(BCBC) to commission an integrated service provider for Tier 1 and 2 substance 
misuse service provision in Bridgend County Borough. This will be undertaken in 
accordance with rule 3.1.5 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. Approval to 
award the service contract will be sought via delegated powers (under the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation) once the procurement and evaluation process has been 
undertaken;  

 

 seek approval to enter into a regional collaboration agreement with RCTCBC to set 
out the responsibilities of each Authority for the initial procurement process and 
subsequent management of the service contract; and 
 

 delegate authority for the Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing, in 
consultation with the Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer and Chief 
Officer - Legal, HR and Regulatory Services, to agree the terms of and enter into 
the regional collaboration agreement. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 
 
3. Background 
 
3.1  Area Planning Boards (APB) were set up by Welsh Government in 2010 to provide a 

regional framework to:  
 

 Strengthen partnership working and strategic leadership in the delivery of the 
substance misuse strategy;  
 

 Enhance and improve the key functions of planning, commissioning and 
performance management.  

 

3.2 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg APB is a multi-agency Board which includes representation 
from: 

  

 Bridgend, Merthyr and Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Authorities  

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board (CTMUHB) 

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHB Public Health Team 

 Police and Crime Commissioners Office 

 South Wales Police  

 Welsh Government  

 Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service (HMPPS) 
 
The APB is accountable to the Public Services Board in respect of all its activities.   

 
3.3 In Cwm Taf Morgannwg (CTM) most substance misuse services are funded through 

two Welsh Government funding streams: 
 

 The Substance Misuse Action Fund (SMAF): £4M; 

 The Local Health Board ring-fenced substance misuse allocation: £3.5M. 
 
3.4 RCTCBC is the nominated banker and grant recipient for the Substance Misuse 

Action Fund (SMAF) allocation on behalf of the APB area and administers the grant 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the funding and the agreement of the 
responsible authorities within the APB membership.  RCTCBC employs a small 
commissioning team to engage with partners to coordinate the required functions of 
the APB. The team is managed by a Substance Misuse Lead Officer.  

 
3.5 It is important to note the work of the role of RCTCBC as the banker of the grant; 

however, any work undertaken across CTM will be in collaboration with respective 
partners. It is imperative that all functions in the Bridgend area, including 
recommissioning, will be carried out with the full cooperation and representation of 
key partners and stakeholders in Bridgend.   

  
3.6 All services currently commissioned for substance misuse within CTM fall within a 4-

tier conceptual framework, which refers to the level of intervention provided: 
 

 Tier 1: Consists of a range of drug-related interventions that can be provided by 
generic providers, depending on their competence and partnership arrangements 
with specialised substance misuse services; 

Page 38



 Tier 2: Interventions are provided by specialist substance misuse providers and 
include a range of harm reduction interventions, and interventions that engage, 
retain, and support people in treatment. Support for families and concerned 
others are also considered to be tier 2 interventions; 

 Tier 3: Specialist provisions including all clinical functions, substitute prescribing 
programmes and community detoxification. 

 Tier 4: Services provide substance misuse inpatient detoxification and residential 

rehabilitation programmes. 

 
3.7 In 2016 as part of a process of modernisation to respond to changes in legislation and 

service user need, the Cwm Taf APB commissioned consultants, Health and Social 
Research (HSR), to carry out a review of substance misuse service provision in 
RCTCBC and Merthyr Tydfil, and to develop a model of service.  The aim was 
ensuring a cohesive whole system approach with equitable and accessible services 
across the area. Following a procurement process, the new integrated service 
commenced in RCT and Merthyr Tydfil on 1st April 2019. 
 

3.8 In April 2019 as part of the Health Board boundary change, BCBC moved from the 
former Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board and Western Bay area into 
Cwm Taf to form part of the new Cwm Taf Morgannwg area with Merthyr and RCT 
CBC’s, and with that move BCBC became a member of the CTM APB.   
 

3.9 CTM APB convened a multi-agency Bridgend Development subgroup to manage the 
transition of services from Western Bay to Cwm Taf Morgannwg and to develop 
Substance Misuse services in Bridgend that align with the current integrated service 
in RCT and Merthyr Tydfil CBC’S.   

 
3.10 Prior to the boundary change, the former Western Bay APB had already embarked 

on a process for reviewing service provision and had also appointed consultants; 
HSR, to carry out this review. Upon notification of the boundary change, HSR were 
asked to carry out a needs assessment specifically for the Bridgend area to: 

 

 Review substance use services in Bridgend; 

 Undertake a needs assessment to identify: 
o What works well in Bridgend substance use treatment services; 
o Unmet need;  
o Gaps in service provision;  
o Enablers and blocks to treatment pathways. 

 
3.11 A number of sources were used to gather information for the assessment of needs 

including from, service users and concerned others, local authority staff, 
representatives of the APB, staff from substance misuse treatment and support 
provision as key partners.    

 
3.12 The findings and recommendations from this review, together with information from 

quarterly contract monitoring exercises and recent consultation exercises with 
providers and service users, will be used to inform the requirements for future service 
provision in Bridgend. 

   
3.13 The Bridgend Development Group has now commenced the process for the 

recommissioning of Tiers 1 and 2 substance misuse Service Provision in Bridgend. 
Services. 

Page 39



 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Since 2015, service provision in the Bridgend area has been provided through an 

integrated service called “Newid”, which is a collaboration between the Health Board, 
Adferiad and Platfform.  It has become evident from the transition work undertaken 
to date and the quarterly monitoring exercises that, as well as areas of good practice, 
there are some areas that require improvement.  These include access into services 
and harm reduction initiatives. Interim measures have been agreed to improve in the 
short term; including the development of a new family and concerned others support 
and outreach service, and a single point of access service.   
 

4.2 In line with the recommendations of the HSR review in Bridgend, the Cwm Taf 
integrated service model (as implemented in Merthyr and RCT) will be utilised in 
Bridgend to provide a suite of essential services which will: 

 

 Be aligned to current service provision in the Region; 

 Provide consistent services across the Cwm Taf Morgannwg area. 

 Improve access into services promoting the “right time right service” approach 

 Address areas of current unmet need.  

 Allow for flexibility within the contract to enable the moving of resources to address 
changes in service need and demand. 

 Strengthen service user involvement and participation  
 

4.3 Tier 3 services will be commissioned and provided by Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
University Health Board.  Tier 1 and 2 treatment and support services currently 
provided by Adferiad and Platfform will be recommissioned and a new integrated 
service with one provider appointed.  

 

4.4 The development of the procurement process commenced in March 2021.  It is     
anticipated that the tender will be ready to be published on 1st October 2021 with the 
new service scheduled to commence on 1st April 2022.  It is proposed that a contract 
be awarded for two years with an option to extend for a further one plus one year to 
coincide with the Cwm Taf contract.  

 

4.5 To ensure that the service is procured in line with the existing Cwm Taf integrated 
service model it is proposed that RCTCBC, as nominated banker and grant recipient 
for the SMAF, and employer of the regional commissioning team for the APB, will 
undertake the procurement process through the regional commissioning team. BCBC 
Procurement colleagues will be included in discussions to ensure compliance with 
BCBC requirements. The Bridgend Development Group has overseen all 
development work and quarterly updates will be provided to the APB who are also 
cited on key decisions. The new service will be fully compliant with the Welsh 
Government Service Delivery Plan 2019-22 and the requirements of the Substance 
Misuse Action Fund Grant.   
 

4.6 The Bridgend CBC Youth Forum is assisting with the procurement process to develop 
specific tender questions relating to Children and Young People.  The group will also 
be part of the evaluation and scoring of these questions.   

 

Page 40



4.7 It is proposed that a collaboration agreement be negotiated and agreed between 
BCBC and RCTCBC to govern their respective roles and responsibilities during the 
procurement process and setting out how the parties will collaborate to oversee the 
delivery of the service. 

  

4.8 BCBC, CTMUHB and the new provider will work in partnership with the APB to 
contribute towards the following overarching outcomes: 

 Reduce problematic substance misuse and dependency in our population; 

 Enable early detection and support of individuals who are misusing substances; 

 Provide high quality, evidence-based treatment and support according to service 
user need; 

 Support service users to sustain long term recovery.   
 

4.9 The new service will comprise of the following interconnecting components: 

 A prevention and early identification/intervention service;  

 A single Point of Entry; 

 A children and young people’s service including transition services for vulnerable 
individuals between the ages of 18-25; 

 Low intensity intervention/treatment and support; 

 Sustained recovery; 

 Specialist service pathway; 

 Shared care services.  
 

4.10 Providers will work to the following principles: 
 

 Evidence based practice including psychologically informed treatments and 
interventions. 

 Collection and collation of data to understand demand and manage trends. 

 A process of continuous improvement based on research and best practice to 
improve outcomes for service users and staff. 

 A prudent healthcare approach including prioritising treatment for those with 
greatest need helping to make the most effective use of skills and resources; 

 Person centred care recovery, building on people’s strengths combined with a 
holistic approach based on an effective working relationship between service user 
and therapist, focused on harm reduction approaches, non-judgemental and non-
discriminatory practice; 

 Accessible points of entry, equity of access and a standardised approach across 
BCBC, Merthyr and RCT CBC’s;  

 Commitment to service user involvement, working alongside service users as 
equal partners sharing power and responsibility;   

 Partnership working, integration and collaboration between all parts of the service, 
good communication and clear pathways into Mental Health, Housing, 
Community, Children Services and the Criminal Justice system;  

 Greater emphasis on prevention and early identification including universal and 
targeted education and advice. 

 Assertive outreach to include proactively engaging with “hard to reach” groups 
and communities; 

 Outcome focused practice with a clear evaluation framework.   
 

Page 41



4.11 The implementation of the components highlighted above which will be underpinned 
by working to these principles, is designed, not only to address the areas where the 
need for improvements has been identified, but to put in place a new integrated model 
of service which is person centred and focussed on improved outcomes for the people 
who use the service. The new service will also provide a consistent approach to the 
provision of substance misuse services across the Cwm Taf region.  
 

4.12 In order to involve people who have experience of using substance misuse services 
and enable them to have a voice in the work of the APB and the Bridgend 
Development Group Adferiad are currently commissioned to support a service user 
involvement group in Bridgend.  This group enables service users to express their 
views on the provision of substance misuse services and comment on the work of the 
APB and Bridgend Development Group. There are similar groups in other parts of the 
Cwm Taf region which also feed into the APB arrangements.  The work will be 
strengthened under the new integrated contract requirements.   

 
4.13 The APB Commissioning team will work closely with the commissioned provider, 

BCBC and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board throughout the 
implementation phase.   
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect on the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules as a result of the 

recommissioning exercise to be undertaken by the ABP regional commissioning team 
employed by RCTCBC. Rule 3.1.5 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) 
provides an exemption from the requirements of the Council’s CPRs where goods, 
services and works are procured by another public body on behalf of the Council. In 
such instances, and subject to compliance with procurement law, the procuring public 
body’s procurement / contract procedure rules will apply.  

  
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1   An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. 
It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal. 

 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 By taking steps to shift the focus of approach from treatment to prevention, and 

focussing on improving the health and wellbeing of individuals and families, we are 
supporting the delivery of the Governments wellbeing objectives in “Prosperity for all: 
The National strategy”. 

 
7.2 The links to the Welsh Government “A Healthier Wales, our Plan for Health and Social 

Care” can be evidenced in the partnership working arrangements between Heath, 
Social Care and other agencies to provide a holistic care and treatment plan for 
service users.  The integrated service is person centred, with a public health 
approach, an emphasis on harm reduction, prevention and treatment, and sustained 
recovery.  

 

Page 42



7.3 The Welsh Government National Substance Misuse Delivery Plan and the CTM Local 
Delivery Plan aligns to 5 ways of working in the Wellbeing of Future Generation Act 
2015.  Throughout the priorities and commitments in the plans, there is a focus on 
having a long-term impact on individuals and families, prevention of substance 
misuse is a key priority throughout the plan.  Effective working requires 
collaboration, involvement and integration, which are evident throughout the 
actions in the plans.   

 
These principles and priorities are replicated in the service specification for the 
integrated service.   

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 Substance misuse services are financed through two Welsh Government funding 

streams: 
 

 The Substance Misuse Action Fund (SMAF): £4M; (Annual) - £1,038,982 is 
allocated specifically for the Bridgend area  
The Local Health Board ring-fenced substance misuse allocation: £3.5M 
(Annual)  

 BCBC currently provides an annual partner contribution of £139,189 which has 
been confirmed as a future commitment, therefore there is no additional financial 
implication for the Council. 

 The annual allocation for Tier 1 and 2 services that are subject to the procurement 
exercise is set at £467,055.  Tenderers will be notified of this budget and asked 
to submit proposals that maximise their service delivery based on this funding.    

  
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

 note the work that has been undertaken to transition substance misuse 
services from the former Western Bay APB to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg APB;  

 

 approve RCTCBC to undertake the procurement exercise to commission the 
integrated service provider for Tier 1 and 2 substance misuse service provision 
in Bridgend County Borough in accordance rule 3.1.5 of the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules, with approval to award the service contract via delegated 
powers (under BCBC’s Scheme of Delegation) once the procurement and 
evaluation process has been undertaken; and 

 

 approve BCBC entering into a regional collaboration agreement with RCTCBC 
to set out the responsibilities of each Local Authority for the initial procurement 
process and contract management of the service contract. 

 

 to delegate authority to the Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing, 
in consultation with the Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer and 
Chief Officer - Legal, HR and Regulatory Services, to agree the terms of and 
enter into the regional collaboration agreement and any documents or deeds 
ancillary to that agreement. 

Page 43



 
Claire Marchant 
Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing  
September 2021                         
 

 Contact Officer: Jackie Davies 
Head of Adult Social Care 

Telephone:  (01656) 642121 
 E-mail:  jacqueline.davies@bridgend.gov.uk  

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, Civic Offices, Bridgend, 
CF31 4WR 

 
 Contact Officer: Ceri Ford 

Lead Officer for the CTM APB  
Telephone:  (01443) 425612 

 E-mail:  Ceri.A.Ford@rctcbc.gov.uk 
Postal Address Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, Ty Elai, 

Williamstown, CF40 1NY 
  
Background documents:  
 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Page 44

mailto:jacqueline.davies@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:Ceri.A.Ford@rctcbc.gov.uk


 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 
 

TRANSFORMING TOWNS (TT) PROGRAMME IMPLEMENTATION 
2021-2022 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the former Targeted 

Regeneration Investment (TRI) programme and seek approval from Cabinet to 
progress TRI’s successor programme - Transforming Towns (TT) within the County 
Borough.  

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:- 
 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 
 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services. Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Welsh Government’s (WG) TT programme is an extension of the 2018-2021 TRI 

Programme and takes a wider approach to regeneration by allowing Local 
Authorities to widen their boundary areas and the interventions it can support and 
undertake. Importantly, it continues the ambitions of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the priorities identified in Local Well-being Plans 
and other local and regional plans for enhancing economic regeneration and 
community well-being.  

 
3.2      To date the Regeneration team has secured circa £2.7 million via the TRI          

…..programme to .support the following projects: 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



 

TRI Grant 
Element 

Project Applicant / 
Match Funder 

Status 

Strategic  11 Nolton Street: 
Construction of the ground 
floor 

Coastal Housing 
Group 

Complete 

Strategic Acquisition and Demolition of 
the police station site at 
Cheapside 

BCBC Ongoing- 
via TT 

Thematic 
Urban Centre 
Property 
Enhancement 
/ Living 
Grants  
(UCPEF 
/UCLG) 

27 Caroline Street, Bridgend 
(Adventure Rooms) 

Private 
Landowner 

Complete 

2 Station Hill, Bridgend 
(Racoon Hair) 

Private 
Landowner 

Complete 

67 Nolton Street, Bridgend Private 
Landowner 

Complete 

11 Nolton Street, Bridgend 
(La Cocina and Rye and 
Cane) 

Leaseholder Complete 

38-40 Commercial Street, 
Maesteg 
(Former Family Value 
Building) 

Private 
Landowner 

Ongoing 
via TT 

15 Talbot Street, Maesteg 
(Former Natwest Building) 

Private 
Landowner 

Ongoing 
via TT 

24 Talbot Street, Maesteg 
(Talbot Dental Practice) 

Private 
Landowner 

Ongoing 
via TT 

Coity Castle Pub, Bridgend Private 
Landowner 

Ongoing 
via TT 

5 Dunraven Place, Bridgend Private 
Landowner 

Ongoing 
via TT 

Covid 
Outdoor 
Improvements 
Grant  

17 Properties supported in 
Bridgend, Maesteg and 
Porthcawl Town Centres 

Private 
landlords / 
leaseholders 

Complete 

Green 
Infrastructure 

Maesteg Town Centre: 
Commercial Street 

BCBC Ongoing- 
via TT 

Green 
Infrastructure 

Sunnyside Re-development 
project 

Linc Cymru Ongoing- 
via TT 

Development 
Funding 

Bridgend Town Centre 
Masterplan 

BCBC  Complete 

Revenue 
Funding 

Town Centre management 
projects 

BCBC Complete  

 

Regeneration officers are working with several landowners / leaseholders within the 
county boroughs 3 town centres with the aim of supporting projects through the TT 
programme going forward.  

3.3    The TT programme is intended to run initially until March 2022, with possible 
extension, and will look to invest in projects which can deliver realistic economic 
and community outcomes. Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) will be 
looking to deliver these outcomes over the 2021-2022 financial year.  

 

Page 46



 

3.4  In June 2019 Cabinet approved the implementation of the TRI programme in 
Bridgend. WG has encouraged an extension to the regional approach to TT 
regeneration, in line with the SLA put in place via the TRI programme, thus, taking 
opportunities to work with partner authorities and agencies to deliver more targeted, 
localised projects. Under the TRI programme BCBC forms part of the South East 
region together with Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council, Caerphilly County 
Borough Council, Cardiff Council, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, 
Monmouthshire County Council, Newport City Council, Torfaen County Borough 
Council, Vale of Glamorgan County Borough Council and Rhondda Cynon Taff 
County Borough Council.  

 
3.5    BCBC Project Board with representatives from Regeneration, Legal, Finance and 

Planning, with supporting work stream groups, was established at the beginning of 
the TRI programme and this is proposed to continue throughout the TT programme.  

 
4. Current Situation/proposal  
 
4.1     Transforming Towns: Strategic Projects 
 
4.1.1  BCBC has been successful at securing £910,000 from the TT programme 2021-22, 

for the acquisition and demolition of the police station site at Cheapside. Officers 
are working in partnership with the Police and Bridgend College to progress the 
proposals for the site. 

 
4.2   Transforming Towns: Place Making Grant 
 
4.2.1  BCBC will continue to deliver the thematic projects in order to continue supporting 

project pipelines developed through the TRI Thematic 2018-21 scheme which 
require completion, whilst recognizing the additional eligible activity included in the 
TT Place Making Grant 2021-22. 

 
           Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC (RCT) will act as the lead body and will report to the 

Welsh Government and the South East Wales Regional Regeneration Board, which 
will comprise the Cardiff Capital Region Regeneration Board. RCT’s Terms & 
Conditions etc will be devolved to the other Local Authorities via a Service Level 
Agreement. 

 
           The Senior Responsible Officer will be RCT’s Regeneration Manager; the delivery 

team being RCT’s Regeneration Team, supported by the Corporate Finance Team. 
 
    A hybrid offer of interventions under the TT programme will allow the Authority to 

maximize support for revitalizing our town centres by addressing the following 
shared issues:  

  
o Dealing with vacant premises 
o Addressing poor quality retail premises 
o A need to increase footfall 
o Creating flexible, modern, affordable floor space for business growth and 

support 
o Supporting tourism 
o Increasing housing and urban living opportunities 
o Community facilities for co-location of key services 

Page 47



 

o Public realm and essential enabling infrastructure 
o Provision of Green infrastructure and Biodiversity in town centres 
o Furthering of the ‘digital towns’ agenda  
o Supporting active travel routes   

 

For BCBC it is proposed to include the county boroughs three Town Centres of 
Bridgend, Maesteg and Porthcawl. 

 
An operational group will be established to oversee the operation of the TT service 
level agreement. The operational group will meet at regular intervals (at least on a 
quarterly basis) to review projects, share information and best practice, share 
progress, resolve joint issues and escalate serious risks. Each authority will be 
entitled to vote on decisions within the operation group’s remit and such decisions 
will be decided by a simple majority of the members of the operational group 
present. It is proposed that the Prinicpal Regeneration Officer be appointed as 
BCBC partner representative on the TT operational group. 

 
4.3     Transforming Towns: Business Fund 
 
4.3.1  BCBC has been successful at securing £1,166,000 to be shared with        
          the other South East Local Authorities in 2021-22 to bring projects under the   
          following headings to fruition within the Town Centres: 
 

o Meanwhile Projects  
o Events and Marketing  
o Digital Support 

 
4.4  Grant Finances  
 
4.4.1 Transforming Towns: Strategic Projects 
 
4.4.2 Police Station Site (Cheapside): 

Led by BCBC in collaboration with Bridgend College, a TT funding award was 
approved to the value of £910,000 for the acquisition and demolition of the Police 
Station site within Bridgend Town Centre.  

 
4.4.3   Regeneration officers are working with landowners to progress other strategic 

projects within the Town Centre that may be eligible for TT funding, however no 
formal applications have been submitted due to the early stage of project 
development and discussion. 

 
4.5     Transforming Towns: Place Making Projects 
 
4.5.1   An award of funding has been secured from Welsh Government to the South East   

Local Authorities to support TT Place Making projects by March 2022 to the value of 
£5,540,000. There is not an equal financial split across the 10 Local Authorities. 
Local Authorities are to bid into the funding when projects are ready to go. 

 
4.6    Transforming Towns: Business Fund 
 
4.6.1   An award of funding has been secured from Welsh Government to the South East  

Page 48



 

Local Authorities to support TT Business Fund projects by March 2022 to the value 
of £1,166,000. There is not an equal financial split across the 10 Local Authorities. 
Local Authorities are to bid into the funding when projects are ready to go. 

 
4.7.    Risks and issues 
 
 There are a number of risks and issues which Cabinet need to be aware of in 

deciding whether to continue with the programme.  Many of these are common to all 
local authorities who have submitted successful bids, but nonetheless, in the 
present local government financial context, these must be fully understood. 

 

  Place Making and Business Fund: There is not a set amount allocated to 
each South East Local Authority. As such projects will only be awarded 
when ready to go and if funding is available. Robust monitoring by both 
BCBC and RCT officers is required. Any cost to grant applicants until grant 
is awarded is at their own risk.  
 

  Due to the nature of the projects and the various potential eligible elements 
that the grant could offer, we cannot fully assess the costs of each individual 
property improvement until we have received the breakdown of intended 
works. As such the spending profile may be subject to change along with the 
outputs/outcomes. There is a risk of cost overrun on some projects, and a 
risk that we will be unable to claim the required amounts from WG to cover 
costs this financial year. 

 

  There may be insufficient take up of grants. Officers will be actively 
marketing this project and will be canvassing all eligible properties within the 
town centre. For properties that are vacant, land registry searches will be 
undertaken and the landowners will be contacted directly. 

 

  There is a risk that the defrayment evidence required for the release of grant 
monies is not forthcoming or correct from third party grant recipients. If 
BCBC are not satisfied with the evidence received then the grant will not be 
paid. To avoid this, regular liaison with grant recipients is required to ensure 
that all parties are aware of their obligations. 

 
4.8     Next Steps  
 
4.8.1  Cabinet will need to consider the above proposals and determine whether to 

approve its implementation within the County Borough. If the decision is made to 
proceed, the next step is for BCBC to: 

 
o Sign the revised SLA agreement with RCT and begin approval and 

dissemination of grants to applicants for the place making projects.  
 

o Allow the award of grant to other parties as part of strategic and business 
fund projects. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no direct impact on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules. 
 

Page 49



 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1  An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. 
It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal. 
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications  
 
7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment is annexed to 

the report. A summary of the key elements are as follows: 
 

 Long Term: The regeneration planned for Bridgend’s Town Centres as 
part of the TT programme will drive local prosperity, providing local 
employment opportunities and offering better environments to promote 
the health and wellbeing of those who live, work and visit town centres in 
the long term. 

 

 Prevention:  By improving the commercial, office and residential 
developments in the town centres it will strengthen the existing economic 
assets while diversifying its economic base. Converting unused or 
underutilized commercial space into economically productive property 
also helps boost the profitability of the district  

 

 Integration: The TT programme will focus on delivering a set of physical, 
commercial and social improvements though re-developing vacant, poor 
quality, under used or derelict building and premises. This will generate 
employment opportunities; provide prominent and suitable locations for 
commercial and retail use and sustain local shopping areas, increase 
town centre footfall and make available suitable town centre housing.  

 

 Collaboration: The project will allow property owners, lessees and RSL’s 
to access funding which will allow them to tackle poor quality and 
unattractive properties; offering these properties a new lease of life and 
therefore enhancing the physical appearance of the shopping offer, 
streetscape and public realm.  

 

 Involvement: Investing in a community offers a means to connect with 
local stakeholders. Strong, resilient communities will reinforce the 
regional and Welsh culture which is a key feature in promoting visits and 
tourists to the area. 

 
8. Financial Implications   
 
8.1 Welsh Government have awarded the following the following grants for spend in 

2021-2022: 
 

Transforming 
Towns 
Elements 

Projects WG Funding  Comments 

Strategic 
Projects 

Police Station Site 
(Cheapside) Acquisition 

£910,000 Full WG Funding secured  

Page 50



 

and Demolition: 

Place Making 
Projects 

Various Bridgend, 
Porthcawl & Maesteg 
Town Centres 

£5,540,000 WG funding to be shared 
between the 10 South East Local 
Authorities 

Business Fund Various Bridgend, 
Porthcawl & Maesteg 
Town Centres 

£1,166,000 WG funding to be shared 
between the 10 South East Local 
Authorities 

 
8.2 BCBC, private and third sector will be match funding into the above grant streams.   
 
8.3  Match funding for grant for all TT projects will be signed off by the Chief Finance 

Officer under the grants policy. 
 
9. Recommendations 
 

Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

9.1 Approve the outline proposals for the delivery of TT in Bridgend town centres, as 
set out in section 4 of the report. 

 
9.2      Note and accept the risks and issues highlighted in paragraph 4.7. 
 
9.3    Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to accept the TRI grant on behalf of the 

Authority.   
 
9.4     Delegate authority to the Director of Communities, in consultation with the Interim 

Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change and Chief Officer - Legal, HR 
and Regulatory Services, to:  

 
9.4.1 negotiate and enter into the revised service level agreement with 

Rhondda Cynon Taff; and 
 
9.4.2 approve any extension or amendment to the service level agreement and 

to enter into any further deeds and documents which are ancillary to 
service level agreement. 

 
9.5     Delegate authority to the Group Manager, Regeneration, to award the TT place  
             making and Business Grants.    
           
9.6 Approve the appointment of the Principal Regeneration Officer to sit as BCBC 

partner representative on the TT operational group.  
 
Janine Nightingale 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
11th August 2021 

 
Contact Officer:  Laura Willcox, Principal Regeneration Officer 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 815203 
 
E-mail:  Laura.Willcox@Bridgend.gov.uk 
 

Page 51



 

Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council, Communities Directorate, Angel 
Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: 
 

1. Transforming Towns Programme South ST Wales Place Making Grant- Award of 
Funding Letter 
 

2. Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme implementation – 18th June 2019 
Cabinet Report  

Page 52



 

 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
14th SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES  

 
SMALL BUSINESS RESEARCH INITIATIVE CONTRACT NOVATION 

 

1. Purpose of Report. 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval to waive the council’s Contract 

Procedure Rules in accordance with CPR 3.2.9.4 in respect of the contract with 

PassivSystems Limited for Phase 2 for the Small Business Research Initiative and to 

enter into a Deed of Novation to novate that contract from PassiSystems Limited to 

Passiv UK Limited. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-   

 
1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy– taking steps to make the 

county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county borough. 
 

2. Smarter use of resources– ensure that all its resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.   

 
3. Background. 
 
3.1 In February 2019 Cabinet approved the Bridgend Local Area Energy Strategy and 

Smart Energy Plan.  The strategy provides the vision for how heat could be 
decarbonised across Bridgend County Borough in line with UK Government carbon 
reduction targets. 

 
3.2 The Smart Energy Plan contains several project ideas to be developed over the 

period 2019 – 2025 which will provide the evidence base for the decarbonisation of 
Bridgend County Borough in line with the Local Area Energy Strategy.  The projects 
are divided into Deployment and Innovation projects.  Innovation Project 4 “Affordable 
Urban Heat Networks” is seeking to identify innovative ways in which the cost of heat 
networks can be reduced. 

 
3.3 In order to develop the idea BCBC submitted a proposal to Welsh Government 

through their Small Business Research Initiative (SBRI) to run an innovation 
competition (over two phases – Feasibility and Demonstration) to allow innovators in 
the market to come forward with ideas around how heat networks could be developed 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

at a lower cost to current market conditions.  The proposal was approved and BCBC 
were awarded £200,000 of funding to run a Phase 1 competition (with an opportunity 
for further funding to be available for Phase 2 should the project successfully deliver 
Phase 1) that would invite innovative proposals from the market to reduce the cost of 
developing, building or operating heat network projects. 

 
3.4 BCBC ran a competition in the autumn of 2019 and appointed 4 organisations to 

develop their ideas as part of Phase 1 of the SBRI process.  The appointed 
organisations were: 

 

 PassivSystems 

 Nordic Heat 

 Energy Systems Catapult 

 London South Bank University (consortium lead) 

3.5 The projects were originally scheduled to run from January – June 2020 but due to 
the Covid-19 pandemic it was decided to extend the contracts until December 2020 
to ensure suffient time for the Phase 1 feasibility studies to be completed.  All four 
studies were successfully completed. 

 
3.6 Welsh Government made a further £500,000 of grant funding available for Phase 2 

and BCBC invited all the companies involved in Phase 1 to submit proposals for 
Phase 2 of the SBRI competition.  Nordic Heat, PassivSystems and ICAX (member 
of the consortium led by London South Bank University) all submitted bids in February 
2021.  The bids were evaluated by a panel comprised of BCBC and Welsh 
Government representatives and it was decided that PassivSystems and ICAX would 
be awarded contracts (£250,000 per organisation) to demonstrate their project ideas 
as part of a Phase 2.   
 

4. Current situation / proposal. 
 
4.1 PassivSystems were awarded the contract to deliver their demonstration project as 

part of Phase 2 of the SBRI in March 2021.  PassivSystems were, however placed 
into administration in April 2021.  On the 21st April 2021 PassivSystems were 
acquired by Passiv UK.  

 
4.2 As a consequence of this acquisition, Passiv UK have requested that the contract 

with PassivSystems be novated to Passiv UK Limited. 
 
4.3 The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) 3.2.9.4 provides that a contract can 

be modified without requiring a new procurement procedure where: 
“a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially awarded the 
Contract as a consequence of: 
… 
(ii) universal or partial succession into the position of the initial Contractor, following 
corporate restructuring, including takeover, merger, acquisition or insolvency, of 
another economic operator that fulfils the criteria for qualitative selection initially 
established, provided that this does not entail other substantial modifications to the 
Contract and is not aimed at circumventing the application of the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015;” 

 

Page 54



 

4.4 The Council has completed due diligience on Passiv UK Limited to ensure that they 
fulfill the criteria for qualitative selection initially established for the tender. Passiv UK 
Limited completed and returned the criteria for the initial qualitative selection and it 
was considered that they fulfilled those requirements. The overall nature of the 
contract will not be altered by this novation and there will not be any substantial 
modifications to this Contract. 

 
4.5 As the value of the contract is over £100,000, Cabinet approval is required to waiver 

the CPRs. 
 
4.6 It is therefore proposed that the Council waives the requirement to obtain quotations 

or tender under Contract Procedure Rule 3.2.9.4, and enter into a Deed of Novation 
to novate the contract from PassivSystems Limited to Passiv UK Limited to deliver 
Phase 2 of the SBRI Affordable Urban Heat Networks Project.   

 
5. Effect upon Policy Framework& Procedure Rules. 
 
5.1 This report is requesting a waiver of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 Implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in 
Wales, with five ways of working to guide how the Council should work to deliver 
wellbeing outcomes for people.  The Council must act in a manner which seeks to 
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of 
future generations to meet their own needs.   

 
7.2 The SBRI project addresses the five ways of working under the Act through: 

 

 Involvement: The SBRI project will introduce innovation into the heat network 

sector providing the Council with new tools to develop a decarbonised heat 

system that meets the UK Net Zero decarbonisation targets in line with 

BCBC’s Local Area Energy Strategy. 

 Long Term: The aim of the SBRI is to identify new ways of developing and 

operating heat network projects which will have a positive long term impact on 

the sector, with the desired aim of reducing costs and increasing the viability 

of projects. 

 Prevention: The SBRI will provide new key innovations that it is anticipated 

will help facilitate the successful development of heat network projects within 

Page 55



 

Bridgend in line with the Local Area Energy Strategy helping to achieve a Net 

Zero Bridgend.   

 Integration: The SBRI will support innovation within the heat network sector 

aiding the Council to develop projects that will achieve carbon reductions 

within its own estate and across the County Borough, reduced whole life cost 

of heat (capital and revenue) and create economic opportunities through a 

clearly identified value chain for the area.   

 Collaboration: The SBRI involves collaboration between a number of 

stakeholders within Bridgend (e.g. the Council, private sector, social housing 

providers etc.) to achieve its outcomes, which it is intended will have a positive 

impact on the heat network sector.  

8. Financial Implications. 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications.  Phase 2 costs remain the same and will be 

delivered through the Welsh Government grant for Phase 2 of the SBRI project.  
The grant has been accepted by the Council. 

 
9. Recommendation. 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

 Authorises the waiver of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to allow the 

modification of the existing contract with PassivSystems Limited in relation to Phase 

2 of the Small Business Research Initiative by consenting to the novation of that 

contract to Passiv UK limited in accordance with Rule 3.2.9.4; 

 delegates authority to the Corporate Director Communities to approve the final terms 

of the Deed of Novation required to novate the contract from PassivSystems Limited 

to Passiv UK Limited and enter into that Deed of Novation in consultation with the 

Interim Chief Officer, Finance, Performance and Change and Section 151 Officer, 

and Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory Services and to arrange execution of 

the Deed of Novation on behalf of the Council, subject to such delegated authority 

being exercised in consultation with the Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory 

Services.   

Janine Nightingale  
Corporate Director Communities 
8th September 2021 

 
Contact Officer: Michael Jenkins 

Decarbonisation Programme Manager 
 

Telephone:  (01656) 643179 
 
E-mail:  Michael.jenkins@bridgend.gov.uk  
 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
 

Page 56



 

Background documents 
 
None 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

JOINT REPORT TO CABINET 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT AND THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 

SCHOOL MODERNISATION 

MUTUAL INVESTMENT MODEL AND LAND AT PLAS MORLAIS 

1.  Purpose of report 

1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to:    

 submit the Mutual Investment Model (MIM) Stage 1 application to the 
Welsh Education Partnership Co (WEPco); and 

 

 proceed with the required land transactions in order to facilitate the 
development of schools in this location.  
 

1.2 This will include the completion of an option agreement with Valleys to Coast 
(V2C) in respect of the intended use of the former Glan-yr-Afon Resource 
Centre; together with instructing solicitors to commence proceedings to acquire 
the Plas Morlais site from V2C; and to prepare contract documents for the 
disposal of Afon-Y-Felin Primary School site to V2C at an agreed price at a 
future date.   
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate 

priorities 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

Supporting a successful sustainable economy - taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county borough.  

 
Smarter use of resources - ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 

2.2 On 3 March 2015, Cabinet approval was received for the Council to adopt 

revised principles as a framework for school organisation in Bridgend. Five key 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



 
 

principles were set out to inform the organisation and modernisation of our 

schools.  These are: 

 commitment to high standards and excellence in provision; 

 equality of opportunity, so that all pupils can access quality learning 
opportunities, regardless of which school they attend; 

 inclusive schools, which cater for the learning needs of all their pupils; 

 community-focused schools, where the school actively engages with its 
local community; and 

 value for money. 
 

2.3 The Policy and Planning Framework sets out 17 areas where these principles 

should be applied in practice. 

2.4 The principles which are particularly relevant in the context of Band B are: 
 

 the size of primary schools (to ensure that “all Bridgend’s primary schools 
are large enough to make the full range of necessary provision”); and  
 

 value for money, efficiency and effectiveness (“narrowing the gap between 
the most and the least expensive provision currently”). 

3. Background 

3.1 A revised Band B Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) was submitted to Welsh 
Government (WG) in July 2017. In October 2017, Cabinet was presented with 
a report detailing the outcome of the completed strategic review in relation to 
school modernisation, and gave approval to discontinue the original Band B 
schemes approved in November 2010. Cabinet also approved the revised 2017 
Band B SOP, which detailed the following projects to be taken forward: 

 Bridgend North East (primary)  

 Bridgend South East (primary) 

 Bridgend West – Welsh-medium (primary) 

 Bridgend West – English-medium (primary) 

 Bridgend Special School  
 

3.2 On 6 December 2017, the WG Department for Education gave ‘approval in 
principle’ for Bridgend’s second wave of investment, which had an estimated 
programme envelope cost of £68.2m.   

3.3 The MIM was formally launched by WG on 28 February 2017 and is a platform 
for delivery of the ‘Taking Wales Forward’ agenda. MIM has been designed to 
finance major capital projects due to a scarcity of capital funding. It is based on 
traditional Public Private Partnership structures, but with the following core 
principles embedded: 

 an emphasis on wider community benefits; 

 enhanced stakeholder involvement; 

Page 60



 
 

 public sector equity investment;  

 no soft services; and 

 effective and efficient contract management by the public sector. 

3.4  The MIM is intended to support additional investment in social and economic 
infrastructure projects and help to improve public services in Wales. Under the 
MIM the private sector partners will build and maintain public assets and, in 
return, the Council, supported by funding from the Welsh Government, will pay 
a fee to the private partner, which will cover the cost of construction, 
maintenance and financing the project. At the end of the contract the asset 
reverts to the Council. 

3.5 WG has procured a private sector partner to work with it on the delivery of 
education and community facilities in Wales, through the MIM process, under 
the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Programme. The private sector partner 
and a subsidiary of the Development Bank of Wales have formed the Welsh 
Education Partnership Co (WEPco), and will deliver revenue funded 
infrastructure services. 

3.6 In March 2019, following WG’s review of the MIM funding option in relation to 
its suitability for delivering certain schemes and their revised intervention rates, 
Cabinet determined that two primary school schemes should be delivered via 
this funding model. Legal Services were instructed to review WG’s MIM 
documentation and, upon conclusion, confirmed that the safest option for the 
authority in progressing schemes via MIM would be to confirm a willingness to 
be named in the contract notice. A letter of intent was duly signed by the then 
Interim Chief Executive and submitted to WG. 

 
3.7 In January 2020, Cabinet was advised that WG had published the MIM contract 

notice on 9 July 2019 via Sell2Wales (and OJEU) and had shortlisted bidders 
and in October 2019, WG had commenced dialogue with three companies with 
a view to appointing one as the MIM Private Sector Delivery Partner (PSDP). 
Cabinet formally approved that the two Bridgend West schemes would be 
funded via MIM. 

3.8  Subsequently, in July 2020, Cabinet was advised of WG’s appointment in 
respect of the preferred bidder and approval was received for the Council to 
enter into a Strategic Partnering Agreement with other participants and WEPco. 

3.9 WG approved the Strategic Outline Case for the two Bridgend West schemes 
in November 2020 and, in December, Council approval was received to include 
funding in the capital programme for the purchase of land at Plas Morlais in 
order to support the English-medium element of the project. 

3.10 In June 2021, following a statutory consultation process under the School 
Organisation Code in respect of the two Bridgend West proposals, Cabinet 
determined to approve the two proposals (ie to discontinue Afon Y Felin and 
Corneli Primary Schools and establish a new two form-entry English-medium 
primary school on the Plas Morlais site, and to enlarge Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr 

Page 61



 
 

to a two form-entry FE, to be located on the Corneli Primary School/Ysgol Y 
Ferch O’r Sgêr site).  

3.11 In respect of the associated land transactions, Cabinet and Council approval 
was given in December 2020 for the inclusion within the Capital Programme of 
the amounts required for the acquisition of the Plas Morlais site from V2C within 
2021-2022.  Approval was also received to include the future sale of the Afon-
Y-Felin primary school site to V2C and Glan-yr-Afon as part of this three 
property transaction.  V2C have confirmed a commitment to these transactions 
and are working with BCBC officers to bring them forward.  

4.  Current situation/proposal  

 Mutual Investment Model 

4.1 Formal approval to proceed to deliver any new project and to enter into 
associated legal documentation to facilitate the same, including a Project 
Agreement (Stage 1), requires Cabinet approval. 

4.2 The schemes are now at the stage where a Stage 1 application to WEPco 
needs to be submitted. Following receipt WEPco will consider the application 
and determine whether it can be accepted as a ‘new project’. If accepted, the 
design development process for the new schools will commence. 

 Land at Plas Morlais 
 
4.3 Following an extensive site search and feasibility exercise for the proposed 

replacement schools in the West, neighbouring land at Plas Morlais, owned by 
V2C, has been identified for development of one of the new Schools, with the 
existing site shared by Corneli Primary School and Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr as 
the other.  

 
4.4 The principle of the land transaction is based upon a ‘swap’ deal with V2C, 

whereby BCBC exchange the Afon-Y Felin Primary School site for V2C’s Plas 
Morlais site, however the sequencing and payments related to the two elements 
of the ‘swap’ are unable to be aligned as the Afon-Y-Felin Primary School site 
cannot be sold until the completion of the new school development, and the 
new school site has to be acquired ahead of the new school development.  On 
this basis, it is agreed that the Council will acquire the Plas Morlais site upfront, 
ahead of realisation of the capital receipt for the Afon-Y-Felin Primary School 
site.   
 

4.5 A jointly instructed valuation of both sites has been undertaken by the District 
Valuer and has returned values for both sites as reported in December. The 
reported values indicate a difference in value in favour of the Plas Morlais site, 
being valued higher based on size and anticipated development densities.  

 
4.6 In order to account for the difference in values, Cabinet has agreed that Glan-

yr-Afon, Ynysawdre could be incorporated into the ‘land swap’.  The District 
Valuer has valued this site in its current condition and agreement has been 
reached with V2C that will see them take an immediate option agreement on 
Glan-Yr-Afon at the District Valuer valuation, whilst the acquisition agreement 

Page 62



 
 

for Plas Morlais is concluded.  This will allow V2C to bring forward much needed 
redevelopment plans for the Glan-yr-Afon site forthwith.  

 
4.7 The sequencing and timing of the property transactions within the Capital 

Programme are proposed as:  
 

 BCBC acquires the V2C Land at Plas Morlais – Q4 2021 (subject to a 
successful outcome of the consultation process via the School Organisation 
Code). 
 

 V2C acquires Glan-yr-Afon – Q4 2022 (with an option agreement in place 
by Q3 2021 to secure V2C commitment to acquire the land). 
 

 V2C acquires the BCBC Afon-y-Felin Primary School site – Q1 2025 (giving 
BCBC 6 months to vacate). 

 
4.8 We are now in a position to complete the option agreement on Glan-yr-Afon 

and instruct the BCBC Legal Team to commence the acquisition of the Plas 
Morlais Site and the advance disposal contracts for Afon-Y-Felin Primary 
School Site in readiness of the Stage 1 WEPco decision.  

 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 

 

6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out as part of the consultation 

stage and was published as part of the consultation document. The assessment 

concluded that the proposal is unlikely to impact disproportionately on any 

protected group. Having reviewed responses to the consultation, the conclusion 

remains valid. 

 

7.    Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 

 

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 has been considered 

in formulating the proposal and the assessment was published in the 

consultation report.   

 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides 

a comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation 

of the service.   

Long-term       Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and 

promote the Welsh language. 

 

Page 63



 
 

Prevention     Councils have a statutory duty to ensure there are a sufficient supply 

of school places, and these schemes will safeguards the Council’s 

position in terms of any potential legal challenge in this regard. 

Integration Providing sufficient places ensures that the curriculum can be 

delivered and meets social, environmental and cultural objectives.   

Collaboration The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn and with the 

Central South Consortium (CSC), health, community councils and 

many internal and external partners to ensure that the building 

meets the short-term and future needs of the users and the 

community which it will serve. 

Involvement This area of work involves the engagement of all potential 

stakeholders including Cabinet, members, governors, staff, pupils, 

community internal and external partners which will include third 

sector organisations. 

It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 

the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

8. Financial implications 

8.1 If the proposal does go ahead and is implemented, then the cost of the new 

schools will be funded via an annual charge to the revenue budget, over a 25-

year period, which will need to be built into the MTFS as a budget pressure. 

Early estimates are that this could be in the region of £500k per annum, but this 

will be determined as the scheme progresses. The cost is based on a Welsh 

Government intervention rate for MIM schemes of 81%, with the authority 

funding 19% of the annual costs, plus 35% of any up-front capital investment 

for ICT and furniture and equipment.  

8.2 The running costs of the new schools would be met from within the Delegated 

Schools’ Budget as is currently the case. It is too early to say whether there will 

be efficiency savings or additional costs from the proposed new schools, and 

future reports to Cabinet will outline the financial implications, as they are 

known, in more detail. 

8.3 In December 2020, Council approved the inclusion of the land purchase costs 

related to the Band B Programme within the Capital Programme.  This included 

the land transactions at Plas Morlais, Glan-yr-Afon and Afon-Y-Felin.  In 

addition to the purchase costs there will be an overall acquisition legal fee cost 

in the region of £50k and Land Transaction Tax to be payable for each 

acquisition. It is anticipated that these fees will be funded via approved budgets 

already included within the capital programme, however should additional funds 

be required a further request to Council will be made for inclusion within the 

Capital Programme as soon as possible.  

8.4 The potential capital receipts were included within the December 2020 Cabinet 

and Council reports.  The only difference currently is that V2C have agreed to 

Page 64



 
 

pay an additional £5,000 for Glan-yr-Afon based on the option deposit amount 

being lowered in exchange.    

9. Recommendations 

9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 approves the Stage 1 submission to WEPco; and  
 

 approves the option agreement of Glan-Yr-Afon to V2C as part of the 
overall ‘land swap’ agreement and to authorise officers to progress 
contracts for the acquisition of the land at Plas Morlais from V2C and the 
future sale of Afon-Y-Felin Primary School to V2C at the agreed values, 
ensuring the Council obtains best consideration in line with section 123 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 in line with Land Transaction Protocols.  

 
Lindsay Harvey  
CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT  
 
Janine Nightingale  
CORPORATE DIRECTOR – COMMUNITIES 
 
14 September 2021 
 
Contact Officer: Nicola Echanis 

Head of Education and Early Help 
 

Telephone:  (01656) 642611 
 
E-mail:  nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Contact Officer:  Justin Kingdon 
   Strategic Asset Management and Investment Manager 

 
Telephone:  (01656) 642714 
 
E-mail:  justin.kingdon@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Education and Family Support Directorate 

   Bridgend County Borough Council 
   Civic Offices 
   Angel Street 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents 
 
Where appropriate, relevant papers are in the public domain 

Page 65

mailto:nicola.echanis@bridgend.gov.uk
mailto:justin.kingdon@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

REPORT TO CABINET 
14 SEPTEMBER 2021 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND FAMILY 

SUPPORT  

SCHOOL MODERNISATION  

PORTHCAWL WELSH-MEDIUM SEEDLING SCHOOL  

1.  Purpose of report 

1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to submit an expression of interest to 

Welsh Government (WG) in respect of the recently announced second 

tranche of the Welsh-medium Capital Grant. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy - taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county borough.  

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 

3. Background 

3.1 There is a duty on local authorities to promote the Welsh language and 
support WG’s Cymraeg 2050 ambition (ie whereby ‘the Welsh language is 
thriving, the number of speakers has reached a million, and it is used in every 
aspect of life’).  

 
3.2 In November 2018, the authority secured £2.6m of WG Capital Grant funding 

for the development of Welsh-medium childcare provision in strategic 
geographical areas of the county borough, in order to support the vision as 
detailed in paragraph 3.1 of this report. Four areas were identified for 
investment, one of which was Porthcawl.  

 
3.3 The Porthcawl Regeneration Scheme, as identified in the Local Development 

Plan, is being progressed, and as part of that scheme it is proposed that 
additional housing/apartments are delivered which will significantly contribute 
to the redevelopment of the area. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



 
 

 
3.4  The local authority has calculated the pupil yield arising from the planned 

development according to Supplementary Planning Guidance 16 and this has 
identified that additional education provision will be required to serve the area. 

 
3.5 On 21 January 2020, Cabinet gave ‘approval in principle’ to the development 

of a 1 form entry Welsh-medium school to serve the Porthcawl area as part of 
a future band of the school modernisation programme. The intention is that 
the new provision would be aligned to the development of the Porthcawl 
Regeneration scheme. 

 
4.  Current situation/proposal  
 
4.1 In order to promote the Welsh language and deliver on the Cabinet 

commitment within this part of the county borough, the need for an interim 
measure in the form of a Welsh-medium seedling school has been identified. 

 
4.2 In considering the Welsh-medium childcare provision (ie as detailed in 

paragraph 3.2 of this report) and supporting the transition from childcare into a 
formal Welsh-medium education, there are significant merits in co-locating 
both provisions. From an economic perspective, it would make the most 
efficient use of funding to co-locate childcare and seedling Welsh-medium 
provisions on a single site (since the associated economies of scale would 
mean that significant savings could be made as compared to providing 
separate provisions at disparate locations). Also, from a logistical perspective, 
it would be beneficial to parents/carers since there would be a natural 
progression from the childcare provision through to the seedling school. 

 
4.3 A desktop site options appraisal has been progressed for a co-located facility 

and the outcome will be reported in due course.  
 
4.4 Although the council currently has WG approved funding in place for the 

provision of the childcare facility, it does not currently have funding in place for 

a Welsh-medium seedling school.  

4.5 Corporate Landlord Department (ie the Major Projects Team) has provided an 

estimated cost for the provision of a combined Welsh-medium seedling school 

and childcare facility of £3.75m. As WG funding of £500k is already in place 

for the Welsh-medium childcare scheme, in order to deliver a scheme the 

shortfall would have to be met (ie £3.25m).  

4.6 On 11 March 2021 WG announced an additional £30m to develop Welsh-

medium education across Wales. The funding is a second tranche of 

investment from the Welsh-medium Capital Grant, established in 2018 to 

support capital projects dedicated to supporting and growing the use of the 

Welsh language in education. WG has asked local authorities to submit 

expressions of interest in the first instance and have advised that, in addition 

to the 100% capital grant funded, there may opportunities for revenue funding 

(ie of up to two years) to support capital projects. However, these will be 

assessed on a case-by-case basis. 

Page 68



 
 

4.7 Should the application for grant funding be successful, the establishment of a 

seedling school would require a statutory process under the School 

Organisation Code and would be dependent on future Cabinet decisions.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 

5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  

6.1 An initial EIA screening has identified that there would be no negative impact 

on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on socio-economic 

disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. It is therefore not necessary 

to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
7.    Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 

7.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 has been considered 

in formulating the proposal. 

 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides 

a comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation 

of the service.   

Long-term       Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and 

promote the Welsh language. 

Prevention     Councils have a statutory duty to ensure there are a sufficient supply 

of school places, and these schemes will safeguards the Council’s 

position in terms of any potential legal challenge in this regard. 

Integration Providing sufficient places ensures that the curriculum can be 

delivered and meets social, environmental and cultural objectives.  

Collaboration The local authority works effectively with schools, Estyn and with the 

Central South Consortium (CSC), health, community councils and 

many internal and external partners to ensure that the building 

meets the short-term and future needs of the users and the 

community which it will serve. 

Involvement This area of work involves the engagement of all potential 

stakeholders including Cabinet, members, governors, staff, pupils, 

community, internal and external partners which will include third 

sector organisations. 

 

 

 

Page 69



 
 

  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 

the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

8. Financial implications 

8.1 The currently estimated cost for the provision of a combined Welsh-medium 

seedling school and childcare facility of £3.75m includes an element of £150k 

for anticipated highways works. The full extent of the highways work required 

for the proposed scheme will not be known until a Transport Assessment is 

undertaken at detailed design stage. WG currently only grant fund 

construction within the curtilage of development sites (ie they do not grant 

fund highways works falling beyond site boundaries). Consequently, BCBC 

would be required to fund any necessary highways works falling beyond the 

site boundary. A report will be submitted to Council at a later stage when the 

extent of any additional capital funding and additional revenue costs are 

known. 

9. Recommendation 

9.1     Cabinet is requested to give approval for an expression of interest to be 

submitted to WG in respect of the Welsh-medium Capital Grant in order to 

create a Welsh-medium seedling school in the Porthcawl area. 

Lindsay Harvey  
CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

14 September 2021 
 
Contact officer: Gaynor Thomas 

Schools Programme Manager 
 

Telephone:  (01656) 642626 
 
E-mail:  gaynor.thomas@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Education and Family Support Directorate 

   Bridgend County Borough Council 
   Civic Offices 
   Angel Street 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4WB 
 

Background documents:  

Relevant documents are already in the public domain. 

Page 70

mailto:gaynor.thomas@bridgend.gov.uk


 
 

 
BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO CABINET 

 
14 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 

 
SUSPENSION OF COUNCIL’S CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES AND AWARD OF 
CONTRACT FOR PARENT PARTNERSHIP SERVICES 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to: 

 

 continue service delivery of the existing parent partnership service, to allow for a 
fully complaint tender process to take place, including an adequate mobilisation 
period; 
 

 suspend the relevant parts of the Council’s contract procedure rules (CPRs) with 
regards to the requirement to re-tender the contract detailed in this report; and 

 

 authorise the Group Manager (Learner Support) to enter into a short-term 
contract with the current provider. 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective/objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient – 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC), through core budget, currently 

commissions a parent partnership service. Details of contract and service provision 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11



 
 

are set out below. 
 

3.2 Following a tender exercise in 2018, BCBC entered into a contract with SNAP 
Cymru for parent partnership services. The contract was commissioned from 1 May 
2018 for an initial one-year period, with an option to extend for a further one-year 
period of up to two years. Provision includes: 
 

 independent advice and support for parents/carers whose children have or may 
have  special educational needs in order to empower and enable parents/carers 
to play an informed and active role in their child’s education;  
 

 access to information, advice and guidance so parents/carers can make 
informed decisions; 
 

 a formal Disagreement Resolution Service; and 
 

 an independent advocacy service in accordance with the Child’s Right to Appeal 
to the Special Educational Needs Tribunal for Wales (SENTW). 
 

3.3 The contract commenced on 1 May 2018 and expired on 31 March 2021. The 
option to extend for a period of up to two years has been utilised. 
 

3.4 Extenuating circumstances, such as the COVID-19 pandemic and workforce 
capacity has resulted in delay in engaging in a compliant tender process, along with 
regard for a sufficient period of contract mobilisation. 
 

3.5 The current annual contract value is £26,391.07. This contract is funded from core 
budget within the Education and Family Support Directorate.  
 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The existing contract in relation to the parent partnership service ended on 31 

March 2021. Despite no contract being in place, the Service has continued to be 
provided by the contractor. The Council is required under its CPRs and Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 to re-tender for replacement service providers via a 
competitive procurement exercise. 

 
4.2  Immediate cessation of the contract would pose a risk to the ongoing delivery of 

 essential services to children and young people and their families.  
 

4.3  The current service provision has been reviewed, with performance monitoring 
undertaken to gather both qualitative and quantitative data around client need, 
demand for service and outcomes achieved. The positive impact on partnership with 
parents can be clearly demonstrated. Engagement and communication has taken 
place between BCBC and the current contract holder to ensure the service remains 
fit for purpose and can adequately meet the needs of children, young people and their 
families. 

 
4.4  To ensure service continuity and ensure that staffing disruptions likely to arise from 

the ending of contract is minimised, it is proposed that Cabinet suspends the relevant 
parts of the Council’s CPRs requiring a competitive procurement exercise in 
accordance with the requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and 

Page 72



 
 

agrees to the awarding of contract based on current contractual arrangements until 
 31 December 2021. The procurement milestones are attached at Appendix 1. 

 

4.5 Cabinet needs to be aware that in awarding this contract to SNAP Cymru, the Council 
is exposed to the risk of potential challenge from other providers of such services. 
The Council’s CPRs ensure that procurement exercises are lawful and carried out in 
compliance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 to satisfy principles of 
transparency, non-discrimination and equal treatment. This report proposes entering 
into a contract with SNAP Cymru without any competition. This proposal breaches 
the requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and requires Cabinet’s 
approval to set aside the Council’s CPRs.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 This report is requesting a suspension of the Council’s CPRs, but no amendment to 
 the CPRs is being sought. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.   

 
6.2       EIA screening – no impact identified 
           An initial EIA screening has identified that there would be no negative impact on 

those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on socio-economic 
disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. It is therefore not necessary to 
carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal. 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The report contributes to the following goals within the Wellbeing of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A globally responsive Wales 

7.2 The five ways of working have been considered in the preparation of this report and 
are summarised below: 

 Long term – Continued provision will allow for short term needs to be met, while 
the tender process is undertaken to provide long-term provision.  
 

 Prevention – Parent partnership services are preventative in nature and are 
designed to engage at an early stage and prevent any disputes escalating. 
  

Page 73



 
 

 Integration - Provision supports economic, social and cultural outcomes, both at 
an individual level and in wider communities. 
 

 Collaboration – Approval will allow time for BCBC to effectively engage with 
internal and external partners in a meaningful way.  
 

 Involvement – Decisions around commissioning activity and the tender process, 
will be achieved through effective partnership working, communication and 
collaboration.  

8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The current funding, set out in the existing contractual arrangements will continue. 
 
8.2 The current annual value of the parent partnership service contract is £26,391.07 

which is funded from core budget. 
 

9. Recommendation(s) 
 
9.1.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 

 approves the continuance of service delivery of the existing parent partnership 
service, to allow for a fully complaint tender process to take place;    
 

 suspend the relevant parts of the Council’s CPRs in respect of the requirement as 
to re-tendering of the proposed contract; and 

 

 authorise the Group Manager (Learner Support) to enter into contract for the 
provision of the parent partnership service until 31 December 2021. 

 
Lindsay Harvey 
Corporate Director (Education and Family Support) 
14 September 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Michelle Hatcher 

 Group Manager Learner Support 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 815258 
 
Email:   michelle.hatcher@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
Background documents 
 
None 
 
Attachments  
 
Appendix 1 Procurement Milestones – Tender Process 

Page 74



Appendix 1.  Milestones 

Activity / Milestone  
Family Partnership 
Services –  
B559/21 

Estimated Dates 
 

Ref B559/21 

Value £26,391.07 per annum 

Evaluation Criteria  80% Technical 20% 
Commercial  

Procurement to send 
TUPE information. 

 13 August 2021 

Develop specification 
and preparation of 
tender document 

W/C 16 August 2021 

Return of TUPE 
 

27 August 2021 
 

Final documents sent to 
procurement 

W/C 6 September 2021 

Cabinet Decision  14 September 2021 

Place notice 
 

27 September 2021 
 

Return of tenders 
 

11 October 2021 

Evaluate Qualification 
Envelope 
 

11 – 12 October 2021 

Opening of tenders 
(technical) 
 

13 October 2021 

Evaluate Technical  
 

14-15 October 2021 

Evaluate Technical as a 
panel 
 

18 -19  October 2021 

Interviews/ Presentation  28-29  October 2021 

Final evaluation and 
decision  
 

1 November 2021 

Delegated Powers to 
award  
 

3 November 2021 

Issue unsuccessful 
letters and intention to 
award letter  

4 November 2021 

End of standstill period 16  November  2021 

Issue Successful Letters  17 November  2021 

Mobilisation  18 November – 31 
December 2021 

Contract start date  1 January 2022 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 
 

WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to consult with stakeholders on the 

draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) from the 27 September 2021 for a 
period of  twelve  weeks. The outcome of the consultation will be reported back to 
Cabinet following the closure of the consultation. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Section 84 of The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 20131(“the 2013 

Act“) requires a local authority to prepare a Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (“the 
Plan”) and outlines that a plan must contain:  

 
a. A local authority’s proposals on how it will carry out its education functions to: 
 
i. Improve the planning of the provision of education through the medium of 

Welsh (“Welsh-medium education”) in its area; 
ii. Improve the standards of Welsh-medium education and of the teaching of 

Welsh in its area;  
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 12



b. The local authority’s targets for improving the planning of the provision of 
Welsh-medium education in its area and for improving the standards of that 
education and of the teaching of Welsh in its area;  
 

c. Report on the progress made to meet the targets contained in the                             
previous Plan or previous revised Plan.  

 
3.2 Cabinet first approved the Bridgend Local Authority WESP in March 2014 and it was 

subsequently approved by Welsh Government Department for Education and Skills 
(DfES) in June 2014.  The Plan has been reviewed and updated annually prior to 
seeking approval from Welsh Government. 
 

3.3 Following the rapid review commissioned by Welsh Government the timescales for 
publication of the WESP documents have been reviewed, as reported in Cabinet 
report (5 September 2017). 

 
3.4 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and Assessing the Demand (Wales)         

Regulations 20132 (“the 2013 Regulations”), were the first regulations made under         

the section 87 powers. The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 

2019 ("The 2019 Regulations") replace those regulations and make provision for a         

local authority to prepare a ten-year Plan, the first to have effect from 1 September         

2022, subject to the Welsh Ministers’ approval.  

3.5 The purpose of these regulations is to improve opportunities for local authorities to 
 plan Welsh-medium education provision in order to support the current and future 
expectation for growth in Welsh-medium education. Improving the planning of Welsh 
medium education will also support Welsh Government’s long-term national ambition 
for the Welsh language as set out in Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 2050: A Million 
Welsh speakers strategy, your strategy for promoting the Welsh language in 
accordance with the Promotion Standards under the Welsh Language Standards (No. 
1) Regulations 20155 and also the introduction of a new curriculum for Wales. 
 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Welsh Government issued new guidance for WESP, in August 2016.  There is a 

clear intent to link the work of the WESPs to the Welsh Language Standards and to 
drive local authorities towards Welsh Government’s stated aim of having one million 
Welsh speakers by 2050.  This template is the framework for the ten year WESP 
plan. The template is a more concise document with very clear aims and objectives 
to meet each of the seven outcomes illustrated below: 
 

 Outcome 1: More nursery children/ three year olds receive their education 
through the medium of Welsh. 
 

 Outcome 2: More reception class children/ five year olds receive their 
education through the medium of Welsh. 
 

 Outcome 3: More children continue to improve their Welsh language skills 
when transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another. 
 

Page 78



 Outcome 4: More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a 
subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh. 
 

 Outcome 5: More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in 
school. 
 

 Outcome 6: An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for pupils 
with additional learning needs (ALN) in accordance with the duties imposed by 
the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018. 
 

 Outcome 7: Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a 
subject) and teach through the medium of Welsh. 

 
4.2  In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans 

(Wales Regulations 2019) were amended. The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans 
(Wales) (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020 (“the 2020 Regulations”) 
came into force on 1 December, 2020 and make changes to the start date of the 
next WESP cycle being moved from 1 September 2021 to a year later (to 
September 2022). The plan has to be submitted to Welsh Government for approval 
by the 31st January 2022. 

 
4.3 The first ten-year Plan will commence on 1 September 2022 and expire on 31 

August 2032. Each further Plan will commence on 1 September in the year during 
which the previous ten year Plan will come to an end (ie 1 September 2032 to 31 
August 2042). The Plan must include a target outlining the expected increase in the 
number of Year 1 learners taught through the medium of Welsh in the local authority 
area during the lifespan of the Plan. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. 
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The WESP is designed to deliver the key principles of equality, choice and 
           opportunity for all.  An Initial  Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has been  
           undertaken on the draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan which indicates that a full  
           EIA will be required over the next 12 months which will provide monitoring data on  
           which to base further decisions regarding the detail of the WESP. 
 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The report contributes to the following goals within the Wellbeing of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
  

 A prosperous Wales 

 A resilient Wales 

 A Wales of cohesive communities 

 A globally responsive Wales 
 
7.2 The five ways of working have been considered in the preparation of this report and 

are summarised below: 

Page 79



 
Long term Supports the statutory duty to provide sufficient pupil places and 

support the Welsh language. 
 

Prevention The Council has a statutory duty to promote the Welsh 
language.  The plan will ensure that children and young people 
will be able to follow a Welsh-medium education. 
 

Integration The plan supports the promotion of Welsh education in the 
communities in which the children and young people live. 
 

Collaboration The local authority will continue to work in collaboration to 
ensure that it achieves its vision as set out in the draft WESP 
plan. 
 

Involvement Key stakeholders have been involved in drafting the WESP ten-
year plan. Further engagement will occur with the consultation. 
 

8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 Local authorities are expected to work with their regional consortia to demonstrate 

how the Education Improvement Grant administered by Central South Consortium 
will support the implementation of the WESP. 

 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1       Cabinet is recommended to: 

 

 note the content of the draft plan; and 
 

 give approval to consult. 
 
Lindsay Harvey 
Corporate Director Education and Family Support 
14 September 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Michelle Hatcher 

 Group Manager (Learner Support) 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 815258 
 
Email:   michelle.hatcher@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 
 
Background documents 
 
None 
 
Attachments  
 
Appendix 1 Draft Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022-2032 

Page 80



WELSH IN 
EDUCATION 
STRATEGIC 

PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of local authority 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Period of this plan 

2022-2031 

 
 
 

This Welsh in Education Strategic Plan is made under section 84 of The 
School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the content 
complies with the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 
20191-2.  We have given due regard to the statutory guidance issued by Welsh 
Ministers when setting our targets.   
 
 

Signed:     Date:  

 
(This plan needs to be signed by the Chief Education Officer within your local authority)  

                                            
1 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019  
2 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (Wales) (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2020  

Page 81

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2019/1489/regulation/4/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2020/1194/contents/made


Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Notes to help you 

You will need to outline your local authority's Welsh-medium education 

vision of the next ten years and the main strategic objectives for this period. 

Demonstrate how you will achieve Outcomes 1 to 7 with reference to the 

guidelines. 

Before completing this template, please refer specifically to Part 2 of the 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plans Guidance. 

https://gov.wales/welsh-education-strategic-plans 

This part sets out the statutory requirements for what must be included in 

your Plan (as outlined in the Schedule of the Welsh in Education Strategic 

Plans (Wales) Regulations 2019). In addition to your overarching ten-year 

target, some statements in the Schedule require you to set other targets, and 

if so, please refer to those here. 

 
  

Page 82

https://gov.wales/welsh-education-strategic-plans


Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 

Our ten-year vision for increasing and improving the 

planning of the provision of Welsh-medium education in 

our area 

 
Please include your overarching ten-year target here. This target should outline the 
expected increase of Year 1 children taught through the medium of Welsh during 
your ten-year plan and a statement setting out how you will go about achieving it.  
 
(Paragraph 1 and 2 of the Schedule to the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
(Wales) Regulations 2019. Please refer to Part 2 of the Welsh Government 
Guidance, made under section 87(4) of the 2013 Act) 
 
Bridgend County Borough Council’s Vision 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council’s vision aligns with Cymraeg 2050-A million 
Welsh speakers (Welsh Government, 2017). As a local authority we desire that the 
Welsh language thrives, and that it is used in every aspect of life. Among those 
who do not speak Welsh there is goodwill and a sense of ownership towards the 
language and a recognition by all of its contribution to the culture, society and 
economy of Wales. 
 
Our vision is to secure favourable circumstances throughout the local authority that 
support language acquisition and use of Welsh language skills. We want to see an 
increase in language transmission in the family, early introduction of Welsh to 
every child, an education system that provides Welsh language skills for all, and 
greater appreciation of Welsh language skills in the workplace. At the same time, 
we are committed to supporting people to use Welsh socially, at work, and when 
accessing services. 
 
The Council’s vision for  provision of Welsh-medium education and support for the 
teaching of the Welsh language should: 

 

 deliver the key principles of equality, choice and opportunity for all; 

 respect, promote and embody the linguistic and cultural diversity of Bridgend 
and Wales; 

 recognise a common Welsh heritage; 

 reflect the social, economic and cultural needs of Wales in the 21st century; 

 provide opportunity to reflect on and develop personal identity and a sense of 
place and community; 

 be consistent with the national aspirations set out in the Welsh Government’s 
Welsh-medium Education Strategy (WMES); 

 take into account Welsh Government’s Welsh Language Strategy (2016) to 
reach a million welsh speakers by 2050; and 

 align with Welsh Government strategies. 
 
 

Page 83



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 In order to make this vision a reality, our aim is to ensure that the Council and  
 its  partners within the county borough undertake the following: 
 

 understand their respective roles within the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
(WESP) Forum in relation to formulating and monitoring the progress of the 
WESP;  

 promote the language to create demand; 

 ensure that Welsh-medium provision is available to all children of pre-school 
age and above whose parents/carers wish them to receive their care/education 
through the medium of Welsh, and this within reasonable travelling distance 
from children's homes; 

 ensure a developing continuum from Welsh-medium primary education 
through to Welsh-medium secondary education, so that pupils who begin their 
primary education through the medium of Welsh will progress to a Welsh-
medium secondary school and progress accordingly into further and higher 
education and training; 

 ensure that Welsh is taught both in Welsh-medium and English-medium school 
on the timetable of all our schools, in accordance with the National Curriculum's 
statutory requirements, and that all pupils are given the opportunity to sit 
externally accredited examinations in Welsh at the end of key stage 4; 

 ensure that children and young people with additional learning needs (ALN) 
receive linguistic equality of opportunity in terms of Welsh-medium education, 
in line with the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal Act Wales 
(2018) and the Code of Practice for Wales; 

 ensure that all pupils attending a designated Welsh-medium school are able to 
speak, read and write Welsh fluently by the end of key stage 2; 

 work in partnership with all schools in order to improve the standard of Welsh; 

 further develop teachers’ knowledge and understanding of Welsh and provide 
opportunities for pupils to improve their knowledge and understanding of the 
cultural, economic, environmental, historical and linguistic ethos / 
characteristics of Wales via the Cwricwlwm Cymreig; and 

 promote the wider development of pupils' Welsh language skills through 
specific activities and projects, in association with a wide range of partners. 

 
This vision and these aims complement (and are informed by) the Welsh 
Government’s Welsh-medium Education Strategy, in particular its Strategic Aims 1-
4 and 6, and its vision of an ‘education and training system that responds in a 
planned way to the growing demand for Welsh-medium education, reaches out to 
and reflects our diverse communities and enables an increase in the number of 
people of all ages and backgrounds who are fluent in Welsh and able to use the 
language with their families, in their communities and in the workplace’.   
 
The Strategic Plan that follows sets out how the Council will support the objectives 
associated with those aims and play its part in delivering the five national outcomes 
for the WMES.  It also indicates how developments in Welsh language education 
within the county borough contribute to the wider need to raise standards of 
attainment, both within Bridgend and across the Central South Consortium.  
 
 

Page 84



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Current and future targets 
 
There are currently four Welsh-medium primary schools and one Welsh-medium 
secondary school in the local authority. Two of the four Welsh-medium primary        
schools are located in the North of the county borough, one in the West and one in 
the South. The secondary school is based in the North of the county borough. 
 
The Council aspires to significantly increase Welsh medium provision in Bridgend. 
The target % increases which have been prescribed by Welsh Government and the 
local authority’s forecast of the pupil population over the next 10 years have been 
taken into account. 
 
Currently there are 162 pupil places available for reception age learners. The local 

authority has set a target of 300 reception places being available for Welsh-

medium learners by the end of the plan period. The 300 reception places equates 

to 10 forms of entry, and the aim is to ensure those places are filled. 

Grant funding opportunities from Welsh Government will be maximised in order to 

support the targeted increase in Welsh-medium primary provision.  

As at 2020-2021, there were 162 Welsh-medium reception class places which 

were distributed accordingly: 

 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 54 

Ysgol Cynwyd Sant 45 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg (YGG) Calon Y Cymoedd 30 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr 33 

 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr is approaching a capacity threshold of less than 10% 

and therefore during the first five years of the plan, the local authority is seeking to 

increase Welsh-medium primary school places at the school which will serve the 

Valleys Gateway, Bridgend and Pencoed areas of the County Borough by 

enlarging and relocating Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr to an alternative nearby site. As 

a result, there will 90 nursery places available for three-year-olds. 

 

At the end of the first five years of the plan, additional provision for three-year-olds 

will be available at the following schools:  

 Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr; and 

 Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr. 

The above projects will result in the total number of pupil places for Welsh-medium 

reception learners increasing from 162 pupil places to 210 (ie 7 forms of entry) by 

the end of the first five years of implementation of the plan. 

 

In addition, there is an aspiration to create a Welsh-medium seedling school to 

serve the Porthcawl area. Currently, no funding has been allocated for the scheme. 

However, approval to submit an expression of interest to Welsh Government in 

respect of the Welsh-medium capital grant funding is being sought from Cabinet. If 

successful, there would be an additional 30 places for three-year-olds. 

Page 85



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

In addition to the 7 forms of entry which will be delivered during Band B, as  

outlined, there is a Cabinet commitment to deliver the following Welsh-medium  

provision during the next phase of the programme which aligns to the ten-year  

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan: 

 

 A one-form-entry school at Porthcawl (ie 210 places published admission 

number (PAN) of 30) 

 

 A dual-stream, two-form-entry school at Parc Afon Ewenni (subject to that 

site being taken forward in the next Local Development Plan) (ie 210 place 

(30 PAN) for Welsh-medium pupils) 

 

Also, the local authority is undertaking an options appraisal process to create an 

additional one form entry provision central to the Bridgend area (ie 210 places). 

 

The 2031-2032 target of 265 reception pupils (ie 16.93%) sits between the lower 
and upper range target (ie 14%-18%). Should all of the planned 300 pupil places 
fill, this would result in 19.16% of reception age pupils would be in receipt of a 
Welsh-medium education. The 16.93% mid-point target is ambitious. However, it is 
considered achievable, should all of the deliverables within the plan come to 
fruition. 
 

Welsh Language immersion 

 

The local authority will consider collaboration with other local authorities in terms of 

Language Immersion Unit provision. This work will be strategically planned over a 

period of time with the aim of increasing the percentage of Welsh taught in English-

medium schools, which will be done by targeting participants and providing the 

necessary support to individual schools. 

 

Learner travel 
 
In the case of Welsh-medium education, the local authority offers free home-to-

school transport where the walking distance from home to school for primary aged 

children is greater than two miles or more and for secondary pupils three miles or 

more.  If any pupil who is unable to be accommodated at their local Welsh-medium 

school, a place in the next nearest Welsh-medium school in Bridgend, if that is 

requested. This includes the provision of free home-to-school transport subject to 

the aforementioned distance thresholds. 
 

 

  

Page 86



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Outcome 1: 

More nursery children/ three year olds receive their education through the 

medium of Welsh 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
1.1 The Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (CSA) is a working and organic 

document process. It is vital that the local authority demonstrates its clear 

knowledge of the early years’ sector and gap areas and devises an 

annual action plan. This clear attention will enable all future 

developments across both childcare and early years’ education to focus 

on provision that is aimed at increasing provision in both mediums with a 

particular focus on the numbers of Welsh-medium places to ensure 

equitable choice is supported. 

The CSA will shortly be undertaken, there will be further data around 
vacancies within provision at this time. 
 

 

Booklet January 

2020 E-W.pdf

Booklet January 

2019 E-W.pdf

Booklet January 

2018 E-W v2.pdf  
 

1.2 Information contained in the School Admissions Policy for the relevant 
year and in the annual Starting Schools Booklet highlight the choices 
available to parents regarding Welsh-medium schools and the criteria for 
over-subscription in line with the local authority’s statutory duty. Schools 
are categorised as Welsh-medium in the annual admissions policy. 
Reflected in the Starting Schools Booklet is how Welsh-medium 
education is provided in all schools. 
 
The online school admissions process is in line with the local authority’s 
legal duty to allow for parental choice.  The users journey and the 
intuitiveness of the system are key, although there is no separate 
‘journey’ in the use of the system for parents/carers choosing a Welsh-
medium education as this is not considered necessary or in line with 
legislation. 
 
In January 2019, during the last plan period, Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg 

(YGG) Calon Y Cymoedd (formerly known as Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg 

(YGG Cwm Garw) relocated to a new school in an area which is 

considered a central location to serve the Garw and Ogmore Valleys. The 

take-up of places by three-year-olds has increased as a result. 

 

The local authority has developed information for parents entitled “Why 

Choose Welsh”. Information is available via the Family Information 

Page 87



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Service. This information is available electronically. However, it is key to 

ensure this information is made available at each and every place that 

parents and expecting parents receive services. The school admissions 

information is already clear and accessible. The School Admissions 

Policy is available on the website as is the Starting School Prospectus, 

which is an extensive information and guidance document.  These 

documents are revised each year. The documents are all published in 

Welsh to the Welsh version of the local authority’s website at the 

appropriate time.  The School Admissions Policy for 2022-2023 is 

currently on the website.  The Starting School Prospectus for 2022-2023 

will be published for the website in September 2021. 

  

school-admissions-

policy-2021-to-2022.pdf       
2021-2022-starting-

school-prospectus.pdf 

1.3 In the case of Welsh-medium education, the local authority offers any pupil 

who is unable to be accommodated at their local Welsh-medium school, a 

place in the next nearest Welsh-medium school in Bridgend, if that is 

requested. This includes the provision of free home-to-school transport 

where the walking distance from home to school is greater than two miles 

for primary school children and greater than three miles for secondary 

school pupils.  

 

1.4 Data shows that the numbers of children transitioning from Welsh-
medium early years to Welsh-medium nursery provision has increased 
from 50% to 66%. Clearly there are matters linked to the impact of the 
pandemic and the suspension of early years’ provision that may have had 
a negative impact on the data. Data for the current academic year will not 
be available until September 2021. 
 

 Within Bridgend there are: 
  

Day nurseries 21 

Sessional childcare providers 9 

Flying Start 10 

Childminders 53 

Cylch Meithrin providers (7 if you 
include Cylch Meithrin Blaenllynfi 
which is Dechrau’n Deg only) 

6 

Out-of-school providers 17 

 
 The number of places in each setting differs according to the ages of the 

children attending on any one day. However, there are approximately 
2,372 English-medium childcare places and approximately 160 Welsh-
medium childcare places. 
 

Page 88



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 Within this sector there are 19 non-maintained nursery education 
providers three of whom offer this provision via the medium of Welsh. 
There are factors that impact uptake of places at provision beyond the 
language of the setting some of these include the community that the 
provision sits within and the distance to the Welsh-medium primary 
school. 
 

 In summer term 2021 for Flying Start, there were seven children 
attending in Cylch Meithrin Sger, five in Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach and 
two in Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd Sant. 
 

 The following are the Flying Start budgeted places: 
 

 16 at Cylch Meithrin y Sger; 

 8 at Cylch Meithrin Cynwyd Sant;  

 12 at Cylch Meithrin Plant Bach;  

 12 places at Dechrau’n Deg Blaenllynfi. 
 

1.5 The local authority uses all opportunities to maximise information 
available and ensures this information is then easily available to parents 
and carers. The local authority will continue to monitor use of Welsh 
Government marketing campaigns. A working group has been designed 
to identify potential improvements to the admission process. The 
process is being reviewed in order to ensure that all parents are able to 
access this process effectively including parents who are seeking 
Welsh-medium provision. The information developed to support parents 
includes a section regarding myth busting. There is also a focus to 
ensure that the information is clear and easy to find. Consideration is 
being given to those parents whose literacy skills are under developed. 
Also ensuring that the details of Cylchoedd Meithrin and Ysgolion 
Cyfrwng Cymraeg are prominent. The development of a video is also 
being considered. 
 

1.6 Bridgend is fully compliant with the Welsh-language measure, all 
information available to parents is available in both Welsh and English. 
The local offer of Welsh-medium services and provision is promoted 
widely. The Why Choose Welsh document offers information on both 
the immersion model of Welsh- medium provision and also on the 
benefits of a bi-lingual and multi-lingual approach. The Why Choose 
Welsh leaflet is widely available. However, a clear focus on the absolute 
benefits of the immersion approach and the clear benefits that a fully 
Welsh-medium education and experience can offer are very clear within 
the document. There are plans underway to build on the Why Choose 
Welsh information via an animated version this will build and increase 
the quality and content of information available to parents/carers. 
 

1.7 The Cymraeg i Blant officer runs the following weekly Parent and baby 

sessions in each area: 

 

Page 89



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 Welsh Rhyme, Time and Sign group; 

 Baby massage and yoga group; 

 Cuppa and Chat Cymraeg (online group); 

 Me and my baby sessions explaining in detail the bilingual 

journey (online group). 

 

The groups are advertised as being open to all, parents do not need to 

be able speak Welsh. The officer will introduce simple Welsh rhymes 

and phrases on a weekly basis to help them acquire a basic knowledge 

as well as helping them to increase their confidence in using Welsh at 

home. The groups are advertised on local Facebook Cymraeg i Blant 

pages and  Instagram and through the Family Information 

Service/Dewis Cymru, early years’ teams, local community hubs and 

centres, libraries, Mentrau Iaith, Cwlwm  partnership and wider. 

Cymraeg i Blant also works closely with the local Midwifery and Health 

Visiting generic and Flying Start teams and provide training and 

workshops on the advantages of early bilingualism to help them support 

and signpost parents over to our local groups. They sponsor the All 

Wales Maternity notes folder, the scan card and the Child Health 

Record book and all midwifery and Health Visitor students across Wales 

receive a presentation/workshop on the advantages of early bilingualism 

and the role of Cymraeg i Blant during the first year of their training. The 

following information is shared with parents attending the groups: 

 how speaking or introducing Welsh can give their child more 

opportunities; 

 how to use sign, baby massage and yoga to communicate with 

their baby; 

 how to access Welsh and bilingual books, e-books and apps;  

 how to access local Learn Welsh courses (ie the free, eight-week 

Clwb Cwtsh beginners course followed by the weekly Cymraeg i 

Blant Cuppa and Chat practise sessions); 

 how to find their local Ti a Fi group after attending our groups, 

and how to register at the Cylch Meithrin and at their local Welsh 

medium school. 

The following is the list of promotional material shared with prospective 

and new parents: 

Local Being bilingual booklet  

Your guide to Welsh medium education 

Bilingual journey leaflet 

Further information can be found on Meithrin.cymru 

1.8 There are effective relationships in place with colleagues from Mudiad 

Meithrin. This effective partnership enables and supports joint targets 

Page 90

https://www.meithrin.cymru/creo_files/upload/downloads/dy_ganllaw_i_addysg_gymraeg_-_terfynol.pdf
https://www.meithrin.cymru/creo_files/upload/downloads/terfynol_taflen_wybodaeth_ciblant.pdf
https://www.meithrin.cymru/cymraeg-for-kids/


Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

regarding the development of early years and childcare provision via the 

medium of Welsh.  

The two services have worked very closely around the development of 

the Cymraeg 2050 projects. 

The local authority has in place a number of grants linked to new 

development of provision alongside the Mudiad Meithrin support 

packages. Opportunities for joint development are explored and this is 

demonstrated by the development of Ti a Fi groups where the local 

authority, a local school and Mudiad Meithrin have come together to 

develop this jointly. 

1.9 Flying Start provision within Bridgend works closely with existing Welsh-
medium provision. This offers sustainability for the cylch meithrin 
settings. Flying Start places are provided in partnership  with Cylch 
Meithrin at the following areas: Afon y Felin provision in Welsh-medium 
is available at Cylch Meithrin Y Sger;  
 

 Sarn provision in Welsh-medium is available at Cylch Meithrin 
Plant Bach Sarn;  

 Plasnewydd provision in Welsh-medium is available at Cylch 
Meithrin Cynwyd Sant; 

 Garth provision in Welsh-medium is available at Cylch Meithrin 
Cynwyd Sant. 

 
Within Caerau, Flying Start has in place stand-alone provision at 
Dechrau’n Deg Blaenllynfi. Within Brackla, the Flying Start setting will be 
offering 50% (16 places) of the provision via the medium of Welsh from 
January 2022.  The Cymraeg 2050 developments will also be able to 
offer Flying Start provision in Lewistown, Blackmill, Bettws and Brackla.  
 

 There are 312 English-medium places available within the Flying 
Start programme; 

 There are 77 Welsh-medium places available within the Flying 
Start programme; 

 19% of the Flying Start places are available via the medium of 
Welsh. 

 
This number will increase in January 2022 with the decrease of 16 
English-medium places at Flying Start Brackla which will be the increase 
of Welsh-medium places moving forward. This will bring the percentage 
of places available via the medium of Welsh to 24%. 
 

1.10 Effective sharing of information regarding services offered by Cymraeg i 
Blant and Mudiad Meithrin is in place and information is shared widely 
and enthusiastically. Mudiad Meithrin is currently looking at the local 
authority websites in the South East to consider how accessible the 
information is for parents. This information will be available to be shared 
in autumn term 2021.  

Page 91



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 
Bridgend recognises that information available via the Family 
Information Service will benefit from review and increase. Information for 
Welsh learners is shared widely on all Bridgend County Borough 
Council (BCBC) communication digital platforms including the Early 
Years Facebook page. Bridgend recognises this area will benefit from 
review and the ability to ensure that information is innovative and 
progressive. 
 

1.11 Bridgend worked closely (2019) regarding assessment of childcare 
practitioner’s skills and confidence regarding their use of the Welsh 
language  and offered training to raise standards and skills based on the 
findings of the assessment tool used. A working group has been 
developed to identify potential improvements within the admission 
process. The process is being reviewed in order to ensure that all 
parents are able to access this process effectively in particular parents 
who are seeking Welsh-medium provision. 
 

1.12 Information on the Council’s website makes available provision in the 
Welsh-medium sector and the faith school information. There have been 
ongoing discussions with regards to the development of clearer more 
specific Welsh school catchment areas. 
 

1.13 The commitment to the WESP and its ambitions for Bridgend runs 
across the early years’ service. Team members are encouraged to be 
knowledgeable, to enable parents to receive correct and effective 
information. The staff who provide this information are informed but also 
able to seek wider support as required. Staff can always benefit from 
enhanced information, however the early years’ service is confident that 
parents are able to effectively access correct and timely information. 
The early years’ service has a team member who is able to discuss this 
matter with parents via the medium of Welsh. 
 

1.14 Family Information Services are delivered via the BCBC Customer 
Service Team, if this team feels more in depth information regarding 
Welsh-medium provision the service will signpost parents and carers to 
the relevant service either within the education school admission team 
or the Childcare Team. Early years’ services regularly seek parent’s 
views and are focussed on ensuring that parents views and concerns 
are responded to effectively and on an ongoing basis. 
 

1.15 Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr is approaching a capacity threshold of less 
than 10% and therefore during the first five years of the plan, the local 
authority is seeking to increase Welsh-medium primary school places at 
the school which will serve the Valleys Gateway, Bridgend and Pencoed 
areas of the county borough by enlarging and relocating Ysgol Gymraeg 
Bro Ogwr to an alternative nearby site. As a result, there will 90 nursery 
places available for three-year-olds. 

 
 

Page 92



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments to 
increase the number/% of three-year olds receiving their education through the 
medium of Welsh during the first five years of implementation (as a mid-way 
milestone), and another for the remainder of the plan.  
 
1.16 The ambition to increase this figure to 14-18% is effective. 

 
1.17 At the end of the first five years of the plan, additional provision for three-

year-olds will be available at the following schools: 
 

 Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 

 

 The local authority is seeking to increase Welsh-medium primary 

school places to serve the Valleys Gateway, Bridgend and 

Pencoed areas of the county borough by enlarging and relocating 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr to an alternative nearby site.  

 90 places will be available for three year-olds.  

 The proposal will be subject to a consultation process under the 

School Organisation Code during the school year 2021-2022.  

 The school will be funded by Welsh Government’s 21st Century 

Schools and Colleges Programme plus BCBC capital funding. 

 The new school, if approved, is scheduled to open in September 

2025. 

 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr  

     

 Ysgol y Ferch O’r Sgêr will be enlarged to a two-form-entry school 

 60 places will be available for three year-olds.  

 The proposal has already been subject to a consultation process 

under the School Organisation Code and Cabinet approval has 

been received.  

 Part funded by Welsh Government’s revenue Mutual Investment 

Model funding and BCBC, the enlarged school will serve the west 

of the county borough. 

 The new school is programmed to open in September 2024. 

 

Porthcawl 

 

In addition, there is an aspiration to create a Welsh-medium seedling 

school to serve the Porthcawl area. Currently, no funding has been 

allocated for the scheme. However, approval to submit an expression of 

interest to Welsh Government in respect of the Welsh-medium capital 

grant funding is being sought from Cabinet. If successful, there would be 

an additional 30 places for three year-olds. 

Page 93



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 
1.18 The new Cymraeg 2050 developments are progressing. The project at 

Betws is scheduled for completion in June 2022, with the Ogmore Valley 

scheme completing by September 2022. There are a further two Welsh-

medium childcare projects planned for the County Borough.  The 

Bridgend Town provision has been aligned with the Bridgend North East 

project, as part of Band B of the School Modernisation Programme.  This 

Welsh-medium childcare provision will form an integral part of the 

replacement school for Ysgol Gymraeg (YG) Bro Ogwr.  The Bridgend 

North East project is scheduled for completion by September 2025.  In 

the interim period, there are plans to offer additional Welsh-medium 

childcare places at the Flying Start Brackla setting.  The timeline for the 

remaining Welsh-medium childcare project planned for Porthcawl will be 

determined following the feasibility stage of the project.   

 

1.19 The aim of the project is to provide 16 sessional Welsh-medium childcare 

places, together with 6 places for 0 to 2 provision and wrap-around/out-

of-school provision, which would operate for 52 weeks of the year at each 

of the four settings. This will offer the local authority a potential for an 

additional 176 Welsh-medium sessional sessions available. Further to the 

above the Bridgend Childcare Team continues to work with a number of 

settings regarding the development towards becoming a non-maintained 

nursery education provider. This will include the new Cymraeg 2050 

provisions and those Cylch Meithrin who are not currently registered to 

this offer (three potential providers). 

 

1.20 Mudiad Meithrin is working with a company called “Flourish” to open a 

Cylch Meithrin in the middle of Bridgend Town. It is expected to open in 

January 2022. 

 

1.21 To share information about the bilingual journey with parents as early as 

possible to create the demand from birth by:   

 forming stronger links with the local Health Board – every new parent 

to receive information about the bilingual journey on leaving the 

hospital; 

 FIS – continue to share info about Cymraeg i Blant free bilingual 

groups with new mums and dads – making them aware they don’t 

have to speak Welsh to attend; 

 sharing vital information on the bilingual journey when registering the 

birth of the child. 

1.22 To share key bilingual messages on Council social media 

channels/mailshots to coincide with application for nursery/school places. 

To make the Welsh Medium offer an offer for all parents – ensuring that 

all early years’ staff and local flying start teams are familiar with the 

#Cymraeg2050 strategy and are confident in sharing local information 

with all their parenting groups. To promote the Welsh-medium offer 

Page 94



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

alongside other Council events/promotions i.e. childcare offers, fun days 

at local community centres or hubs. 
 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under this 
Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 
1.23 There has been much to consider when planning for a period of ten years 

the early years is still in a period of recovery from the impact of the 
pandemic. The service develops a CSA for Bridgend and the 
developments within this WESP document must align carefully with the 
CSA to ensure that all development within the early years sector must 
take place via both English and Welsh-medium in equal measure in order 
for the numbers of places to be equitable in both languages but also that 
parents are able to consider both mediums when considering provision 
for their child. 
 

1.24 The four new Cymraeg 2050 settings have been designed to offer 
opportunities for full day care via the medium of Welsh this is an area that 
is highlighted within the CSA as a gap and is an integral part of the 
programme designed. 
 

1.25 In addition to the education provision being delivered during the first five 
years, the following projects are planned for delivery by the end of the 
ten-year plan period: 
 

 A dual-stream, two-form-entry entry school at Parc Afon Ewenni 

(subject to that site being taken forward in the next Local 

Development Plan) (ie 30 Welsh-medium places for three year-olds) 

 A one form entry school at Porthcawl (ie 30 places for three year-

olds) 

Also, the local authority is undertaking an options appraisal process to 

create an additional one form entry provision central to the Bridgend area 

(ie 30 places for three year-olds). 

 
 

Key Data   

In the table below, add annual data projections that reflect what is set out above 
relating to this outcome. Please comment in this box. 
 

Page 95



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 The following annual projections have been calculated using the base data 
provided by Welsh Government (ie 2019-2020) and incrementally increased in 
line with anticipated uptake in Welsh-medium education and the planned 
additional pupil places being available during the period of the 10 year plan, as 
programmed. 
 
The 2031-2032 target of 255 full-time nursery learners aged 3-4 (ie 16.29%) sits 
between the lower and upper range target (ie 14%-18%). The number of part-
time learners aged 2-3 fluctuate annually as the number of places available 
depends on the take-up of full time places. Therefore those learners have been 
excluded from the calculation. The 16.29% mid-point target is ambitious. 
However, it is considered achievable, should all of the deliverables within the plan 
come to fruition. 

 

Numbers and % of 3-year olds provisioned to receive their education through 
the medium of Welsh 

2022 - 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 – 2026 2026 - 2027 

150 9.58% 150 9.58% 170 10.86% 180 11.50% 185 11.82% 

2027 - 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 – 2031 2031 – 2032 

190 12.14% 210 13.42% 230 14.70% 245 15.65% 255 16.29% 

 

 Outcome 2 

More reception class children/ five year olds receive their education 

through the medium of Welsh 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 

2.1 Currently there are 162 pupil places available for reception age 

learners. The local authority has set a target of 300 reception places 

being available for Welsh-medium learners by the end of the plan 

period. The 300 reception places equates to 10 forms of entry, and the 

aim is to ensure those places are filled. 

Grant funding opportunities from Welsh Government will be maximised 

in order to support the targeted increase in Welsh-medium primary 

provision.  

The local authority will also continue to explore potential opportunities 

for delivering certain schemes wholly or partly via section 106, as a 

contribution for education places to serve new housing development, 

where applicable. 

 

Page 96



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

As at 2020-2021, there were 162 Welsh-medium reception class places 

which were distributed accordingly: 
 

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 54 

Ysgol Cynwyd Sant 45 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg (YGG) Calon Y Cymoedd 30 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr 33 

 

 In January 2019, during the last plan period, YGG Calon Y Cymoedd 

(formerly known as Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg (YGG Cwm Garw) 

relocated to a new school in an area which is considered a central 

location to serve the Garw and Ogmore Valleys. 

 

While the relocated YGG Calon Y Cymoedd’s published admission 

number (PAN) remained unchanged, the take-up of places at reception 

increased. 

 

The following table sets out the total number of reception aged learners 

from January 2018 – 2021: 

 

January 
2018 

January 
2019 

January 
2020 

January 
2021 

129 121 122 140 

 

 On average, over the period of the last plan, 79% of the 162 Welsh-

medium reception pupil places available were filled.  

 

Demand for Welsh-medium places has been more prevalent in the 

south east area of the county borough. 
 

Where do we aim to be within the first 5 years of this Plan and how we propose 
to get there? 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments to 
increase the number/ % of 5 -year olds receiving their education through the medium 
of Welsh during the first 5 years of implementation (as a mid-way milestone), and 
another for the remainder of the Plan. 
 
2.2 Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr 

 

 During the first five years of the plan, the local authority is 

seeking to increase Welsh-medium primary school places to 

serve the Valleys Gateway, Bridgend and Pencoed areas of the 

county borough by enlarging and relocating Ysgol Gymraeg Bro 

Ogwr to an alternative nearby site.  

 The new PAN will be 75 (ie 2.5 forms of entry).  

 The proposal will be subject to a consultation process under the 

School Organisation Code during the academic year 2021-2022.  

Page 97



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 The school will be funded by Welsh Government’s 21st Century 

Schools and Colleges Programme plus BCBC capital funding. 

 The new school, if approved, is scheduled to open in September 

2025. 

 

Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr  

 

 Ysgol y Ferch O’r Sgêr will be enlarged from its existing PAN of 

30 to 60.  

 The proposal has already been subject to a consultation process 

under the School Organisation Code and Cabinet approval has 

been received.  

 Part funded by Welsh Government’s revenue Mutual Investment 

Model funding and BCBC, the enlarged school will serve the 

west of the county borough. 

 The new school is programmed to open in September 2024. 

 

The above projects will result in the total number of pupil places for 

Welsh-medium reception learners increasing from 162 pupil places to 

210 (ie 7 forms of entry) by the end of the first five years of 

implementation of the plan. 

 

2.3 Porthcawl  

 
In addition, there is an aspiration to create a Welsh-medium seedling 

school to serve the Porthcawl area.  

Currently, no funding has been allocated for the scheme. However, 

approval to submit an expression of interest to Welsh Government in 

respect of the Welsh-medium capital grant funding is being sought from 

Cabinet. 

 

This scheme would inherently connect to a longer-term proposal to 

create a new one form entry school in Porthcawl. 

 

2.4 Currently Welsh-medium primary schools and the Welsh-medium 

secondary school manage their own late comer learners. Each school 

provides information and guidance for parents and carers upon 

request.  

The local authority will develop an overarching late comers’ policy 

document which will aid schools, parents and carers. The document will 

detail the opportunities for late comers, provide guidelines, procedures, 

responsibility and accountability. 

The policy document will be drafted and adopted within the first year of 

the plan period.     

 

Page 98



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

2.5 Central South Consortium (CSC) will provide professional learning 

and resources for teachers in Welsh-medium schools on how best to 

support latecomers. CSC will facilitate the sharing of good practice 

across the region in this area in collaboration with the current Welsh 

Immersion Unit in Cardiff and any other emerging provision going 

forward. Welsh in Education Officers will continue to provide bespoke 

support to individual or groups of schools.    

2.6 A promotion plan will be discussed and developed which considers 

and  addresses: 

 the barriers to choosing a Welsh-medium education; 

 accessibility; and 

 proximity of provision. 

 

The plan will cover two elements. Namely, corporate promotion and 

the support that the local authority can provide to individual schools 

at a local level.  The promotional plan with demonstrate that Welsh-

medium education is for everyone. It will contain a template and 

resources that can be shared with the local community and also 

disseminated via social media. 

2.7 Information regarding a Welsh-medium education which is detailed on 

the local authority’s website will be reviewed to ensure that parents 

applying for places can easily navigate to the correct pages and locate 

relevant information. 

2.8 The local authority will work with CSC to support English-medium 

schools in developing workforce and offering apprenticeships. 

2.9 CSC will facilitate the sharing of good practice across the region in this 

area in collaboration with the current Welsh Immersion Unit in Cardiff 

and any other emerging provision going forward. Welsh in Education 

Officers will continue to provide bespoke support to individual or groups 

of schools. 

2.10 The local authority will consider collaboration with other local 

authorities in terms of Language Immersion Unit provision. This work 

will be strategically planned over a period of time with the aim of 

increasing the percentage of Welsh taught in English-medium schools, 

which will be done by targeting participants and providing the 

necessary support to individual schools. 

2.11 It is recognised that there is a need for developing bilingualism in 

Bridgend. Consideration will be given as to how other local authorities 

are transitioning from English to Welsh speaking. There is also a need 

to ensure the language spoken in the community is of a high-level to 

sustain the learners outside of school, and currently, this is not 

available within this geographical area.   
 

Page 99



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under this 
Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 

2.12 The 300 place target is applicable to each primary year group. This is 

essential in order to ensure continuity in education. By increasing the 

number of reception places from 162 to 300, it is reasonable to assume 

that the vast majority of those learners will transition into Year 1 and 

therefore, the target for both year groups must correspond. 

2.13 As detailed at 2.1, the local authority will continue to seek grant funding 

opportunities from Welsh Ministers for capital build projects. Business 

cases will be robust and will clearly demonstrate the need for 

investment in Welsh-medium education. 

2.14 In addition to the seven forms of entry which will be delivered during 

Band B, as outlined, there is a Cabinet commitment to deliver the 

following Welsh-medium provision during the next phase of the 

programme which aligns to the 10 Year Welsh in Education Strategic 

Plan: 

 

 A one form entry school at Porthcawl (ie 30 PAN) 

 A dual-stream two-form-entry school at Parc Afon Ewenni 

(subject to that site being taken forward in the next Local 

Development Plan) (ie 30 PAN for Welsh-medium pupils) 

 

Also, the local authority is undertaking an options appraisal process to 

create an additional one form entry provision central to the Bridgend 

area (ie. PAN 30). 

 

2.15 Subject to funding and the proposals detailed coming to fruition, at the 

end of the 10 year plan period there will be 10 forms of entry at primary 

school level, thereby increasing the number of places for reception age 

learners from 162 to 300. 

 

2.16 The local authority will have developed an overarching late comers’ 

policy document which will aid schools, parents and carers. The 

document will detail the opportunities for late comers, provide 

guidelines, procedures, responsibility and accountability. 

 

2.17 The local authority will ensure that Welsh immersion is available for 

late comers so that learners can become fluent in Welsh and attend 

mainstream Welsh-medium schools. Consideration will be given to the 

requirements of establishing the unit within the period of the plan, and 

in the short-term, alternative interim measures will be put in place (ie 

funding schools for additional late comer support and/or collaboration 

Page 100



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

with other authorities where immersion units have already been 

established). 
 

Key Data 

In the table below, add annual data projections that reflect what is set out above 
relating to this outcome. Please comment in this box. 
 
2.18 The following annual projections have been calculated using the base 

data provided by Welsh Government (ie 2019-2020) and incrementally 
increased in line with anticipated uptake in Welsh-medium education 
and the planned additional pupil places being available during the 
period of the ten-year plan, as programmed. 
 

2.19 The 2031-2032 target of 265 reception pupils (ie16.93%) sits between 
the lower and upper range target (ie 14%-18%). Should all of the 
planned 300 pupil places fill, this would result in 19.16% of reception 
age pupils would be in receipt of a Welsh-medium education. The 
16.93% mid-point target is ambitious. However, it is considered 
achievable, should all of the deliverables within the plan come to 
fruition. 

 
 
 
 

Numbers and % of 5-year olds receiving their education through the medium of 
Welsh 

2022 – 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 

140 8.94% 150 9.58% 160 10.22% 170 10.86% 190 12.14% 

2027 – 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 - 2031 2031 - 2032 

200 12.78% 205 13.10% 235 15.02% 250 15.97% 265 16.93% 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 

Outcome 3 

More children continue to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring from one 

stage of their statutory education to another 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an overview 
 of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
3.1  Data 
 
The percentage of learners at the end of the Foundation Phase who reach at least Foundation Phase Outcome 5 in 

Language, Literacy and Communication Skills in Welsh-medium/bilingual schools.    

Data Source :AWCDS Bridgend Performance at LA Level 

Academic Year Bridgend Wales Average 

2012/13 91.97% 86.73% 

2013/14 91.37% 89.82% 

2014/15 95.42% 91.34% 

2015/16 92.50% 90.70% 

2016/17 94.40% 90.90% 

2017/18 90.20% 86.10% 

This data is no longer available.          

 

 

 

P
age 102



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

The percentage of learners at the end of key stage 2 who reach at least Level 4 in teacher assessment in Welsh.    

Data Source :AWCDS Bridgend Performance at LA Level     

Academic Year Bridgend Wales Average 

2012/13 93.41% 86.71% 

2013/14 90.48% 88.10% 

2014/15 94.74% 90.46% 

2015/16 94.30% 90.80% 

2016/17 98.30% 91.60% 

2017/18 90.00% 89.70% 

This data is no longer available.  

      

The percentage of learners at the end of key stage 3 who reach at least Level 5 in teacher assessment in Welsh.    

Data Source :AWCDS Bridgend Performance at LA Level            

Academic Year Bridgend Wales Average 

2012/13 82.14% 87.58% 

2013/14 89.11% 90.07% 

2014/15 87.27% 90.90% 

2015/16 89.60% 92.00% 

2016/17 92.70% 93.50% 

2017/18 91.30% 93.80% 

This data is no longer available 

 

 

 

P
age 103



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

The percentage of learners at the end of key stage 4 who achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh first 
language. 

 
 

  

 
  

  

 
BCBC All Wales 

Academic 
Year 

Number 
achieving A*-

C  
in Welsh 

First 
Language 

Cohort 

% achieving A*-C 
in 

 Welsh First 
Language 

% achieving A*-C in  
Welsh First Language 

2012/13 85 120 70.80% 73.50% 

2013/14 63 97 64.90% 73.70% 

2014/15 58 83 69.90% 75.20% 

2015/16 77 92 83.70% 75.10% 

2016/17 83 105 79.00% 74.20% 

2017/18 58 74 78.40% 74.30% 

2019/20* 73 101 72.30% ** 

2020/21* 74 100 74.00% ** 

 
  

  
* BCBC data Internal calculations from SSSP not including 
Welsh Literature   

**No data available 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 104



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

The percentage of learners at the end of key stage 4 who achieve grades A*-C in GCSE Welsh Second Language Full 

Course. 
 
Data Source: Internal Calculations from SSSP (Data based on those completing course codes 
50074076/50074040/C0011662) 

 
  

  

Academic Year 

Number of learners at 
the end of Key Stage 4 
who achieve grades A*-
C in GCSE Welsh 
Second Language Full 
Course 

Cohort 

% learners at the 
end of Key Stage 4 
who achieve grades 
A*-C in GCSE 
Welsh Second 
Language Full 
Course  

2013/14 367 392 93.60%  
2014/15 483 619 78.00%  
2015/16  462 585 79.00%  
2016/17 594 859 69.15%  
2017/18 644 1073 60.02%  
2018/19* 563 995 56.58%  
2019/20* 737 1122 65.68%  

 
  

  

* New Code introduced C0011662  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 105



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

More students with advanced skills in Welsh (This relates to the numbers achieving A Level Welsh and Welsh Second 
Language quals) 
Data Source : 
Internal 
Calculations 
from SSSP  

 

    

 
  

    
AS 
LEVEL 
SUB. Welsh First Language Welsh Second Language 

 

Cohor
t who 
sat 
exam 

Achieve
d A* - E 

% 
achieved 
 A* - E 

Cohort who sat exam Achieved A* - 
E 

% achieved A* - 
E 

2017/1
8 

13 12 92.31 30 29 96.67 

2018/1
9 

12 12 100.00 22 20 90.91 

2019/2
0 

9 9 100.00 17 17 100.00 

2020/2
1 

12 12 100.00 25 25 100.00 

 

A 
LEVEL 
ADV. Welsh First Language Welsh Second Language 

 

Cohort 
who sat 
exam 

Achieve
d A* - E 

% 
achieved 
A* - E 

Cohort who sat exam Achieved A* 
- E 

% achieved A* 
- E 

2017/18 10 10 100.00 29 26 89.66 

2018/19 10 10 100.00 14 13 92.86 

2019/20 9 8 88.89 15 15 100.00 

2020/21 2 2 100.00 9 9 100.00 

P
age 106



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

The data table below tracks the numbers of pupils transferring from one year in Year 6 into Year 7 the following year.  

Although it shows a decrease in numbers from Year 6 to Year 7 each year it is encouraging that the ‘leakage’ has 

reduced since 2017. 

   
 

 

Welsh Primary 
Schools Year 6 

Pupils 

YGG 
Llangynwyd 

Year 7 
Pupils 

Percentage 
increase/decrease 

2016 122    

2017 119 110 -9.84 

2018 110 114 -4.2 

2019 131 106 -3.64 

2020 113 125 -4.58 

2021   112 0.88 

 
It is pleasing to note the growth observed in numbers after the opening of the new school YGG Calon y Cymoedd (opened 

January 2019) (formerly YGG Cwm Garw). Please see table below. 

PLASC Data All Pupils YGG Cwm Garw/YGG Calon y Cymoedd 
(opened January 2019*)   

           

  Nursery Reception 
Year 

1 
Year 

2 
Year 

3 
Year 

4 
Year 

5 
Year 6  Total  

2015 31 13 23 21 17 18 18 13 154  

2016 23 31 15 21 20 17 17 18 162 5% 

2017 20 21 29 14 21 17 15 17 154 -5% 

2018 31 20 18 26 13 20 16 12 156 1% 

2019* 27 28 21 20 28 14 20 15 173 11% 

2020 35 23 29 23 21 30 13 20 194 12% 

2021 35 30 25 30 28 22 29 14 213 9.7% 

P
age 107



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Welsh-medium proportion of the whole cohort for Year 3 

YEAR 3 PUPILS (age 7-8) *excluding special schools and excluding dual registrations 

PLASC Year 
(January) 

YBO 
 

YCG/CYC 
(**CyC 
opened in Jan 
2019) 

YCS YFOS TOTAL 
Welsh-
medium year 
3 cohort 
 

Year 3 cohort 
for all 
schools* 
 

% Year 3 
pupils in 
Welsh-
medium 
education 

2016 65  20  37  27  149  1631 9.14% 

2017 41  21  37  25 124  1593 7.78% 

2018 55  13  41  29  138  1694 8.15% 

2019** 64  28 ** 41  29  162  1780 9.10% 

2020 53  21  38  24  136  1713 7.94% 

 

  Given the small numbers involved, any difference year-on-year needs to be interpreted cautiously because a small 

change can impact on the proportions (eg one family move in/out of the area or a new school opens). The figures 

above show a similar pattern over the years with little variation. As part of our aspiration to meet ambitious targets 

set by Welsh Government, there has been a significant amount of promotional work designed to encourage more 

families to consider Welsh-medium education for their child/ren.  Given that these are pitched at mothers from the 

birth of their child/ren, we anticipate that the increase in numbers should begin to feed through to Year 3 in 

approximately five years’ time. 

 

 While the actual number has decreased from 2019-2020, this is reflective of the smaller cohort.  The proportion of 

the cohort learning through the medium of Welsh has remained similar to previous years, although 2019 showed a 

slightly higher figure – potentially related to the opening of Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon y Cymoedd in January 

2019.  

 

P
age 108



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

3.2 The pandemic offered the opportunity for some more intensive immersion work for latecomers to YGG Llangynwyd. 

This is an area of further development. 
 

Where do we aim to be within the first 5 years of this Plan and how we propose to get there? 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments to increase the number / % of learners 
continuing to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring from one stage of their statutory education to another during 
the first 5 years of implementation (as a mid-way milestone), and another for the remainder of the Plan. 
 
3.3 As part of our aspiration to meet ambitious targets set by Welsh Government, there has been a significant amount of 

promotional work designed to encourage more families to consider Welsh-medium education for their child/ren.  Given 

that these are pitched at mothers from the birth of their child/ren, we anticipate that the increase in numbers should 

begin to feed through to Year 3 in approximately five years’ time. 

3.4 CSC will continue to promote strategies for the effective use of Welsh in formal and informal situations across all 

sectors and age ranges. They will also continue to promote local, regional and national initiatives aimed at promoting 

Welsh as a subject and medium of education 

3.5 CSC will work closely with the local authority and targeted schools where transition rates may be a cause of concern 

and publish resources to support and reassure parents/carers regarding transition between phases. 

3.6 CSC will support the local authority providing advice, professional learning and resources to specific English-medium 

schools identified to increase the percentage of the curriculum taught through the medium of Welsh 

3.7 CSC will support local, regional and national programmes for Welsh Language development by providing advice, 
professional learning and support to practitioners to acquire and improve their Welsh Language skills. This will 
increase the capacity of staff able to teach Welsh and through the medium of Welsh across all sectors. 
 

3.8 CSC will continue to develop collaboration with the Welsh-medium secondary sector to provide subject specific 
professional learning particularly in areas of Welsh-medium practitioner shortage in the following ways: 

 

 consider Welsh Language Immersion support across local authorities; 

P
age 109



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 provide opportunities for Welsh-medium schools to engage in initiatives to monitor linguistic progression eg 
comparative judgement; 

 facilitate collaboration between primary and secondary schools to produce resource that promote linguistic 
progression to parents/carers; 

 CSC will provide advice, professional learning and resources to support schools to implement Welsh across the 
Curriculum thus increasing the amount of learning provision offered. 

 CSC will continue to share good practice across the region in a variety of ways (eg webinars, podcasts, 
blogs and learning walks). 

 
3.9 Opportunities will be provided for Welsh-medium schools to engage in initiatives to monitor linguistic progression (eg 

comparative judgement). 
 

3.10 CSC will facilitate collaboration between primary and secondary schools to produce resource that promote linguistic 
progression to parents/carers. 
 

3.11 CSC will provide advice, professional learning and resources to support schools to implement Welsh Across the 
Curriculum thus increasing the amount of learning provision offered. The sharing of good practice across the region in 
a variety of ways (eg webinars, podcasts, blogs and learning walks). 
 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under this Outcome supports your overall vision for 
increasing Welsh-medium education provision in your area. 
 
TBC 

3.12 TBC 
 

 

Key Data 

In the table below, add annual data projections that reflect what is set out above relating to this outcome. Please comment in this 
box.  TBC 

P
age 110



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Numbers and % of learners continuing to improve their Welsh language skills when transferring from one stage of their statutory 
education to another 

2022 – 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 

          

2027 – 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 - 2031 2031 - 2032 

          

 
 

P
age 111



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 

Outcome 4 

More learners study for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a 

subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
4.1 The table below shows that the number of 14 to 16 year-old students 

studying Welsh as a first language (through the medium of Welsh) has 

remained stable at around 100 pupils per year.  These numbers match 

the cohort size of the only Welsh-medium secondary school in the 

borough. 

We have also included the numbers of students who have been entered 

for examinations in Welsh as a second language and the impact of the 

Welsh second language full course becoming compulsory in 2017.  

 

 
 *In September 2017, full course GCSE Welsh second language became 

compulsory 
 

4.2 The table below shows that the number of 16 to 19 year-old students 
studying Welsh as a first and second language declined in the year 
2020. However, numbers increased again in 2021. Data is from WJEC 
USA files. 

 

  
Welsh 1st 
Language 

Welsh 2nd 
Language 

2016 9 22 

2017 10 29 

2018 10 14 

2019 9 16 

2020 2 9 

2021 9 19 

 
Welsh 1st 
Language 

Welsh 2nd 
Language (Full) 

Welsh 2nd 
Language 

(Short) 

2016 98 585 784 

2017 99 877 769 

2018 77 1185 * 

2019 99 1094 * 

2020 100 1122 * 

2021 99 1189 * 

Page 112



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 

4.3 YGG Llangynwyd Year 12/13 population figures from PLASC 2016-2021 

show there was a decrease in the numbers continuing to study through 

the medium of Welsh, although this may be attributed in part to the 

smaller cohort size.  The numbers have increased in 2021. We do not 

have data on numbers studying in college or work-based learning 

settings. 

 
PLASC figures for YGG Llangynwyd 
 

Jan Year 12 Year 13 

2016 55 55 

2017 69 42 

2018 65 53 

2019 45 49 

2020 53 32 

2021 66 48 

 
 
4.4 There is strong collaboration arrangements are already in place between 

Bridgend and Rhondda Cynon Taf. There is also some collaboration with 
Bridgend College at post-16.  Further education institutes (FEIs) are 
working to investigate demand for Welsh-medium provision for younger 
pupils (Year 10 and up) and to look at their capacity to deliver courses 
through the medium of Welsh. 
 

4.5 Secondary schools are supported to take steps to increase the number 
of qualifications that learners can study through the medium of Welsh 
through collaboration. The local authority funds transport costs for 
collaborative courses offered 
 

4.6 Welsh language is offered as A-level subject in schools, and schools are 
supported to maintain smaller class sizes through collaboration between 
schools to create a viable class size. Transport costs are provided by the 
local authority. 
 

4.7 The following information illustrates the number of learners who study 
subjects through the medium of Welsh at YGG Llangynwyd. 

 
 
TBC 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

Page 113



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments 
to increase the number/% of learners studying for assessed qualifications in Welsh 
(as a subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh during the first five years 
of implementation (as a mid-way milestone), and another for the remainder of the 
Plan.  
 
4.8 Improved retention and transition rates may impact on this outcome 

during the first five years of this plan. 
 

4.9 There may need to be a greater emphasis on blended/remote learning 
approaches in the first instance to ensure that pupils are able to access 
a wider range of courses (where there is not capacity to teach certain 
specialist subjects through the medium of Welsh at the moment). 
   

4.10 The local authority will continue to work with secondary schools to 
coordinate the provision of Welsh as a subject in all settings.  In Post-16 
this is achieved via collaborations as most schools do not have viable 
numbers for a class. There could be a possibility that there is some 
virtual collaboration at key stage 4. 
 

4.11 Working in collaboration with CSC the following areas will be addressed: 
 

 ensuring high quality teaching and learning in all Welsh-medium 
schools; 

 increase in the number of pupils transferring from primary to 
secondary- ensuring high transition rates from all primary feeder 
schools;  

 promote the benefits of Welsh-medium education with 
parents/carers and how parents/carers can support even if they 
don’t speak Welsh at home; 

 consider use of digital technology to increase qualification offer 
through the medium of Welsh for example explore e-sgol; 

 continue to develop collaboration with the Welsh-medium 
secondary sector to provide subject specific professional learning 
particularly in areas of Welsh-medium practitioner shortage;  

 develop and implement a strategic marketing strategy to promote 
Welsh as an A-level subject (use of social media, past 
pupil/parent experiences, promote advantages); 

 work with external providers and Welsh Government on any 
national initiatives to promote Welsh as an A-level subject; and 

 consider use of digital technology to increase qualification offer 
through the medium of Welsh. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under 
this Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 
4.12 This target will depend on current cohort numbers in the system. This 

outcome will be impacted by the extensive work that has been 
undertaken to attract early years into Welsh-medium provision. This will 
take time to come to fruition but should have been realised at the end of 
the ten-year plan. 
 

4.13 There are various pieces of  work which would have been embedded 
such as 
 

 introduction of immersion for latecomers; 

 opening of the new early years’ settings should be embedded; 

 supporting parents to support their children; 

 immersion for latecomers; 

 training for education staff to learn Welsh; and 

 improve the Welsh language for teaching (eg Welsh Government 
sabbatical scheme). 

 
 

Key Data 

In the table below, add annual data projections that reflect what is set out above 
relating to this outcome. Please comment in this box. 
TBC 

Numbers and % of learners studying for assessed qualifications in Welsh (as a 
subject) and subjects through the medium of Welsh 

2022 – 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 

          

2027 – 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 - 2031 2031 - 2032 

          

 
 
 
 
  

Page 115



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Outcome 5 

More opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different 

contexts in school 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
5.1 The Council is committed to inspiring children and young people to use 

Welsh in all aspects of their lives. There is strong collaboration with CSC 
and the school to share good practice. Since launching the Siarter Iaith 
in our Welsh- medium schools and the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus in 
our English-medium schools, innovative work has been undertaken by 
the schools to increase the social use of Welsh within the whole school 
community. 
 

5.2 Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus (English-medium) 
 

 Bronze Silver Gold 

Number of 
schools 

10 3 1 

 
 Siarter Iaith (Welsh-medium) 

 
 

 

 Bronze Silver Gold 

Number of 
schools 

4 4  

 
 
 Bryn Castell Special School and Maesteg School are currently involved 

in the Cymraeg Campus pilot for secondary schools 
 

5.3 There are various activities for children and young people to become 
engaged with to ensure that they can experience Welsh as a living 
language. They are as follows: 
 

 links with the Urdd (sporting, Eisteddfod, Glan Llyn, Llangrannog;  

 visits into schools and regular sessions with post-16, Cymraeg 
Bob Dydd); 

 links with Menter Iaith Bro Ogwr, mostly with post-16; 

 school Eisteddfodau; 

 Diwrnod Shwmae/Dydd Miwsig Cymru; 

 trips – Tafwyl; 

 visits/performances from Mr Phormula, Candela, Tudur Clocsio; 

 Welsh assemblies; 

Page 116



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 encouragement and training for staff to use Welsh in their lessons 
as much as possible; 

 awards given by the pupils to one member of staff per half-term 
for the most use of Welsh in lessons; 

 extra merits for pupils for use of Welsh; 

 use of Welsh Swogs who consult with the Welsh department on 
content of learning and then deliver a section of this to their form 
classes; 

 Criw Cymraeg; 

 use of social media to encourage parents to use some Welsh too; 

 use of the “Athrawes Fro” 
 

5.4 Chrome books have been issued to children and young people in all 
Welsh-medium schools. 
 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first 5 years of this Plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments 
to increase opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in school 
during the first 5 years of implementation (as a mid-way milestone), and another for 
the remainder of the Plan.  
 
5.5 A sub-group of the WESP will be established to drive this area of work. 

Mapping of what is available from for example Urdd, Menter Iaith and 
ensure that there is good publicity. Involve youth workers in this area of 
work and the Youth Council to ensure that we have the voice of children 
and young people at the core of this development 
 

5.6 Continue to develop an early engagement model of support for non-
maintained settings in targeted areas to enhance children’s early 
linguistic experiences. 
 

5.7 High quality Welsh Language, Literacy and Communication professional 
learning will be evident in schools and bespoke support for individual 
schools/clusters. 
 

5.8 Professional learning and support for Welsh Language Immersion. 
 

5.9 Resources to support the new curriculum will be developed. 
 

5.10 Language Charter data will be shared with the WESP Forum on a 
regular basis. Promote the resources which are on the Welsh 
Government website. 
 

5.11 Provide all schools with a designated CSC lead officer to support 
Language Charter and Cymraeg Campus progress. Promote, support, 
challenge and accredit all schools to make progress with the Language 
Charter and Cymraeg Campus Awards. Evaluate and share best 
practice. 

Page 117



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

5.12 Support the language development and engagement with parents. The 
local authority will continue to work collaboratively with RHaG as 
members of the WESP Forum. 
 

5.13 Further develop the support that YGG Llangynwyd could provide for 
English-medium schools. Also consider the peer-to-peer support from 
the Welsh-medium primary schools, Bore Coffi. 
 

5.14 An analysis to be undertaken of the workers in the Urdd and Menter 
Iaith. 
 

5.15 Support the development of the digital space for children and young 
people and an incentive to engage with the language. For example, 
Minecraft, Roblox 
 

5.16 Continue to align with the Council’s Five-Year Welsh Language 
promotion Strategy 2021-2026. The lead officer is a member of the 
WESP Forum and also a member of the training and apprenticeship sub-
group. 

      

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under 
this Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 
5.17 All schools within Bridgend County Borough Council would have 

achieved the Gold status of Siarter Iaith and Siarter Iaith Cymraeg 
Campus. 
 

5.18 An increase in the numbers of workers in the Urdd and Menter Iaith 
 

 

Key Data 

In the table below, add annual data projections that reflect what is set out above 
relating to this outcome. Please comment in this box. TBC 

increasing opportunities for learners to use Welsh in different contexts in school 

2022 - 2023 2023 - 2024 2024 – 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 

          

2027 - 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 – 2030 2030 - 2031 2031 - 2032 

          

  

Page 118



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Outcome 6 

An increase in the provision of Welsh-medium education for 

pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) (in accordance with 

the duties imposed by the Additional Learning Needs and 

Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
6.1 Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) has been fully involved and 

compliant with the preparation for the implementation of the Additional 
Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal Act (ALNET) (Wales) 2018 for 
September 2021. The Council will ensure that all necessary steps are 
taken to continue to comply with the ALNET Act in providing a bilingual 
system of ALN provision and support the 0 to 25 age range in line with 
the ALNET Act. 
 

6.2 The Additional Learning Needs Code for Wales 2021 places a duty upon 
a local authority to keep additional learning provision under review. The 
Council will consider the extent to which these arrangements are 
sufficient to meet the ALN of children and young people for whom we are 
responsible. 
 

6.3 The Council will give full consideration to the sufficiency of the ALP in 
Welsh and also the size and capability of the workforce which also 
involves consideration of the Welsh-medium workforce 
 

6.4 BCBC has taken a proactive approach to reviewing their current position 
to respond to changes in demand and to make services fit for purpose in 
terms of addressing the current and future needs of children and young 
people with ALN. Following a procurement exercise, Peopletoo were 
commissioned in March 2020 by BCBC to undertake this Additional 
Needs Strategic Planning Review. 
 

6.5 The review sought to: 

 identify the current ALN needs of the school population and current 

ALN provision in Bridgend’s 59 schools and pupil referral unit (PRU); 

 project the likely future ALN need (demand) and future provision to 

meet those needs (supply); 

 identify any gaps in provision; 

 explore the need for a BCBC ALN pupil database; 

 (if applicable) propose alternative models to meet the likely future 

ALN demand; and 

Page 119



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 identify the required budget for possible options identified from the 

ALN provision review. 

 
6.6 The review concluded in autumn term 2020 and one of the 

recommendations from the review was improving the breadth of and 

responsiveness of provision. In relation to Welsh-medium the 

recommendation is to review and revise the model of Welsh-medium 

moderate learning difficulties (MLD) provision to ensure that the 

approach is equitable to English-medium provision. 

 

6.7 Learning Resource Centres (LRCs) have been opened at YGG Calon Y 

Cymoedd and YGG Llanygynwyd for pupils with a diagnosis of autistic 

spectrum disorder (ASD). This means that if a pupil has a diagnosis of 

ASD and speaks Welsh, then that pupil can continue education through 

the medium of Welsh. 

6.8 There is currently a sensory review being undertaken across CSC to 

consult upon establishing a regional sensory service. 
 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments 
to increase the Welsh-medium education provision for learners with additional 
learning needs during the first five years of implementation (as a mid-way 
milestone), and another for the remainder of the plan. 
 
6.9 Monitor and review ALN provision in line with any emerging needs 

during the first five years of the WESP. 
 

6.10 Continue to ensure all reasonable steps are taken to ensure all learners 
with ALN or emerging needs can access support from the Council’s 
mainstream schools, special schools and advisory services through the 
medium of Welsh to ensure that there is full compliance with the ALNET 
Act 2018 and a bilingual system for pupils with ALN. 
 

6.11 A strategic overview of workforce linguistic skill across all school will be 
in place. 
 

6.12 In collaboration with CSC, curriculum provision and resources will be 
appropriate for any pupil with ALN in both Welsh-medium and English-
medium schools. 
 

6.13 Continue working with the Social Service and Wellbeing Directorate and 
Bridgend College to ensure appropriate provision and essential 
workforce. 
 

6.14 Ensure that parents and carers are fully engaged. 
 

 

Page 120



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten year Plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under 
this Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 
TBC 

  

Page 121



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

Outcome 7 

Increase the number of teaching staff able to teach Welsh (as a 

subject) and teach through the medium of Welsh 

Where are we now? 

Include as a baseline, any data (numbers /%) relevant to this outcome and an 
overview of what has been achieved during the previous plan period.  
 
7.1 Percentage of teachers in Welsh-medium schools. 

 The % of teachers in WM schools as a % of all teachers in 
Bridgend is 8.17%. 
 

 The school staff involved in Welsh language sabbaticals are as 
follows: 
 

Welsh in a year September 2019 – August 2020. 
 

 Garth Primary School – CH 

 St Mary’s & St Patrick’s Catholic Primary School – CM 

 Nottage Primary School – MN 

 Nottage Primary School – MD 

 Llangynwyd Primary School – NT 

Welsh in a year September 2020 – August 2021 

 Newton Primary School – HJ 

 Betws Primary School – JB 

Entry – January  2020 

 Pencoed Primary School – AD-J 

 Pencoed Primary School – LH 

 Pencoed Primary School – LP 

 Pencoed Primary School – NC 

 Penybont Primary School – BS 

 St Mary’s & St Patrick’s Catholic Primary School – KB 

Some other schools applied for the intermediate course during summer 

term 2020 but due to the pandemic, this had to be deferred until Summer 

2021. 

The intermediate course is new to the sabbatical course package and is 

aimed at teachers who have already undertaken one of the sabbatical 

courses in the past, but who may have lost confidence due to lack of 

opportinuty to use their skills 

 

Page 122



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

The following schools applied: 

 Trelales Primary School – IG 

 Betws Primary School - TF 

 Pencoed Primary School - – AW 

There is no data currently available about school teachers who can 
teach through the medium of Welsh 
 

7.2 Linking with the Council’s Welsh Language Standards Five Year 
Strategy to maintain the number of Welsh speakers in Bridgend, the 
Welsh Language Standards Five-Year Strategy has been reviewed on 
an annual basis. The latest review shows the range of actions that have 
been taken to raise awareness and promote the use of Welsh language 
across the county borough.  There is a new five year plan from 
September 2021. 
 

7.3 Internally, there are a range of learning and development opportunities 
available to all employees, to improve language skills as well as raise 
their awareness of the language, including e-learning and courses to 
improve Welsh language skills.  In recruiting to Welsh posts, adverts are 
also signposted on Menter Bro Ogwr's website. 
 

7.4 There has been an impact on workforce planning and development 
because of the pandemic. There was no training was offered during 
March 2020 – July 2020. The 2020-2021 training programme in August 
2020 and the revise delivery model was revised as face-to-face training 
was unable to be offered. Since August 2020 all training has been 
delivered remotely. 
 

7.5 In relation to Welsh Language courses, the local authority continues to 
offer Cwrs Mynediad Year 1 qualification through the University of South 
Wales and the Welsh Language Meet and Greet courses to all local 
authority staff twice a year. We have also offered Work Welsh for the 
first time in 2020-2021 (as an initial pilot) delivered by the National 
Centre for Learning Welsh. We also continue to support employees to 
access Welsh courses in the community under the Welsh Language 
Protocol. 
 

7.6 Therefore take up this year for Welsh Language is very similar to last 
year’s figures in terms of qualifications offered. 
 

 

Where do we aim to be within the first five years of this plan and how we 
propose to get there? 

Page 123



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

You may wish to include a high-level timeline against any proposed commitments 
to identify the teaching staff needed to teach in Welsh (as a subject) and teach 
through the medium of Welsh during the first five years of implementation (as a 
mid-way milestone), and another for the remainder of the Plan.  
 
7.7 An audit of those school teachers who are able to teach through the 

medium of Welsh will be undertaken. 
 

7.8 The following activity will be undertaken by the local authority, CSC and 
partners to identify and support the development of the workforce. 
  

 CSC will continue to provide professional learning opportunities, 
develop resources, facilitate the sharing of good practice and 
provide bespoke support to individual or groups of schools across 
the region; 

 Bridgend will continue to work closely with other local authorities in 
CSC in planning and supporting school staff across all sectors to 
further improve their Welsh language skills;   

 CSC will continue to provide professional learning opportunities, 
develop resources, facilitate the sharing of good practice and 
provide bespoke support to individual or groups of schools across 
the region. 

 Bridgend, in conjunction with the CSC, will ensure that the WESP 
will be taken into account during considerations regarding the 
Welsh-medium education standards of its schools 

 consider school workforce annual census data on an annual basis to 
support workforce planning; 

 use local knowledge and information gathered from CSC’s 
Improvement Partner to supplement census data; 

 the local authority will undertake an analysis to understand trends in 
vacancies and the vacancies that are required; 

 consider the training and succession planning of learning support 
assistants (LSAs); 

 ensure that staff from Welsh-medium schools are applying for 
relevant national leadership programmes and professional learning 
opportunities; 

 ensure that staff from Welsh-medium schools are applying for 
relevant national leadership development programmes including the 
Aspiring Headteacher Programme leading to National Professional 
Qualification Headteachers (NPQH) qualification;  

 monitor the number of Welsh-medium applicants on the national 
leadership programmes including destination reports for NPQH 
candidates; 

 continue to work closely with initial teacher education (ITE) 
partnerships to support student teachers; 

 CSC will work with ITE partnerships to ensure that Welsh-medium 
schools are identified as lead, training or placement schools; 

 CSC will work with external partners to promote initiatives on routes 
into teaching and share any relevant information with schools;  

Page 124



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 Professional learning and support to newly qualified teachers (NQT) 
teachers will be provided particularly through the role of regional 
induction mentors; 

 analysis of  the Language Framework data as a baseline for 
improvement required will be undertaken; 

 Welsh Language Development professional learning at various 
levels will be provided by CSC; 

 CSC will provide post-sabbatical support for practitioners engaged 
with sabbatical programmes; and 

 through the work of the Welsh in Education Officer, CSC will provide 
advice, support and guidance to schools on how to accurately reflect 
the Welsh language skills of staff. 

 
7.9 Once the School Workforce Annual (SWAC) has been completed on an 

annual basis, an analysis could be undertaken with regards to key 
categories, such as age etc. so that succession planning for example for 
retirement can be identified. 
 

7.10 To continue to develop the training and apprenticeship sub-group of 
WESP. 
 

 

Where do we expect to be at the end of our ten-year plan? 

You should refer back to your ten year target and how commitments made under 
this Outcome supports your overall vision for increasing Welsh-medium education 
provision in your area. 
 
TBC 

  

Page 125



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 

How we will work with others to achieve our vision  

 
Please outline how you will work in partnership with your Welsh in Education 
Planning Forum (if established in your local authority area) to prepare your Plan 
and how the forum will oversee its implementation and evaluation. 
 
If there isn’t an established Welsh in Education Planning Forum in your local 
authority, please outline how you will work in partnership with other organisations 
that play a key role in helping you to draw up, implement and evaluate your Plan. 
 
There is an established and effective Welsh in Education Forum in Bridgend. 
 
In order to prepare the WESP ten-year plan, a planning day with WESP Forum 
members was held in summer term 2021. All WESP Forum members were invited 
to contribute to the plan and each outcome was led by a WESP Forum member. 
Templates were provided in order for members and their respective organisations 
to submit any further comments for the WESP by a given deadline in summer term 
2021. 
 
Monitoring will take place termly at each WESP Forum and also in the sub-groups 
which have been established and those sub-groups which will be established 
 
The membership of the WESP Forum is as follows: 
 

 Corporate Director - Education and Family Support; 

 Cabinet Member - Education and Regeneration; 

 Group Manager - Learner Support (Chair); 

 Senior Welsh Education Planning Officer Welsh Government; 

 Principal Advisor Employee Relations BCBC; 

 School Programme Manager BCBC; 

 Group Manager - Business Support; 

 Group Manager - School Support; 

 Early Years and Childcare Manager BCBC 

 FIS and Childcare Development Officer BCBC; 

 Consultation Engagement and Equalities Manager BCBC 

 Head of Welsh for Adults Glamorgan;  

 Chief Officer Menter Bro Ogwr; 

 Regional Manager South East Wales Meithrin Cymru; 

 Central South Consortium representative; 

 Student Services and Welsh Manager Bridgend College; 

 Lead Partnerships Officer Meithrin Cymru; 

 Director of Development RhAG; 

 Chair of RhAG Bridgend; 

 RHaG representatives Bridgend; 

 Lead Officer Urdd Gobaith Cymru; 

 Swansea University representative; 

 Headteacher - Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd; 

Page 126



Remember to delete the blue text  
before submitting your Plan 

 

 Headteacher - Calon y Cymoedd; 

 Headteacher - Ysgol Y Ferch O’r Sgêr; 

 Headteacher - Afon y Felin; 

 Headteacher - Pencoed Comprehensive School; and 

 Head of Welsh - Brynteg School;  
 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR - EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 
 

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNORS 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet for the appointments of  

local authority governors to the school governing bodies listed at paragraph 4.1. 
 
2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives/other corporate priorities 

 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

 Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 

 Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives. 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Council’s ‘Guidance on the appointment of local education 

authority governors’ approved by Cabinet on 14 October 2008, officers have 
considered applications received for current and forthcoming vacancies for local 
authority governor positions on school governing bodies (see paragraph 4.1 and 
Appendix A). 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 For the two schools in the table below, two applicants met the approved criteria for 

appointment as a local authority governor and there was no competition for the 
vacancies.  Therefore, the recommended appointments are:   

 
 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 13



 

Name School 

Cllr John McCarthy Pencoed Primary School 

Mr Christopher Berry Ffaldau Primary School 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework or procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. 
It is, therefore, not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 A Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment has been 

completed.  A summary of the implications from the assessment relating to the five 
ways of working is as follows: 

 
Long-term 
 
While it is desirable for local authority governors to have previous or relevant 
experience of the role, in the short-term, the local authority may support any person 
for such an appointment who is interested in supporting schools, is not disqualified 
from being a school governor and is willing and able to dedicate the necessary time 
to the role.   
 
Prevention 
 
The local authority assesses the suitability of applicants for the local authority 
governor vacancy/vacancies applied for. The local authority, in conjunction with the 
Central South Consortium, supports governors with a comprehensive programme of 
both mandatory and voluntary training and access to resources, to enable them to 
develop and maintain their knowledge and skills, and be successful in fulfilling the 
role.    
 
Integration 
 
School governing bodies have a strategic role in running schools and ensuring that 
all pupils are supported to learn and achieve so that they can access opportunities 
for further learning and employment, know how to maintain their wellbeing, can play 
active roles in their communities and can contribute positively to society as a whole.  
 
Collaboration 
 
School governing bodies have a strategic role in ensuring that schools safeguard 
the health and well-being of pupils and staff. The local authority, in conjunction with 
the Central South Consortium, provides training to governors to enable them to 
develop and maintain their relevant knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this 
respect.   

Page 130



 

 
Involvement 
 
The local authority treats all applications for local authority governor vacancies 
fairly, to ensure equality of opportunity. School governing bodies have a strategic 
role in ensuring that schools safeguard the health and well-being of pupils and staff. 
The local authority, in conjunction with the Central South Consortium, provides 
training to governors to enable them to develop and maintain their relevant 
knowledge, skills and effectiveness in this respect.   

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the appointments listed at paragraph 4.1. 
 
Mr Lindsay Harvey 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR – EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT 
 
7 September 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Mandy Jones 
    Learner Support Officer 
  
Telephone:   (01656) 642629 
 
Email:   Amanda.Jones@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:           Education and Family Support Directorate 

Bridgend County Borough Council 
Civic Offices 
Angel Street 
Bridgend 
CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None 
 
 
 
  

Page 131



 

Appendix A 
 
Local authority governor vacancies: current and forthcoming (up to the end of July 
2021) 
 

Name of school 
Number of current and forthcoming 
vacancies 

Abercerdin Primary School 2 

Brynmenyn Primary School 1 

Cefn Cribwr Primary School 1 

Croesty Primary School 1 

Llangewydd Junior School 1 

Llangynwyd Primary School 1 

Nantyffyllon Primary School 1 (ending July 2021) 

Nantymoel Primary School 2  

Newton Primary School 2 (1 ending July 2021) 

Nottage Primary School 2  

Oldcastle Primary School 3 

St Robert’s Roman Catholic Primary School 2 

Tondu Primary School 1 

Tremains Primary School 1 

Tynyrheol Primary School 2 (1 ending July 2021) 

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Calon y Cymoedd 2  

Ysgol y Ferch o’r Sgêr  1 (ending July 2021) 

Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen 1  

Porthcawl Comprehensive School 1 (ending July 2021) 

TOTAL VACANCIES 28 

 
 
 

Page 132



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER  2021 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL, HR & REGULATORY SERVICES 
 

REVISED SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PROCUREMENT STRATEGY, ADOPTION OF 
THE MODERN SLAVERY STATEMENT AND UPDATE ON THE RESPONSE TO THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PROCURING WELL-BEING IN WALES REPORT  
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the adoption of the 

Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy and Modern Slavery Statement to take 
effect from 1 October 2021 and update Members on the response to the 
recommendations of the Procuring Well-being in Wales – Future Generations 
Commissioners for Wales’ Section 20 Procurement Review Report. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-   

 
Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that can 
help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council delivers its services directly through its own workforce, private and third 

sector organisations. The Council spends over £186 million a year procuring a 
diverse range of goods, services and works with over 4,000 suppliers and 
contractors. 

 
3.2 The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with probity, to ensure 

that value for money is achieved and to manage it in such a way that we can 
support wider Council objectives.  

 
3.3 In order for the Council to fulfil their responsibility and deliver the Council’s 

objectives a Procurement Strategy and Delivery Plan is required. 
 
3.4 The current procurement strategy is out of date and requires a full review of the 

vision of procurement across the Council, including the consideration of changes to 
legislation and new and updated policies and initiatives. 
 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy (“the Strategy”) at Appendix 1 to 

this report builds on the previous procurement strategy that established the 

Page 133

Agenda Item 14



 

adoption of category management to improve procurement performance across the 
Council. 
It sets out the Council’s key procurement priorities through to 2024 and the key 
changes that it will make to improve the management of its external spend on 
goods, services and works. The Strategy is focused on the delivery of seven broad 
over-arching Organisational Procurement Objectives: 

 

 Making procurement spend more accessible to local small businesses and 

the third sector. 

 Improving Fair Work and Safeguarding practices adopted by suppliers. 

 Increasing community benefits delivered by suppliers. 

 Contributing to the Council’s aim to be a Carbon-Neutral Council by 2030. 

 Securing value for money and managing demand. 

 Ensuring legal compliance and robust and transparent governance.  

 Promoting innovative and best practice solutions. 

4.2 The Strategy has been informed by the Council’s corporate plan, Welsh 
Government and UK legislation and policy including the Wales Procurement Policy 
Statement, Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the draft Social 
Partnership and Public Procurement Bill (2021).  

 
4.3 In particular, the Strategy places an increased emphasis on the delivery of 

economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being objectives relating to 
progressive procurement, such as the Foundational and Circular Economy, and
 preventing climate change by prioritising carbon reduction and zero emissions 
through more responsible and sustainable procurement.  

 
4.4 The delivery of this Strategy will be managed through a delivery plan with progress 

reported by the Chief Officer – Legal, HR & Regulatory Services on an annual basis 
to the Corporate Management Board. The delivery plan will include detailed actions 
and KPIs.  

 
Modern Slavery Statement 

 
4.5 The Council will publish an annual Modern Slavery Statement setting out our 

commitments to ensuring modern slavery and human trafficking have no place in 
our business and supply chains. 

 
4.6 The Modern Slavery Statement at Appendix 2 to this report sets out the 

commitments we are making to manage and minimise the risk of slavery or 
trafficking occurring within day to day operations. 

  
 Response to the recommendations of the Procuring Well-Being in Wales – Future 

Generations Commissioners for Wales’ Section 20 Procurement Review Report 
 
4.7 In March 2020, the Council was one of nine public sector bodies that participated in 

the Procuring Well-Being in Wales - Future Generations Commissioner for Wales’ 
Section 20 Procurement Review.  

 
4.8 In March 2021 the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales published the 

Section 20 Procurement Review Report that highlighted key recommendations. 

Page 134



 

Based on the research and review phase of the Commissioner’s procurement work, 
they identified some areas of strength, as well as further opportunities for 
development, when considering our contribution to the seven well-being goals and 
organisational well-being objectives and using the five ways of working to think 
differently about our approach to procurement.  

 
4.9 A key strength for the council is the long-term approach to working collaboratively 

with the commissioning teams, considering the outcomes procurement can deliver.  
 
4.10 An action plan has been developed to implement the main recommendations of the 

report which shall include:- 
 

 Revise the current Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs).  

 Consider and act upon the awaited Welsh Government response to the report 

including making any necessary amendments to the CPRs. 

 Update the CPRs following any changes to the procurement regulations.  

 Update the council Pre-Tender Client Information Sheet to specifically request 

consideration of a Well-Being Impact Assessment, which includes longer-term 

implications of a purchasing activity. 

 The development of the revised Procurement Strategy which shall address how 

opportunities to include the well-being objectives into procurement processes in line 

with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 can be maximised.  

 Reduction in the use of Exemptions from tendering, in order to avoid the same 

contract rolling over with no opportunity for improved, or new, well-being obligations 

included in the contract terms.  

 Commissioners will be encouraged to use the appropriate quality criteria in the 

context of future generations and carbon footprint.  

 Increase collaboration with the Councils’ Economic Development team and 

continue the existing work with the Centre for Local Economic Strategy initiative. 

 Officers in the corporate procurement team will encourage the use of longer term 

contracting, rather than short term repeat exercises.  

 Consideration is being given to amending the Pre-Tender Client Information Sheet 

Form to greater reflect the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  and 

how it could be adapted in the future to take into account any decision made by 

Welsh Government in respect of  the Real Living Wage.  

 Continue to explore the use of the Themes, Outcomes and Measures tool (TOMS) 

in our procurement process. 

 Encourage commissioners and key stakeholders to actively take part in internal and 

external groups in order to share learning and develop best practice. 

 Continue with the work on the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal and encourage 

sharing best practice. 

 Continue working with our cluster, Cwm Taf and Bridgend Public Service Boards, to 

develop an anchor institution with the support from the Centre for Local Economic 

Strategy. 

 
 

Page 135



 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 The Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy is an important document setting 

out procurement practices and actions the Council will take in respect of its 
procurements and in line with internal and external policies and procedures.  
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there 

would be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected 
characteristics, on socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh language. 
It is therefore not necessary to carry out a full EIA on this policy or proposal.  
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 The strategy is essential not just in providing a strategic direction and framework for 

the Council’s procurement arrangements but in terms of securing value for money 
and will continue to support directorate savings from the Council’s external spend. 
 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
(i) approve and adopt the revised Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy attached 

at Appendix 1 to this report to take effect from 1st October 2021; 
 
(ii) approve and adopt the Modern Slavery Statement attached at Appendix 2 to this 

report to take effect from 1st October 2021; 
 
(iii) delegate authority to the Chief Officer – Legal, HR & Regulatory Services to conduct 

an annual review of the Modern Slavery Statement, make amendments to that 
statement as appropriate and publish the Modern Slavery Statement every financial 
year as required;  

 
(iv) Note the responses to the recommendations of the Procuring well-being in Wales 

Report as outlined in Section 4.10 of this report. 
  
Kelly Watson 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL, HR & REGULATORY SERVICES  
 
01 September 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Rachel Jones 

 Corporate Procurement Manager 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 642596 

Page 136



 

 
Email:   Rachel.jones2@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Corporate Procurement 
    Legal & Regulatory Services 

Civic Offices 
Angel Street  
Bridgend  
CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None 
 
 
 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy 

2021 - 2024 

Draft 3.2 

7th September 2021 

  

P
age 139



2 
 

Table of Contents 
Foreword .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Why Procurement is Important to Bridgend ................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Procurement Context....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Organisational Procurement Objectives ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 10 

Making procurement spend more accessible to local small businesses and third sector ............................................................................................................. 11 

Improving Fair Work and Safeguarding practices adopted by suppliers ....................................................................................................................................... 12 

Increasing community benefits delivered by suppliers ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Contributing to the Council’s aim to be a Carbon-Neutral Council by 2030 ................................................................................................................................. 14 

Securing value for money and managing demand ........................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

Ensuring legal compliance and robust and transparent governance ............................................................................................................................................ 16 

Promoting innovative and best practice solutions ........................................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Key Enablers ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Monitoring, Reviewing and Reporting ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Supplier Support and Further Information .................................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

 

 
 
  

P
age 140



3 
 

Foreword  
Bridgend County Borough is a great place to live and work but like the rest of the world it has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.  As we 

look to recover from the impacts of Covid-19 we want to utilise the Council’s annual spend of over £186m to support the local and regional 

economy.  Our first Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy puts delivering economic, environmental, social and cultural well-being at the 

heart of what we do.  The Council recognises that procurement will be one of the key tools that enables the Council to deliver its strategic 

priorities and in ensuring that the Council buys the right thing at the right time for the right price.   

As set out in our Corporate Plan Well-being Objective 3  - Smarter use of resources  “We recognise that we need to continue to make smarter 

use of our resources, looking at different ways of delivering services, embracing technology and working with partners and our communities to 

deliver financially sustainable services for the long term. In this way we can maximise our contribution to achieving our well-being objectives 

and improving well-being for our citizens while achieving those planned savings.” 

The Council faces a number of well-documented challenges including our response to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on our 

communities and businesses, our response to the climate emergency and our response to managing ongoing budgetary constraints at a time 

of increasing demand for services.  We want to use our procurement programme to: 

• Support implementation of the Council’s 2030 Decarbonisation Strategy and the circular economy; 

• Maximise opportunities for local businesses, particularly those who demonstrate fair work practices; 

• Support the foundational economy; 

• Maximise the delivery of social value / community benefits;  

• Act as a key driver to achieving our wellbeing ambitions and as a driver of organisational change;   

• Deliver value for money whilst considering the whole life cost.  

 

 

Mark Shephard – Chief Executive/ Cllr Huw David Leader of the Council  

P
age 141



4 
 

Why Procurement is Important to Bridgend 
Bridgend County Borough Council delivers a wide range of statutory and discretionary services to over 

147,000 residents.  The Council does this through its own workforce and through over 1,700 private and 

third sector organisations.   

The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with probity and to ensure that its 

£186m of annual procurement spend is managed in such a way that it supports the delivery 

of wider Council priorities. This Strategy sets out: 

 Procurement’s role in supporting the delivery of the Council’s three main 

Corporate Well-being objectives (see Fig 1) and Directorate Business Plans. 

 How the Council will ensure that value for money is achieved. 

 Seven key procurement priorities and what the Council will do to deliver these 

priorities and how delivery will be demonstrated. 

 The key changes that will be made to improve the management of its external 

spend on goods, services and works. 

 What the Council will do to enhance procurement capacity and expertise 

 

The Future Generations Commissioner for Wales 2021 report “Procuring Well-being in Wales” identified a number 

of challenges and constraints in procuring sustainably including: 

 Organisational buy-in, leadership involvement and engagement 

o Leaders failing to view procurement as an important function or lever in meeting corporate (well-being) 

objectives.  

 Insufficient resources and capacity within the procurement function and amongst procurement professionals. 

 

 

One 

Council 

1. Supporting a 

successful & 

sustainable economy 

2. Helping people & 

Communities be more 

healthy & resilient 
3. Smarter Use of 

Resources 

Figure 1: The Council’s 3 Wellbeing Objectives 

 

P
age 142



5 
 

How we manage Procurement 
The Council’s seven strong Procurement Team uses a category management approach and works with Directorates to deliver their 

requirements, whilst providing corporate oversight to the Council.  They: 

 Aim to ensure that procured services deliver good value for money. 

 Look to utilise the efficiency offered by regional and national frameworks.    

 Are actively engaged in the decarbonisation work and the 21st century school modernisation programmes.  

 Provide procurement support to infrastructure projects, including as outcomes to the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal that will see 

significant and extensive investment in infrastructure and business within the County Borough. 

 Enable economic regeneration through procurement and collaboration with internal and external partners. 

 Are exploring the potential to maximise the delivery of social value by implementing the use of the Welsh TOMs. 

 Are working to embed the “5 Ways of Working” into the procurement processes and raise awareness with suppliers.   

 Procurement Spend 
 

In 2020/21 the Council spend with third parties was 

£186m of which £172m was revenue spend and £14m 

capital spend.  The chart show that the highest spend 

was by the Social Services and Well-being Directorate 

(£66.6m) followed by the Communities Directorate 

(£52.0m). 

 

 

 

P
age 143



6 
 

Procurement Context 
There are a number of priorities, policy aspirations and legislative requirements that have been taken into account when developing this 
Strategy.  These include: 

UK Legislative Context 
The Council’s procurement of goods, services and works are primarily governed by the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCRs 2015) which 

transposed EU Directives and EU Treaty Principles into UK law.  The PCRs 2015 are grounded in the principles of free movement of goods, 

freedom of establishment and freedom to provide services. These principles are under pinned by  equal treatment, non-discrimination, mutual 

recognition, proportionality and transparency.   

In response to the UK leaving the EU, the UK Government issued a Green Paper: Transforming Public Procurement and  the consultation closed 

in March 2021.  The UK Government’s stated aim is to speed up and simplify procurement processes, place value for money at their heart, and 

unleash opportunities for small businesses, charities and social enterprises to innovate in public service delivery.  It will also look enshrine in 

law, the principles of public procurement: value for money, the public good, transparency, integrity, efficiency, fair treatment of suppliers and 

non-discrimination. 

In addition to the PCRs 2015 the Council needs to ensure that its procurement policies and practices adhere to a range of additional legislative 

requirements including the Equality Act 2010. 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
This is a key piece of legislation that focuses on improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-

being of Wales. The aim of the Act is to help create a Wales that we all want to live in, now and in the future. 

Procurement is one of the seven corporate areas for change in the Act’s statutory guidance and the Act recognises 

the important role procurement can play: 

“The role of procurement will be an important part of how a public body allocates resources under the Act. It is 

expected that public bodies comply with their existing legal obligations in relation to procurement and that they 

also apply the Wales Procurement Policy Statement. This Policy adopts the Sustainable Procurement Task Force’s 

definition of sustainable procurement 

… 

This sets out the procurement practices and the specific actions expected of every public sector organisation in Wales” 

P
age 144



7 
 

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014  
This Act introduced a duty on local authorities and local health boards to promote the development (in their area) of not for profit 

organisations to provide care and support for carers, and preventative services. These models include services across the range that make up 

the third sector - social enterprises, co-operative organisations, co-operative arrangements, and user-led services. 

Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill 
The Bill is expected to be enacted in 2022 and sets out a range of actions the Council will need ensure it implements.  This includes publishing a 

Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy that will set out how the Council will carry out procurement in a socially responsible way, how it will 

secure value for money and how it will ensure payment of invoices within 30 days.  There will also be a requirement to publish an annual 

Procurement Report, maintain and publish a contracts register and publish a contract forward plan / pipeline. 

The Council will be required to carry out procurement in a socially responsible way by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable 

development principle, aimed at contributing to the achievement of— (a) the well-being goals listed in section 4 of the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015, and (b) the fair work goal (within the meaning given by section 4), referred to for the purposes of this Part as 

the “socially responsible procurement goals.”  A Council must set and publish objectives designed to maximise its contribution to achieving the 

socially responsible procurement goals. 

The Wales Procurement Policy Statement (WPPS)  
The third WPPS published in March 2021 sets out the ten principles the Welsh Government expects the Welsh public sector to 

follow for procuring well-being for Wales based on the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act Goals and key Welsh 

Government policies.  They include: 

 Leveraging collaborative procurement activity in Wales to maximise long-term sustainable social and economic value 

outcomes from public spend. 

 Supporting Welsh Government policy objectives relating to progressive procurement, such as the Foundational and 

Circular Economy. 

 Preventing climate change by prioritising carbon reduction and zero emissions through more responsible and sustainable procurement. 

 Collaborating with stakeholders to promote equal opportunities and fair work in Wales. 

 Improving the integration and user experience of our digital solutions and applications, maximising the use of our procurement data to 

support decision-making.  

P
age 145

mailto:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/wales-procurement-policy-statement-2021.pdf


8 
 

Welsh Government Initiatives 

Community Benefits – aimed at delivering maximum value for the Welsh pound when tendering contracts.   

Code of Practice – Ethical Employment in Supply Chains – Bridgend Council has signed up to the Code of Practice’s 11 

commitments including the following employment issues: 

• Modern Slavery and human rights abuses. 

• Blacklisting. 

• False self-employment. 

• Unfair use of umbrella schemes and zero hours contracts.  

• Paying the Living Wage. 

Opening Doors: The Charter for SME Friendly Procurement – recognises that 99% of Welsh businesses are SMEs and their important role in the 
Foundational Economy.  The Charter sets out a range of public sector commitments to SMEs and SME commitments to the public sector. 

Wales Procurement Policy Notes – a series of Guidance notes for the Welsh Public sector. 

Progress towards the Development of a New Procurement Landscape for Wales – recognises the role of procurement for supporting delivery against 

a number of important policy areas.  It sets out 7 commitments that recognise that a new procurement approach is required in Wales and 7 commitments that 

the Welsh Government will take toward procurement.  These are underpinned by 9 procurement transformation strands.   

UK Steel Charter – the Council has signed the Charter and has committed to implementing the steps when appropriate to do so, including the following: 

 Place a requirement in our appropriate contracts requiring the origin of steel to be provided. 

 Stipulate use of steel products accredited to BRE Standard BES 6001 in appropriate contracts. 

 Introduce a requirement for tender applications to include supply chain plans. 

 

Bridgend and the Cardiff Capital Region Context 
The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal was signed in March 2016 and is an agreement between the UK government, the Welsh government 

and the ten leaders of the local CCR. It includes £1.2 billion investment in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure through a 20-year 

Investment Fund. 

P
age 146

mailto:https://gov.wales/procurement-social-value-community-benefits
mailto:https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-11/code-practice-ethical-employment-in-supply-chains.pdf
mailto:https://gov.wales/welsh-procurement-policy-notes
mailto:https://gov.wales/progress-towards-the-development-of-a-new-procurement-landscape-in-wales
mailto:https://www.makeuk.org/insights/publications/uk-steel-charter


9 
 

Council Policy Drivers  
The Corporate Plan 2018-23 sets out the Council’s ambitions and commitments to citizens and its contribution to Wales’ seven well-being 

goals as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  The vision is “one Council working together to improve lives”. The 

Plan sets out the key principles that “underpin how we work” and the values that “shape how we work”.  The Corporate Plan is updated on an 

annual basis and has 3 well-being objectives: 

1. Supporting a successful and sustainable economy. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient. 

3. Smarter use of resources.   

Directorate Business Plans  set out how each Directorate will contribute to the delivery of the Council’s well-being objectives.  They set out the 

actions the Directorate will take to achieve the Corporate Plan outcomes and how they will be measured. 

There are a number of other key Policies, Strategies and Programmes that will influence this Strategy and in particular the Delivery Plan that 

sets out how the seven priorities will be delivered.  They include: 

 Decarbonisation Strategy. 

 Covid-19 Recovery Plans. 

 Digitisation Programme. 

 Transformation Programme. 

 

  

P
age 147



10 
 

Organisational Procurement Objectives 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out the important role that procurement has in delivering well-being goals.  The 

draft Social Partnership and Public Procurement (Wales) Bill  states that the Council “must set and publish objectives designed to maximise its 

contribution to achieving the socially responsible procurement goals.”  The Council’s seven Organisational Procurement Priorities set out how 

the Council’s procurement activity will contribute towards improving local economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being.   

1. Making procurement spend more accessible to local small businesses and third sector. 

2. Improving Fair Work and Safeguarding practices adopted by suppliers. 

3. Increasing community benefits delivered by suppliers. 

4. Contributing to the Council’s aim to be a Carbon-Neutral Council by 2030. 

5. Securing value for money and managing demand. 

6. Ensuring legal compliance and robust and transparent governance.  

7. Promoting innovative and best practice solutions. 

 

  

P
age 148



11 
 

Making procurement spend more accessible to local 
small businesses and third sector   

 

Aim 

• To ensure that procurement decisions consider how local market can best be supported. 

We will do this by 

• Developing and then publicising a Selling to Council Guide to local businesses so they are clear about how to do business with the Council. 

• Publish our Corporate Contracts Register on the Council’s website so businesses are aware of the likely procurement opportunities. 

• Undertake targeted engagement and ‘Meet the Buyer’ events with Third Sector and local businesses. 

• Ensuring that lotting strategies that support SMEs are used. 

• Undertaking market analysis so that informed procurement decisions can be made.  

• Analyse spend data and business directories to identify opportunities to increase local supply. 

• Ensure that the Council applies prompt payment for SMEs. 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Increasing the number of business accessing and being successful when tendering for Council opportunities. 

• Increasing the spend with local businesses. 

  

P
age 149



12 
 

Improving Fair Work and Safeguarding practices 
adopted by suppliers 

    

 

Aim 

• To ensure that fair work principles are promoted across the Council and procurement processes increase fair work practices that help 

tackle poverty and inequality. 

We will do this by 

• Working towards the Welsh Government Fair Work Guidance including the Code of Practice: Ethical Employment in Supply Chains. 

• Applying Fair Work criteria in all tenders and applying appropriate weightings. 

• Supporting the development and implementation of the Council’s Modern Slavery Statement. 

• Encouraging contractors to provide equality training. 

• Ensuring contractors know how to identify and report safeguarding concerns. 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Delivering against the 11 principles of the Code of Practice: Ethical Employment in Supply Chains. 

  

P
age 150



13 
 

Increasing community benefits delivered by 
suppliers  

    

Aim 

• To increase the value of community benefits delivered through Council contracts. 

We will do this by 

• Adopting and rolling out the use of the Welsh TOMs as a scored element in all tenders over £100,000. 

• Making the ‘community benefit offer’ of the successful tenders a contractual commitment and contract managing delivery. 

• Raising awareness of community benefits internally to address any organisational culture barriers. 

• Reviewing community benefit implementation and adapting the approach as required. 

• Encouraging tenderers to provide employment, training and work placement opportunities. 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Increasing the volume and value of community benefits delivered through Council Contracts. 

 

 

  

P
age 151



14 
 

Contributing to the Council’s aim to be a 
Carbon-Neutral Council by 2030 

    

Aim 

• Embed a procurement processes that addresses climate change and a circular economy approach. 

We will do this by 

• Support initiatives that raise the awareness on climate change and circular economy – both internally and with suppliers. 

• Consider circular procurement when scoping requirements to minimise waste. 

• Learn from best practice and work with partners to develop a carbon baselining approach. 

• Increasingly use a whole life costing approach in tender evaluations. 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Reporting on carbon reduction through the Council’s 2030 Decarbonisation Governance Board. 

 

 

  

P
age 152



15 
 

Securing value for money and managing demand 

Aim 

• Ensure the achievement of value for money in terms of whole life costs and quality and that we operate efficiently. 

We will do this by 

• Continuing to manage and organise our procurement activities using a category management approach. 

• Managing procurement demand across the Council and promote a ‘Buying Responsibly’ campaign. 

• Utilising regional and national framework agreements where they represent value for money. 

• Embedding a robust and proportional contract management approach. 

• Working with Directorates to review their spend procurement data and Contract Forward Plan to identify opportunities to manage 

demand and/or drive efficiencies.  

• Supporting and encouraging Directorates to use the “5 Ways of Working” when planning their procurements.  

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Reporting of procurement’s contribution to savings targets. 

 

  

P
age 153



16 
 

Ensuring legal compliance and robust and transparent governance 

Aim 

• Ensure Council staff have awareness of, and comply with, relevant legislation and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

We will do this by 

• Ensuring staff involved in the procurement process have the required skills, knowledge and tools to work effectively. 

• Regularly reviewing and updating procurement documentation to ensure they reflect best practice. 

• Ensuring procurement documentation, processes and controls are in place to ensure compliance. 

• Regularly reporting on procurement activity and non-compliance to Corporate Management Board. 

• Publishing an annual procurement report 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Publishing an annual Procurement Report. 

 

  

P
age 154



17 
 

Promoting innovative and best practice solutions 
Aim 

• Encourage and utilise innovation where it can reduce costs and /or improve effectiveness. 

We will do this by 

• Reviewing the procurement forward pipeline to identify innovation opportunities. 

• Ensuring early and ongoing Directorate engagement to scope and deliver their requirements. 

• Challenging Directorates over existing procurement arrangements. 

• Seeking examples of market innovations and best practice. 

We will demonstrate delivery by 

• Reporting and developing case studies to highlight best practice. 

 
  

P
age 155



18 
 

Key Enablers 
The Council has identified five key enablers that will be critical to the delivery of this Strategy:   

People 
• Continue to invest in our People to ensure that the Procurement Team has the right mix of skills, knowledge and expertise.  

• Ensure staff across the Council have the procurement skills, knowledge and tools to work effectively and independently. 

Process 
• Simplify and standardise our core processes and ensure our controls ensure compliance. 

• Ensure that standard templates are in place for key procurement and contracting documentation and that these are regularly reviewed. 

Technology 
• Invest in the use of technology and e-procurement to underpin and simplify our core processes for both staff and suppliers.  

• Improve our Purchase to Pay (P2P) processes to drive efficiency savings. 

Information  
• Provide staff with accurate timely spend data to inform procurement decisions and identify savings opportunities.  

• Produce an annual procurement performance report.  

• Support Directorates to optimise their spend in the achievement of their strategic objectives. 

Culture 
• Develop a culture that is innovative and challenges traditional delivery to improve what we do and drive savings.  

• Ensure that staff understand and appreciate the rules and policies of the Council. 

• Ensure that there is positive engagement with staff across the Council to support and encourage the delivery of innovative solutions within 

the agreed Council rules and wider legislation. 

  

P
age 156



19 
 

Monitoring, Reviewing and Reporting 
A detailed Delivery Plan will be developed and shall set out the actions that the Council will take to deliver this Socially Responsible 

Procurement Strategy.  This Delivery Plan will be updated on an annual basis and will be used to manage and report on progress on an annual 

basis to Corporate Management Board.  

The Council will publish a procurement annual report at the end of each financial year.  The report will include: 

 A progress report on the implementation of the Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy Delivery Plan.  

 A summary of the contracts awarded above PCRs 2015 Thresholds. 

 Details of a review into the extent to which Council contracts contributed to improving well-being in Bridgend. 

 A statement of the how the Council intends to further improve the delivery of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being. 

 A summary of the procurement the Council expects to carry out in the next two financial years. 

Supplier Support and Further Information 
Bridgend Council’s Procurement website https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/procurement will include the Socially Responsible Procurement 

Strategy Delivery Plan which sets out how the Council will deliver the Strategy and the annual Procurement Report. 

Bridgend Council’s Corporate Contracts Register - https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/business/contracts-awarded/ 

Business advice and support - https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/business/business-zone/business-advice-and-support/ Sell2Wales is the national 

advertising portal where Welsh public sector organisations post their contract opportunities. https://www.sell2wales.gov.wales/ 

Etenderwales – is the portal for conducting all tenders 

https://etenderwales.bravosolution.co.uk/web/login.shtml?_ncp=1387297456320.119009-1  

Constructionline – is the portal that Bridgend Council utilise for tenders up to the value specified in the council’s Contract Procedure Rules for 

Works - https://www.constructionline.co.uk/ 

Contact Details – Corporate Procurement Unit, Level 4, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB 

Email – procurementteam@bridgend.gov.uk 

P
age 157

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/procurement
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/business/contracts-awarded/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/business/business-zone/business-advice-and-support/
https://www.sell2wales.gov.wales/
https://etenderwales.bravosolution.co.uk/web/login.shtml?_ncp=1387297456320.119009-1
https://www.constructionline.co.uk/
mailto:procurementteam@bridgend.gov.uk


20 
 

Telephone – 01656 642596                  Website – www.bridgend.gov.uk/procurement (from 2022)  

P
age 158

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/procurement


1 
 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

 

Modern Slavery Statement 

 

Financial Year: 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 

 

1. Overview 

Bridgend County Borough Council delivers a wide range of statutory and discretionary 

services to over 147,000 residents.  The Council does this through its own workforce 

and through over 1,700 private and third sector organisations.   

 

The Council is a signatory to the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice: Ethical 

Employment in Supply Chains.  The Code of Practice includes the following 

employment issues: 

• Modern Slavery and human rights abuses 

• Blacklisting  

• False self-employment 

• Unfair use of umbrella schemes and zero hours contracts and  

• Paying the Living Wage 

 

The Code’s 12 commitments include tackling Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking.  

This Statement sets out the action that the Council has taken, and will take, to ensure 

that there is no Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking in its own business or supply 

chains. 

 

Bridgend Couty Borough Council is fully committed to providing visibility to its Modern 

Slavery Statement and ensuring ‘Transparency in Supply Chains’.  To this end the 

Council is working in partnership with Welsh Government, the wider public sector, 

suppliers, service providers, trade unions and others to address modern slavery 

challenges and drive collaborative action with a view to reducing risks and incidence 

of modern slavery. 

  

2. What is Modern Slavery? 

In the UK, the Modern Slavery Act 2015 defines criminal offences of slavery, servitude 

and forced or compulsory labour and of human trafficking, and includes measures for 

the protection of potential victims. 

  

Modern Slavery is a serious crime that violates human rights. Victims are forced, 

threatened or deceived into situations of subjugation, degradation and control which 

undermine their personal identity and sense of self. 

Page 159

https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en


2 
 

 

The Council is fully aware of its designation as a ‘First Responder’ organisation under 

the National Referral Mechanism and its responsibility to identify potential victims and 

refer cases to the UK Human Trafficking Centre Competent Authority of the National 

Referral Mechanism. 

 

3. Our Policies 

The Corporate Plan 2018-23 sets out the Council’s ambitions and commitments to 

citizens and its contribution to Wales’ seven well-being goals as outlined in the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  The vision is “one Council working 

together to improve lives”. The Plan sets out the key principles that “underpin how 

we work” and the values that “shape how we work”.   

 

The Corporate Plan is updated on an annual basis and has 3 well-being objectives: 

1. Supporting a successful and sustainable economy. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient. 

3. Smarter use of resources.   

 

The Council’s over-arching Corporate Safeguarding Policy (ADD LINK) sets out the 

Council’s duty and commitment to safeguard and promote the wellbeing of children, 

young people and adults at risk and to ensure that effective practices are in place 

throughout the Council and its commissioned services. The policy covers all functions 

and services of the Council and applies to all Council employees, elected members, 

foster carers, individuals undertaking work placements and volunteers working within 

the Council. 

 

The other key strategies and policies include: 

 The Council’s Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy (ADD LINK) sets out the 

Council’s commitment to “Improving Fair Work and Safeguarding practices 

adopted by suppliers.”  The Council wants to work with organisations that share 

its values. 

 The Council has adopted the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice on Ethical 

Employment in Supply Chains and the elimination of modern slavery, so that 

Bridgend County Borough Council plays a leading role in making Wales hostile to 

modern slavery.  

 The Whistleblowing Policy  enables Council staff and employees of the Council’s 

contractors / suppliers to report unethical employment practices to the Council. 

 Employee Code of Conduct makes it clear to employees the actions and behaviour 

expected of them when representing the Council. In performing their duties, they 

must act with integrity, honesty, impartiality and objectivity.  The organisation 

strives to maintain the highest standards of employee conduct and ethical 

behaviour in all its operations and when managing our supply chain.  

 Recruitment policy - the Council aims at all times to recruit the person who is most 

suited to the particular job. The Council has robust recruitment processes, which 

Page 160

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/media/10448/corporate-plan-2018-2023-reviewed-for-2021-22.pdf
https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14807/whistleblowing%20policy%20Jan%202018%20review%20clean%20copy.pdf


3 
 

includes document checks to ensure that candidates are allowed to work in the 

UK. 

 Agency workers – the Council sources all agency workers and temporary staff 

through  third party providers. We contract a managed service with Pertemps 

whose Modern Slavery Statement sets out their zero tolerance approach to 

modern slavery and is available on their website.   

 
4. Our supply chains   

Bridgend County Borough Council delivers a wide range of statutory and discretionary 

services to over 147,000 residents.  The Council does this through its own workforce 

and through over 1,700 private and third sector organisations.  

  

The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with probity and to ensure 

that its £186m of annual procurement spend is managed in such a way that it supports 

the delivery of wider Council priorities. The Council recognises that our supply chains 

spread across the world, and that parts of the supply chain could be engaged in 

modern slavery.  The Council will focus on our direct suppliers and will require our 

suppliers to ensure that their supply chain is free from modern slavery. 

 

The high-risk sectors for modern slavery include leisure, hospitality, catering, cleaning, 

clothing, construction and manufacturing.  A review of Council spend has shown that 

for the majority of the high-risk areas the Council provides the service in-house, 

utilises national frameworks and/or local suppliers.  The risk of modern slavery and 

human trafficking by our direct suppliers is considered low. 

Through the tendering process, the Council ensures that our direct suppliers are aware 

of our commitment to tackle modern slavery and human trafficking and that they also 

understand their obligations as a supplier or contractor of the Council. 

The Council undertakes due diligence when considering taking on new suppliers and 

will seek to review its existing suppliers on an annual basis through its contract 

management arrangements.  The due diligence and reviews include: 

 Ensuring compliance with the s54 (Modern Slavery Act 2015) requirement 

regarding a Modern Slavery Statement and, as part of tender evaluation and 

ongoing contract management, consideration of the potential and likelihood of 

modern slavery; seeking mitigations from the supplier through a clear 

understanding of the suppliers’ structure, business and supply chains and policies 

in relation to slavery and human trafficking. 

 Conducting supplier assessments to create a risk profile focusing on financial 

stability and also covering insurance and compliance with various employment 

policies including the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice: Ethical Employment 

in Supply Chains. 

Page 161



4 
 

 Taking steps to improve sub-standard supplier practices, including the provision of 

advice to suppliers and requiring them to implement Action Plans; for example to 

demonstrate compliance with safer recruitment guidelines. 

 Participating in collaborative initiatives focused on human rights and socially 

responsible procurement policies in general and modern slavery and human 

trafficking in particular. 

 Invoking sanctions in respect of suppliers who fail to meet our expectations or to 

improve their performance in line with an Action Plan, which includes a provision 

to terminate the business relationship. 

 

5. Employee training 

Bridgend County Borough Council is committed to providing a range of training for our 

employees in order to raise awareness of modern slavery, human trafficking and forced 

labour. In addition to awareness level training some staff will need training specific to 

their role for example identified first responders and commissioning and procurement 

staff.   

 

We aim to provide a programme of training which will include: 

 e-learning modern slavery / human trafficking awareness module 

 Train the trainer workshop (awareness and first responder)    

 Modern Slavery / human trafficking awareness workshop (3 hours) 

 Anti-Slavery first responder course. 

 Externally commissioned training for specific groups of staff (e.g. procurement and 

commissioning) 

 

In addition to the training programme staff will have access to on-line resources which 

will include e-learning on specialist topics such as county lines,  and links to videos, guides 

and external websites that hold information on modern slavery and human trafficking. 

 

6. Duty to Notify 

Specified public authorities have a duty to notify the Secretary of State of any individual 

encountered in England and Wales who they believe is a suspected victim of slavery or 

human trafficking.  The ‘duty to notify’ provision is set out in Section 52 of the Modern 

Slavery Act 2015, and applies to local authorities in England and Wales which includes 

Bridgend County Borough Council which as a designated first responder organisation can 

make referrals into the NRM.  The National Referral Mechanism (NRM) is a framework for 

identifying and referring potential victims of modern slavery and ensuring they receive 

the appropriate support.   

This requirement in respect of potential victims of modern slavery is harnessed to 

responsibilities under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, and the All 

Wales Safeguarding Procedures as set out in the Corporate Safeguarding Policy when, as 

an employee of the local authority, members of staff have a duty to report any 

safeguarding concerns in relation to a child or adult at risk. 

Page 162



5 
 

 
 
Bridgend MASH (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub) 
South Wales Police MASH Staff (PPU) 
Phone: 01656 815808 
  
Safeguarding Adults Team 
Phone: 01656 642477 
  
Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) Team (Children) 
Phone: 01656 642320 
Email: mashcentra@bridgend.gov.uk 

  

7. What the Council has done  

We have: 

 Become a signatory of the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice: Ethical 

Employment in Supply Chains. 

 Started the process of reviewing our supply chains to identify high risk areas. 

 Developed a Socially Responsible Procurement Strategy and Delivery Plan. 

 Continued to support Welsh Government efforts to promote the Code of 

Practice and share best practice in relevant circumstances. 

 Become a member of the Western Bay Anti-Slavery Forum (WBASF) the key 

focus of the forum is to:  

o promote Anti-Slavery awareness training across the Western Bay 

(Bridgend / Neath Port Talbot and Swansea regions) footprint;  

o consider the frequency and type of referrals under the National 

Referral Mechanism (NRM) and receive updates on local Anti-Slavery 

MARAC and 

o facilitate an exchange of human trafficking information and 

intelligence gathering across the whole range of statutory services, 

and associated third party organisations. 

 Committed to  review what we offer under corporate safeguarding training to 

ensure we provide training where there are statutory responsibilities for the 

local authority.  

 

8. What the Council will do  

Bridgend County Borough Council will take the following action in our efforts to 

ensure that there is no Modern Slavery or Human Trafficking. 

 

Ref Action 

1 In line with clause 7 of the Code of Practice, continue to ensure that the 
Council carries out a regular review of expenditure and undertakes a risk 
assessment.  We will continue to: 

Page 163

mailto:mashcentra@bridgend.gov.uk


6 
 

 Identify any high risk suppliers and monitor for human rights abuses 
and unethical employment practices which will become a standard 
agenda item in contract meetings and reviews. 

 Explore ways of working with our Tier 1 suppliers to raise awareness of 
modern slavery to prevent it from occurring through a formalised Risk 
Assessment process: ‘Tackling Modern Slavery in Supply Chains’. 

2 Utilising the Code of Practice – Ethical Employment in Supply Chains – deliver 
on a Modern Slavery Communication Strategy to ensure awareness is raised 
across the Council and with partner organisations and other agencies. 

 Share learning and best practice across the Council, with other public 
sector bodies, partners and look to learn from their experiences. 

 Continue engagement with Trade Unions to raise awareness of modern 
slavery with their members. 

3 We will deliver a targeted programme of Modern Slavery (virtual) training 
across the various Council directorates – in compliance with Covid-19-related 
restrictions, coordinated with wider Corporate Safeguarding training.   

 We shall continue to identify staff requiring training in ethical 
employment practices and seek to build awareness / capacity 
particularly amongst front-facing members of staff working in the 
Community. 

 We shall look to extend the pool of in-house trainers available to 
facilitate awareness level training for staff across the Council. 

 We will keep records of who has undertaken training across the various 
directorates and target those where completion rates require 
improvement. 

4 Review and update where necessary the Modern Slavery Statement annually 
and report progress on this Action Plan. 

5 We shall encourage suppliers to add Modern Slavery social value clauses to new 
contracts as this will incentivise good practice, including the use of relevant tools 
and data sets. 

6 We shall participate in ‘communities of practice’ where Local Authorities work 
together to share best practice and achieve efficiencies of scale, e.g. sharing due 
diligence data across public, private and voluntary sectors to inform audits, etc. 
(using platforms such as TISCreport). 

7 
 
 
 

Complete a review and update the Council’s tender documentation to ensure 
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking issues are fully addressed which 
include clauses to: 

(i) Check that contractors who have a turnover above £36million have a 
Modern Slavery Statement. 

(ii) Include the Code of Practice: Ethical Employment in Supply Chains as a 
part of our tender documents. 

8 Appoint a Modern Slavery ‘Champion’ 

Page 164



7 
 

9 Complete a review and update the Council’s standard T&Cs to ensure         
employment practices are considered as part of the procurement process: 

(i) Review supplier contracts and map supply chains through due 
diligence – with an option to include sanctions or a termination clause 
if Modern Slavery is suspected. 

(ii) Ensure the absence of undue time and cost pressures which could 
result in unethical treatment of staff. 

(iii) Embed a zero-tolerance approach to Modern Slavery. 

 

9. Supporting Material / Resources 

In addition to the links highlighted throughout the Statement the Home Office has a range of 

documents and promotional material available - 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/modern-slavery 

 

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

14 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL, HR & REGULATORY SERVICES 
 
REVISED CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet: 
  
• for the revised Contract Procedure Rules to take effect from 1st October 2021; 

 
• for the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions in relation to Executive 

Functions to be amended in accordance with paragraph 4.17 of this Report; and 
 
• to note that a report will be taken to Council to amend the Constitution to 

incorporate the revised Contract Procedure Rules and amendments to the Scheme 
of Delegation of Functions in relation to Council functions. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objective under the  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-   

 
Smarter use of resources – ensure that all  resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  
 

2.2 Contract Procedure Rules are the internal regulations which govern how 
contracts for goods, services and works are let. They offer standard 
procedures which aim to safeguard the Council in terms of risk and compliance 
with UK and European legislation. They contribute to delivering services more 
efficiently with a focus on collaboration and partnership  working and maintain 
strong and sustainable financial performance. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The Council is required to review the Contract Procedure Rules, which form part of 

the Council’s Constitution, on a regular basis. 
 
3.2 The Contract Procedure Rules contain the rules and guidelines for procuring goods, 
 services and works. They are designed to ensure compliance with UK and 
 European law, ensure best practice is followed and best value is achieved in 
 the use of public funds. 
  
4. Current situation/proposal 
 

Page 167

Agenda Item 15



 

4.1 Following a review of the Contract Procedure Rules, a number of changes have 
been made to the existing Contract Procedure Rules to ensure the Council 
modernises the way it procures goods, services and works. A copy of the revised 
Contract Procedure Rules is attached to this report at Appendix 1. 

 
 Revised Contract Procedure Rules 
 

The key changes are highlighted in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.16 below: 
 

4.2 Change of titles of Chief Officers. 
 
4.3 Amendment to some definitions for ease of understanding and consequential 

amendments to reflect legal changes following the expiry of the transition period of 
the UK leaving the EU . 

 
4.4 Clarification on the need for a delegated power for all spend (Rule 4). 
 
4.5 Included the requirement of conflict of interest and declaration of interest forms to 

be completed for every tender (Rule  5). 
 
4.6 Slight change to the use of the Pre-tender Client Information Sheet so that it is now 

only required where Cabinet approval is not sought (Rule 1). 
 
4.7 Updated the clauses required in every contract – these have been removed from 

the Contract Procedure Rules and instead template clauses will be made available 
on the procurement page of the Council’s intranet (Rule 6).   

 
4.8 Included consideration for the UK Steel Charter, Code of Practice – Ethical 

Employment in the Supply Chain, Project Bank Accounts and the Well Being and 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (Rule 6). 

 
4.9 Clarification on the use of electronic tendering only (Rule 12). 
 
4.10 Contract management form required to be fully completed and availability of training 

from the procurement team (section 26). 
 
4.11  A new Contract Procedure Rule 27.2 has been added and is as follows; “With the 

exception of Rule 23.1, “The Monitoring Officer shall have authority to make 
alterations of a minor nature or such as are required to be enacted immediately to 
ensure compliance with statutory obligations.  Any minor changes will be reported to 
the next meeting of the Council”. This provision has been included to cover 
situations where there has been changes or updates to legislation that require 
immediate changes to be made to the Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
4.12 Minor amendments have been made to the thresholds for goods, services and 

works to provide clarity (Rule 7). 
 
4.13 Included reference to Social Value (Rule 6). 
 
4.14  Additional provisions have been included relating to procurement planning (Rule 2). 
 

Page 168



 

4.15 Amendments to the requirements for the opening of electronic tenders. For those 
quotations or tenders with an estimated value between £5,000 to £100,000, they will 
be opened in the presence of one officer from the corporate procurement team 
instead. Tenders with an estimated value exceeding £1,000,000 can now be 
opened in the presence of three officers; the Monitoring Officer or their nominated 
representative and two further officers usually an officer from democratic 
servicesand an officer from the corporate procurement team (Rule 14). 

 
 Amendments to the Scheme of Delegation of Functions 
 
4.16 The following amendments will be required to the Council’s Scheme of Delegation 

of Functions in relation to Executive Functions as set out below in tracked changes: 
 
 General Powers of Chief Officers 
 
 Paragraph 1.7 to be removed in its entirety: “accept the lowest tender received where 

payment is to be made by the Council and the highest tender received where payment is to 
be received by the Council in consultation with the Procurement Manager.” 

 

Renumbering of current paragraphs 1.8 to 1.13 of General Powers of Chief Officers 
to paragraphs 1.17 to 1.12 of General Powers of Chief Officers. 

 
 
 Scheme A (functions allocated to each Cabinet Member) 
 

Amendment to paragraph 1.2 as shown via tracked changes: 
 

1.2  
In accordance with the values set out in the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules respect of any contract having an estimated value 
exceeding £1,000,000 but not exceeding £5,000,000: 
  
(a) To authorise the invitation of tenders; and 
(b) To accept the mMost eEconomically aAdvantageous tTender 
received and enter into a Contract (form of tender), or the highest tender 
received where payment is to be received by the Council and enter into 
a Contract.  and any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract. 
(c)To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract in accordance with any exemption under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules. 
(c) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or To enter into 
a Contract and/or any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract in accordance with any permitted waiver 
under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  
 

 
 Scheme B2 functions allocated to each Chief Officer 
 

Amendment to paragraph 1.3 as shown via tracked changes: 
 
 

Page 169



 

1.3  
In accordance with the values set out in the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules: respect of any contract having an estimated value not 
exceeding £1,000,000.00: 
a) To authorise the invitation of tenders;  

(b) To accept the mMost eEconomically aAdvantageous tTender 
received and enter into a Contract (form of tender), or the highest tender 
received where payment is to be received by the Council and enter into 
a Contract.  and any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract. 
(c) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 

Contract in accordance with any exemption under the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules. 

(d) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 

Contract and/or any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract in accordance with any permitted waiver 
under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

 
  Insert an additional function at Scheme B2 as a function allocated to each Chief 

Officer 
 

  
Renumbering of current paragraphs 1.4 to 1.6 of Scheme B2 to paragraphs 1.5 to 
1.7 of Scheme B2. 

 
Insert an additional function at Scheme B2 as a function allocated to the Monitoring 
Officer 

 

3.42 To approve and enter into any further deeds and documents which are 
ancillary to any existing agreement approved by or on behalf of the 
Council / Cabinet in consultation with the Section 151 Officer and 
relevant Corporate Director. 

 
Renumbering of current paragraphs 3.42 to 3.56 of Scheme B2 to paragraphs 3.43 
to 3.57 of Scheme B2. 
 

4.17  A report  shall be taken to Council to amend the Scheme of Delegation of Functions 
in relation to Council functions and to amend the Constitution to incorporate the 
revisions to the Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 The revised Contract Procedure Rules are mandatory for all  

commissioning/procurement staff to comply with. The Contract Procedure Rules are 
a fundamental part of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

1.4 To approve a modification to an existing Contract or Framework Agreement in accordance 
with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and the values set out in the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules to enter into any deed or documents which is required to give 
effect to such modification. 

Page 170



 

5.2 The Scheme of Delegation of Functions will require amendment as detailed at 
paragraph 4.17 of the report.   
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 Although there are no direct implications, the Constitution as the key governance 

framework document for the Authority is critical in demonstrating commitment to the 
Authority’s duties under the Equality Act 2010.   
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant  or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report. 

 
9. Recommendations 
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
(i) approve the revised Contract Procedure Rules attached at Appendix 1 to this report  

to  take effect from 1st October 2021; 
 
(ii) approve the amendments to the Scheme of Delegation of Functions in relation to 

Executive functions as set out in paragraph 4.17 of this report;  
 
(iii) Note that a report will be taken to Council to amend the Scheme of Delegation of 

Functions in relation to Council functions and to amend the Constitution to incorporate 
the revisions to the Contract Procedure Rules. 
 

Kelly Watson 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL, HR & REGULATORY SERVICES 
23rd August 2021 

 
Contact officer:  Rachel Jones 

 Corporate Procurement Manager 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 642596 
 
Email:   Rachel.jones2@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Corporate Procurement 
    Legal & Regulatory Services 

Civic Offices 
Angel Street  
Bridgend  
CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



Version 0.1   April 2019 ( to be changed after approval) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bridgend County Borough Council 
 

Contract Procedure Rules 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



2 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

                                        Contents 
 

Rule  
Number 

 

Rule 

 
Page 

1 Interpretation 3 

2 Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules and Relevant European 
and U.K. Legislation 

5 

3 Exemptions and Waiver 7 

4 Delegated Authority to Enter into Contracts 13 

5 Declaration of Interest 14 

6 Selective Tendering, Invitation of Tenders and Quotations 14 

7 Thresholds and Advertising Requirements 17 

8 Pre-Tender Market Research and Consultation 19 

9 Procurement by Consultants 19 

10 Other Procurement Procedures 19 

11 Naming Products, Sub-contractors and Suppliers 20 

12 Electronic Tendering 20 

13 Submission and Custody of Tenders and Quotations 21 

14 Opening of Electronic Tenders 21 

15 Amendment of Tenders 22 

16 Post-tender Negotiation and Clarification 22 

17 Evaluation of Tenders 23 

18 Acceptance and Award of Tenders 23 

19 Letters of Intent 24 

20 Execution of Contracts 24 

21 Assignment and novation 25 

22 Termination of Contracts 25 

23 Financial Limits 26 

24 Record and Document Retention and Control 26 

25 Contract Management 26 

26 

 

Corporate Contracts Register 

 

27 

 

Page 174



3 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

27                  Review and Amendment of Contract Procedure Rules   27 

 

 

 
  

1. Interpretation 
 

In these Contract Procedure Rules:-   
 
"Appropriate Body" means the Cabinet, and any committee, panel or other body to 
which power has been delegated to accept tenders for Contracts of the category for 
which tenders are to be or have been invited. 
 
"Appropriate Chief Officer" means whichever of the following is responsible in any 
particular case for inviting tenders or placing an official order:- 

 
Chief Executive 
Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory Services  and Monitoring Officer  
Corporate Director – Education and Family Support 
 Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing 
 Corporate Director – Communities. 
 
This definition also includes any Officer to which functions have been 
delegated under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions 

  
“Cabinet” means the executive body of the Council established in accordance with 
Part II of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 
“Cabinet Functions” means the functions for which the Cabinet is responsible. 
 
“Cabinet Members” means the leader and the members of the  Cabinet. 
 
“Chief Audit Officer” means the Head of Audit Service for the Council. 
 
"Chief Finance Officer" means the nominated Section 151 officer under the Local 
Government Act 1972 for the time being having statutory responsibility for the 
administration of the Council's financial affairs. 
 
“Community Benefits” shall include any benefit to the local community which does 
not directly positively impact on the operation of the Council. This can include the 
provision of additional facilities/resources or the training of primarily inactive 
people through programmes which may include apprenticeships.  “Core” benefits 
are those which are directly related to the purpose of the Contract and can be 
measured as an outcome. “Non-Core” benefits are those which are not essential in 
the delivery of the service and will not be assessed as part of the tender evaluation 
process. 
 
“Contract” means any form of contract or agreement entered into by the Council with 
any other party for the supply of goods, services or works, or any combination 
thereof. 
 

Page 175



4 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

“Contractor” means any person or organisation that undertakes a Contractual 
relationship with the Council. 
 
“Contract Value” means the total value of the Contract over the whole term of the 
Contract. If there is no total price then the value of the Contract is to be calculated on 
the expected aggregate spend over the four year period, if there is no fixed term for 
the Contract. In the case where there is a Contract term but no total price then the 
value of the Contract is to be calculated on the expected expenditure over the whole 
Contract period, in accordance with the Regulations.  All Contract values are 
exclusive of VAT. 
 
“Corporate Contracts Register” means a live database of contracts let by the 
Council. 
 
“Corporate Procurement Manager” means the lead Officer for the Corporate 
Procurement Unit, who has functional responsibility for the delivery of 
Procurement strategy and guidance. 
 
“Council” means the Bridgend County Borough Council. 
 
“Data Protection Legislation” means (i) the UK GDPR and any applicable national 
implementing Law, as amended from time to time; (ii) the Data Protection Act 2018 
to the extent that it relates to processing of personal data and privacy; and (iii) all 
applicable Law about the processing of personal data and privacy. 
 
“EU” means the European Union. 
 
“Form of Tender” means a covering document signed by the tenderer to indicate that 
it understands the tender and accepts the terms and conditions and other 
requirements of participating in the exercise a copy of which can be found on the 
Corporate Procurement Page. 
 
“Framework Agreement” means an agreement between one or more contracting  
authorities and one or more economic operators, the purpose of which is to establish 
the terms governing Contracts to be awarded during a given period, in particular with 
regard to price and, where appropriate, the quantity envisaged. 
 
“Internal Providers” means an organisation managed, funded and staffed by the 
Council, which provides a service to various directorates and schools as its core 
business. 
 
“Legal Requirements” means all UK and Welsh law that governs and or relates to the 
procurement of goods, services and works and the letting of concession contracts. 
 
"Monitoring Officer" means the officer for the time being designated as such under 
Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 
“Most Economically Advantageous Tender” (MEAT) means criterion which enables 
the Council to take account of criteria that reflect qualitative, technical and 
sustainable aspects of the tender submission as well as price when reaching an 
award decision 
 

Page 176



5 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

“Parties” means collectively the Council and any other party or more than one party 
entering into a Contract or agreement. 
 
“Pre-tender Client Information Sheet” means a document that requires completion 
by the client before going out to tender or to obtain quotations unless a Cabinet 
Report has been approved a copy of which can be found on the Corporate 
Procurement Page. 
 
“Regulations” means the Public Contract Regulations 2015; 
 
"Trade Journal" means a newspaper or journal circulating among such persons or 
bodies as undertake Contracts of the category for which tenders are to be invited. 
 
“UK GDPR” means the UK General Data Protection Regulation. 
 
Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. 
 
Any reference to any statutory provision shall include reference to any statutory 
modification amendment or re-enactment thereof and any subordinate legislation 
made under them. 
 
 

2.  COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES AND 
RELEVANT EUROPEAN AND UK LEGISLATION 

 
 

2.1  Every Contract shall: 
 

(a)  Comply with the Council’s Constitution, including in particular the 
Financial Procedure Rules, the Scheme of Delegation of Functions and 
these Contract Procedure Rules; 

 
(b)  Comply with all relevant statutory provisions including in particular, but 

not limited to, the Local Government Act 1988 Part II, the Local 
Government (Contracts) Act 1997, the Local Government Act 1999 Part 
I,  and the Regulations;  

 
 (c)  Achieve Most Economically Advantageous Tender; 
 
(d)  Be consistent with the highest standards of integrity, having regard to 

the Bribery Act 2010 and the Competition Act 1998; 
 
(e)  Ensure fairness in allocating public Contracts; 
 
(f)  Comply with all Legal Requirements; 
 
(g)  Comply with the Equality Act 2010;  
 
(h)  Comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015;  
 
(i)  Comply with relevant employment legislation; 
 

Page 177



6 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

(j)  Support the Council’s corporate and departmental aims and policies 
and comply with any Council policy; 

 
(k)  Comply with Data Protection Legislation; 
 
(l)  Apply the Welsh Government approved approach as standard to 

Supplier selection;  
 
(m) Be procured in accordance with all procurement planning guidance 

issued by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 
 
 
2.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the Appropriate Chief Officer shall ensure that 

where the estimated Contract Value or amount of a proposed Contract (or 
series of Contracts) is likely to be equal to or to exceed the thresholds set 
by the Legal Requirements for Contracts, then the tendering procedures to 
be adopted must be in accordance with the  Regulations, and any statutory 
provision relating thereto. 

 
2.3 Contracts for the procurement of works, goods or services may be 

subdivided into lots where appropriate and in accordance with the 
Regulations but lots should not be used where the result would be the 
avoidance or effect the application of the Contract Procedure Rules.  

 
2.4 The procurement of goods, services and works shall not be artificially over 

estimated or under-estimated which would result in either the avoidance of 
the Contract Procedure Rules or which would affect the application of the 
Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
2.5 It shall be a condition of any contract between the Council and any person 

(not being an Officer of the Council) who is required to supervise a Contract 
on the Council’s behalf that, in relation to the Contract, they shall comply with 
the requirements of these Contract Procedure Rules and the Council's 
Financial Procedure Rules. 

 
2.6 The Monitoring Officer with the agreement of the Chief Finance Officer may 

issue procurement guidance or protocols, and all Chief Officers and any 
person who is required to supervise a Contract on behalf of the Council shall 
have due regard to any such guidance or protocol. 
 

2.7 The use of the Council’s in-house services and Internal Providers is not 
covered by or subject to these Contract Procedure Rules.  Any  contract 
subsequently let by the in-house services and Internal Providers  to sub-
contractors will be let in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
2.8 Any failure by officers to comply with any of the provisions of these Contract 

Procedure Rules or associated guidance adopted by the Council may result 
in disciplinary action.  

 
2.9 Appropriate authority must be in place before any procurement is carried 

out on behalf of the Council.  
 

Page 178



7 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

2.10 Any dispute regarding the interpretation of these Contract Procedure Rules 
shall be referred to the Chief Officer Legal, HR and Regulatory Services and 
Monitoring Officer for resolution in consultation with the Corporate 
Procurement Manager. 
 

2.11 These Contract Procedure Rules deal only with procurements conducted 
under the Regulations. Where a procurement is required to be conducted 
under the Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 and the Utilities Contracts 
Regulations 2016, authority must be sought from the Appropriate Body by 
way of an exemption to these Contract Procedure Rules in order to conduct 
such a procurement pursuant to Rule 3.1.7. 
 
 

 
 

3. EXEMPTIONS AND WAIVER 
 
Exemptions to the Contract Procedure Rules 
 
3.1 The Contract Procedure Rules do not apply to the  situations set out in 

Rules 3.1.1 to 3.1.7.  
 

3.1.1  For the acquisition or disposal of land, unless it involves a 
development agreement which would require a tender process.  

 
3.1.2 In the case of professional arrangements in accordance with 

Regulation 10 of the Regulations between the Councils Solicitor and 
Counsel or external Solicitors, the Chief Officer Legal, HR and 
Regulatory Services and Monitoring Officer will not be expected to 
comply with the requirements of this Rule when instructing and 
briefing Counsel or Solicitors. The Chief Officer Legal, HR and 
Regulatory Services and Monitoring Officer will make arrangements to 
ensure that a record is kept of all such instructions or briefs together 
with a record of Counsel’s/ Solicitors fees.  

 
 
3.1.3 For the carrying out of security works where the publication of 

documents in accordance with the tendering procedure could 
prejudice the security of the work to be done, provided the method of 
tendering has been approved by the Appropriate Body.  

 
3.1.4 Employment Contracts which make an individual a direct employee 

of the Council. 
 
3.1.5  Contracts between entities within the public sector as prescribed in 

 Regulation 12 of the Regulations, including those Contracts where 
Regulation 12 would be applicable if the Contract Value was not below 
the financial thresholds specified in or by the Regulations, provided the 
arrangement has been approved by the Appropriate Body. 

 
3.1.6  In an emergency situation in which injury or damage to persons or 

property is threatened in which case the Appropriate Chief Officer may 

Page 179



8 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

take any necessary action but must report the circumstances and the 
action taken to the next meeting of the Appropriate Body. 

 
3.1.7 Where a procurement is required to be conducted under the 

Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 or the Utilities Contracts 
Regulations 2016, provided the use of the Concession Contracts 
Regulations 2016 or the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016 has 
been approved by the Appropriate Body. 

 
Waivers 
 
3.2 Waiver from obtaining quotations or tendering will only apply to the criteria 

listed in Rules 3.2.1 to 3.2.12 below and any waiver must be obtained, either: 
 

(a)  in respect of any new Contract from the Appropriate Body where the value of 
the Contract exceeds £100,000; or  

 
(b)  in respect of any new Contract in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of 

Delegation of Functions where the value of the Contract does not exceed 
£100,000. 
 

 
3.2.1 Where no quotes or tenders have been received in response to the 

Council’s procedure for obtaining competitive offers. This is to 
include the open procedure, restricted procedure, competitive 
dialogue, competitive procedure with negotiation, innovative 
partnerships procedures where procurement falls within the scope of 
the Regulations. 

 
3.2.2 The Contract involved is purely for the purpose of research, 

experiment, study or development under the conditions stated in the 
Regulations.  

 
3.2.3 The works/goods/services can be provided only by a particular 

economic operator for any of the following reasons:— 
 

(i) the aim of the procurement is the creation or acquisition of a 
unique work of art or artistic performance, 

(ii) competition is absent for technical reasons, 
(iii) the protection of exclusive rights, including intellectual 

property rights, 
 

but only, in the case of paragraphs (ii) and (iii), where no reasonable 
alternative or substitute exists and the absence of competition is not 
the result of an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the 
procurement. 

 
3.2.4 Extreme urgency brought about by events unforeseeable by the 

Council and in accordance with the strict conditions contained in the 
Regulations. 

 

Page 180



9 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

3.2.5 New works/services, constituting a repetition of existing 
works/services and ordered in accordance with the strict conditions 
contained in the Regulations, subject to approval in accordance with 
Rule 3.5 

 
3.2.6 A Contract awarded to the successful tenderer or one of them after a 

design contest. 
 
3.2.7 For supplies quoted and purchased on a commodity market. 
 
3.2.8 For the purchase of supplies on particularly advantageous terms 

from a Supplier which is definitely winding up its business activities, 
or from the receivers or liquidators of an insolvency, bankruptcy, an 
arrangement with creditors or a similar procedure.  

 
3.2.9 In the case of Contracts for services entered into in pursuance of 

powers under the National Health Service and Community Care Act 
1990, the Children Act 1989, Children’s (Leaving Care) Act 2000 and 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 for the benefit of an 
individual client, the Corporate Director Social Services and 
Wellbeing, insofar as it is consistent with the law, will make 
appropriate arrangements for provision. 

 
3.2.10 Where a tendering procedure is prescribed by legislation. 
 
3.2.11 Contracts which can only be performed by a statutory undertaker. 
 
3.2.12 Where goods, services and works are procured by another public 

body on behalf of the Council or through collaborative arrangements 
awarded via the National Procurement Service or the Regional 
Delivery Group or by the Council through a Contract properly let by 
another such organisation, then those organisations Procurement / 
Contract Procedure Rules will apply subject to compliance with 
European Union and Procurement Law of England and Wales. 

 
 
Modifications to existing Contracts and Framework Agreements 

 
3.3.  Contracts and frameworks agreements may be modified without the 

requirement for a new procurement procedure in accordance with Rules 
3.3.1 to Rules 3.3.6: 
 
3.3.1  Where the modifications in a Contract or Framework Agreement have 

been provided for in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise 
and unequivocal review clauses, which may include price revision 
clauses or options, provided that such clauses: 

 
(a)   state the scope and nature of possible modifications or options 

as well as the conditions under which they may be used, and 
 
(b)   do not provide for modifications or options that would alter the 

overall nature of the Contract or the Framework Agreement; 

Page 181



10 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

 
 

3.3.2 Subject to Rule 3. 4 and Rule 3.5 where the modification(s) in a 
Contract or Framework Agreement is for additional works, services or 
supplies by the original Contractor that have become necessary and 
were not included in the initial procurement, and where a change of 
Contractor: 

 
(i)   cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such as 

requirements of interchangeability or interoperability with 
existing equipment, services or installations procured under the 
initial procurement, and 

 
(ii)   would cause significant inconvenience or substantial 

duplication of costs for the Council, 
 
provided that any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value 
of the original Contract; 

 
For the purpose of the calculation of the price the updated figure shall 
be the reference figure when the Contract includes an indexation 
clause. 

 
3.3.3   Where all of the following conditions are fulfilled: 
 

(i)   the need for modification has been brought about by 
circumstances which the Council having been duly diligent 
could not have foreseen; 
 

(ii)   the modification does not alter the overall nature of the 
Contract; 

 
(iii)  any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the 

original Contract or Framework Agreement. 
 

 
 For the purpose of the calculation of the price the updated figure shall 

be the reference figure when the Contract includes an indexation 
clause. 
 

3.3.4 Where a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had 
initially awarded the Contract as a consequence of: 

 
(i)   an unequivocal review clause or option in conformity with Rule 

3.3.1, or 
 
(ii)   universal or partial succession into the position of the initial 

Contractor, following corporate restructuring, including 
takeover, merger, acquisition or insolvency, of another 
economic operator that fulfils the criteria for qualitative 
selection initially established, provided that this does not entail 

Page 182



11 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

other substantial modifications to the Contract and is not aimed 
at circumventing the application of the Regulations. 

 
 

3.3.5 Where the modifications, irrespective of their value, are not substantial. 
A modification shall be considered substantial where one or more of 
the following conditions is met: 
 

(i.) the modification renders the Contract or the Framework 
Agreement materially different in character from the one initially 
concluded; or 
 

(ii.) the modification introduces conditions which, had they been part 
of the initial procurement procedure, would have— 

 
(a) allowed for the admission of other candidates than those 

initially selected, 
 
(b) allowed for the acceptance of a tender other than that 

originally accepted, or 
 
(c) attracted additional participants in the procurement 

procedure; 
 

(iii.)  the modification changes the economic balance of the Contract 
or the Framework Agreement in favour of the Contractor in a 
manner which was not provided for in the initial Contract or 
Framework Agreement; 
 

(iv.) the modification extends the scope of the Contract or 
Framework Agreement considerably; 

 
(v.) a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Contracting 

authority had initially awarded the Contract in cases other than 
those provided for in Rule 3.3.4 

 
3.3.6 Where the value of the modification is below both of the following 

values:— 
 

(i) the relevant applicable financial thresholds contained in the 
Regulations, and 

 
(ii) 10% of the initial Contract Value for service and supply 

Contracts and 15% of the initial Contract Value for works 
Contracts, 

 
provided that the modification does not alter the overall nature of the 
Contract or Framework Agreement. 
 
Where several successive modifications are made, the value shall be 
the net cumulative value of the successive modifications and the 

Page 183



12 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

updated figure shall be the reference figure when the Contract includes 
an indexation clause. 

 
3.4 Where several successive modifications are made:— 
 

(a)   the limitations imposed by the proviso at the end of Rule 3.3.2 and 
by Rule 3.3.3 (iii) shall apply to the value of each modification; and 

 
(b)   such successive modifications shall not be aimed at circumventing 

the Regulations. 
  

 
3.5 Where the Council has modified a Contract in accordance with Rule 3.3.2 or 

Rule 3.3.3 the Council is required to send a notice to that effect, in 
accordance with Regulation 51 of the Regulations  for publication. Such a 
notice shall contain the information set out in Regulation 72.4 of the 
Regulations. 

 
3.6 Approval to any modification of an existing Contract or Framework Agreement 

must be obtained, either: 
 

(a)  from the Appropriate Body where the value of the modification of a 
Contract or Framework Agreement exceeds £100,000; or  

 
(b)  in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of 

Functions where the value of the modification of a Contract or 
Framework Agreement does not exceed £100,000. 

 
 

Notification of Waiver and Modification 
 
3.7  If the Appropriate Chief Officer is seeking from the Appropriate Body a 

waiver from the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules under Rule 3.2 or a 
modification to an existing Contract or Framework Agreement under Rule 
3.3, the report to the Appropriate Body shall set out the reason for requiring 
the waiver  or modification and the Contract Procedure Rule(s) from which 
the waiver or modification is required.  The report shall include a legal and 
financial statement and shall highlight any future commitments (whether or not 
of a financial character) which the proposed Contract might entail. 

 
3.8  Where the value of any waiver or modification does not exceed £100,000, 

the reasons for requiring the waiver or modification must be approved by 
the Corporate Procurement Manager, and recorded in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation of Functions. 

 
3.9  Where a waiver is sought by the Appropriate  Chief Officer in respect of 

obtaining quotations or tendering, the report to the Appropriate Body or 
record of the decision under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of 
Functions shall in addition to the requirements of Rules 3.7 and 3.8 justify 
the use of an alternative method of selection so that propriety, value for 
money and compliance with Legal requirements can be demonstrated.   
 

Page 184



13 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

3.10  Purchasing arrangements made for the Council by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager do not constitute exceptions as such, because they 
are made under the full provisions of these Rules.  

 
3.11  Correct use of these arrangements, as advised by the Corporate 

Procurement Manager will be sufficient to ensure officers meet their 
responsibilities for compliance. Such arrangements are mandatory and 
include, but are not limited to: 

 
3.11.1 Purchasing Frameworks endorsed for use by the Council, where 

items are specified and costed and the option of a Direct Award has 
been provided for.i.e., no requirement to undertake a further mini 
competition. 

 
3.11.2 Collaborative procurement arrangements undertaken by, or in 

consultation with the Corporate  Procurement Manager. 
 
3.11.3 Electronic systems and catalogues endorsed for use by the Council 

in procurement. 
 
 
3.12    The Appropriate Chief Officer must ascertain whether there is a Framework 

Agreement approved by the Corporate Procurement Manager for use by 
the Council. Where a Framework Agreement is available, it must be used in 
accordance with the guidance provided by the Corporate Procurement 
Manager. 

 
3.13    Any joint procurement arrangements with other local authorities and or 

public sector bodies including membership or use of any consortia must be 
approved by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 

 
3.14  Established framework and consortia arrangements endorsed by the 

Corporate Procurement Manager for use by the Council shall be mandatory 
except where there is an applicable waiver or exemption, a copy of which 
shall be sent to the Corporate Procurement Manager.  

 
3.15     Contracts to be awarded on the basis of a Framework Agreement must be in 

conformity with the Regulations. Where it is necessary to run a further mini 
competition, any subsequent mini-competition must be in accordance with the 
terms of the original Framework Agreement (except for the requirement to 
advertise and those stages in the procurement that are not applicable to a 
framework). 

 
3.16   These Contract Procedure Rules do not apply to Contracts let by school or 

college governing bodies acting in accordance with their approved schemes 
of delegation or contract procedure rules. 

 
 
4.      Delegated Authority to Enter into Contracts  
 
4.1  Each Chief Officer has been allocated the following functions under Scheme 

B2 of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions (Functions delegated 

Page 185



14 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

to Chief Officers without consultation and call-in) which shall be exercised 
where any proposed Contract administered by their Directorate/Office has an 
estimated value not exceeding £1,000,000.00: 

 
(a)    To authorise the invitation of tenders; 
 
(b)   To accept the Most Economically Advantageous Tender received and 

enter into a Contract and any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract.  

 
. 

  
4.2 Each  Cabinet Member has been allocated the following functions under 

Scheme A of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions  (Cabinet 
Functions delegated to Individual Cabinet Members) which shall be exercised 
where any  proposed Contract falling within the Cabinet Member’s portfolio 
has an estimated value exceeding £1,000,000.00 but not exceeding 
£5,000,000.00: 

 
 (a)   To authorise the invitation of tenders; 
 

(b) To accept the Most Economically Advantageous Tender received and 
enter into a Contract and any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract. 

 
 
 
4.3 Where the estimated value of any proposed Contract exceeds £5,000.00.00, 

the authority to do any of the following shall be sought from the Appropriate 
Body: 

 
(a) To authorise the invitation of tenders; 

 
(b) To accept the Most Economically Advantageous Tender received and 

enter into a Contract and any further deeds and documents which are 
supplemental to the Contract. 

 
 

 
5.  Declaration of Interest 
 
5.1  No member, employee or agent of the Council shall improperly use their 

position to obtain any personal or private benefit from any procurement 
entered into by the Council. 

 
5.2  Members and employees of the Council shall comply with the requirements 

of Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Bribery Act 2010, 
and the Officers and Members code of conduct set out in the Constitution in 
respect of the declaration of interests in Contracts with the Council.   

 
5.3  Such interests must be declared to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion in the 

appropriate registers 

Page 186



15 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

 
5.4  Officers must complete a conflict of interest form and declaration of interest 

form prior to participating in any tender exercise and a copy can be found 
on the Corporate Procurement Page. 

 
  6.    Selective Tendering, Invitation of Tenders and Quotations 

 
6.1 Subject to any overriding Legislative Requirements, all procurements shall be 

invited in accordance with either Rules 7, 8 or 9. 
 
6.2 The appropriate service budget holder shall prepare the relevant part of the 

Pre-tender Client Information Sheet for all invitations to tender and 
quotations and submit that to the Corporate Procurement Manager for 
approval. 

 
6.3 A record of tenders and quotations shall be maintained by the Chief Officer 

Legal, HR and Regulatory Services and Monitoring Officer, on the Corporate 
Contracts Register. 

  
6.4 In the case of procurements that are required to be undertaken in 

accordance with the Regulations, the advice of the Corporate Procurement 
Manager must be sought at the outset and at all subsequent stages of the 
procurement process, and the Pre-Tender Client Information Sheet must be 
completed.  The Regulations  will take precedence over the Contract 
Procedure Rules.   

 
6.5     The value of a procurement means the estimated total monetary value over 

its full duration, including any extension options. Where there is no fixed 
term for the Contract, the value of the Contract shall be taken to be the 
estimated value of the Contract over a period of four years. No procurement 
may be artificially split to avoid compliance with these Contract Procedure 
Rules and Legal Requirements. This Rule shall, however, not be construed 
as to avoid the requirements relating to “lots” under the Regulations. 

 
6.6    For works Contracts all Contractors must be registered and verified on 

Constructionline. Constructionline show the Contractors and categories 
which have been pre-assessed with a recommended contract value. The 
recommended contract value is based on a financial risk assessment and is 
the maximum limit of work that must be placed with a Contractor without 
additional safeguards. 

 
6.7     The basis of selection for companies on Constructionline shall be by way of 

rotation and/or the suitability of Contractors to undertake the project. 
Reasons for such choice must be recorded 

 
Quotations 
 
6.8 The invitation to submit quotations must include the specification, terms and 
 conditions and evaluation criteria/weightings. 

 

Page 187



16 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

6.9  A reasonable time must be allowed for Suppliers to return bids. Unless 
 otherwise dictated by urgency, a minimum time period of not less than 14 
days must be allowed for the return of quotations.  

 
6.10    In accordance with the requirements of the Scheme of Delegation of 

Functions a record shall be kept by the Appropriate Chief Officer in the 
prescribed form.In any case in which at least three alternative written offers or 
quotations were not obtained, the Appropriate Chief Officer shall record the 
reasons why it was considered impracticable to do so. This should then be 
recorded on the Corporate Contracts Register. 

 
 
Tenders 
 
6.11 All of the invitation to tender documentation, including specification, 

evaluation criteria/weightings, must be approved by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager. 

 
6.12 A minimum time period of not less than 14 days must be allowed for the 

return of tenders, except where the tender is subject to the Regulations  in 
which case the time periods specified in the Regulations are applicable. 

 
6.13 For all Contracts the Council must consider how what is proposed to be 

procured might improve the economic, social and environmental and 
cultural well-being of the area and how, in conducting the procurement 
process, it might act with a view to securing that improvement. The Council 
must consider the sustainable development principles and the well-being 
objectives that the Council has adoped in accordance with the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  Guidance on delivering social value 
through procurement is available on the Corporate Procurement Page on 
the Intranet.   

 
6.14 Where appropriate the Council will need to include Community Benefits 

clauses to maximise the benefits that such clauses can bring. Where 
Community Benefits are included in any tender issued by the Council, this 
must be mentioned in the tender advertisement, indicating whether they are 
Core or Non-Core. 
 

6.15 Every written Contract shall include clauses in a form approved by the 
Monitoring Officer relating to the following matters as a minimum.   

 
 6.15.1 Data Protection; 
 6.15.2 Freedom of Information; 
 6.15.3 Modern Slavery; 
 6.15.4 Bribery and Corruption; 
 6.15.5 Equalities and Human Rights; 
 6.15.6 Welsh Language Standards; 

6.15.7 Audit. 
 
 Template provisions for the aforementioned matters can be found on the 

Corporate Procurement Page on the Intranet.  
 

Page 188



17 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

6.16 Where a relevant specification issued by the British Standards Institution is 
current at the date of the tender all Council specificationsshall require as a 
minimum that the goods and materials used in the execution of the Contract 
shall be in accordance with that specification or an equivalent. 

 
6.17 The Council is a signatory to the UK Steel Charter. The Appropriate Chief 

Officer must consider whether fulfilment of any of the steps contained within 
the Charter are applicable to the Contract being procured and if so liaise with 
the Corporate Procurement Manager to ensure that appropriate provisions 
are contained within the procurement documents. A copy of the UK Steel 
Charter can be found on the Corporate Procurement Intranet page. 

 
6.18 The Council is a signatory to the Welsh Government Code of Practice – 

Ethical Employment in the Supply Chain. The Appropriate Chief Officer must
 ensure that employment practices are considered as part of the procurement 
process and liaise with the Corporate Procurement Manager to ensure that 
appropriate provisions are contained within the procurement documents. A 
copy of the Welsh Government Code of Practice – Ethical Employment in the 
Supply Chain can be found on the Corporate Procurement Intranet page. 

 
6.19 The Council has adopted the principles contained within the Welsh 

Government Policy on Project Bank Accounts. The Appropriate Chief Officer 
must consider whether payment through a project bank account (PBA) is 
appropriate for any construction or infrastructure Contract (or other Contract 
with a significant sub-contracting supply chain) of over 6 months duration and 
valued at £2 million or more and where there are sub-contracting opportunities 
valued at 1% or more of the contract value. The use of payment through a 
PBA for such Contracts will be required unless there are compelling reasons 
not to do so. The use of payment through a PBA must be applied to all 
construction and infrastructure projects and any other appropriate contracts 
valued at £2m or more which are part or fully funded by Welsh Government 
where the terms of such funding require a PBA to be applied. 

 
 
7.       Thresholds and Advertising Requirements 
 
7.1 Thresholds for procurement do not apply to existing Framework 

Agreements endorsed for use by the Council.   

7.2 Thresholds for all goods & services (except works Contracts) and 
advertising requirements are as follows and are set out in the Summary of 
Advertising (a copy of which can be found on the Corporate Procurement 
Page): 

 
7.2.1 Up to £5,000 it is necessary only to demonstrate that value for 

money is being achieved, unless any grant funding conditions dictate 
otherwise. 

 
7.2.2 Over £5,000 to £25,000 Minimum of 3 quotes to be requested from 

businesses preferably registered on Sell2Wales, unless any grant 
funding conditions dictate otherwise. All quotes must be conducted 
electronically. 

Page 189



18 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

   
7.2.3 Over £25,000 to £100,000 all requirements to be openly advertised 

on Sell2Wales where practical and providing it represents best value 
for money.  A minimum of three quotations must be invited when 
following a restricted procedure or when an advert has not been 
issued, unless any grant funding conditions dictate otherwise. All 
quotes must be conducted electronically. 

 
7.2.4 Over £100,000 to the Regulations thresholds, requirements must be 

tendered, and advertised on Sell2Wales (as a minimum).  Where the 
restricted procedure is used a minimum of five tenders must be 
invited, unless any grant funding conditions dictate otherwise. All 
tenders must be conducted electronically. 

 
7.2.5 Above the Regulations threshold, requirements must be tendered 

and advertised on Find a Tender, together with such other 
advertising as directed by the Corporate Procurement Manager. All 
tenders must be conducted electronically. 

 
7.3 Thresholds for Works Contracts and advertising requirements are as follows 

and are set out in the Summary of Advertising (a copy of which can be 
found on the Corporate Procurement Page):  

 
7.3.1 Contract Up to £5,000 it is necessary only to demonstrate that value 

for money is being achieved, using contractors with Safety Schemes 
in Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline unless any Grant conditions dictate otherwise. 

 
7.3.2 Over £5,000 to £25,000 quotations are to be requested from a 

minimum of three prospective Tenderers with Safety Schemes in 
Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline, unless any grant conditions dictate otherwise. 
Where the minimum number of Tenderers required through 
Constructionline are not available, the Corporate Procurement Unit 
will put an advertisement on Sell2Wales for the requirement. All 
quotes must be conducted electronically. 
 

7.3.3 Over £25,000 to £250,000 quotations are to be requested from a 
minimum of five prospective Tenderers with Safety Schemes in 
Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline, ./ the minimum number of Tenderers required 
through Constructionline are not available, the Corporate 
Procurement Unit will put an advertisement on Sell2Wales for the 
requirement. All quotes must be conducted electronically. 

 
7.3.4 Over £250,000 to the Regulations thresholds requirements must be 

tendered and advertised on Sell2Wales, unless any grant funding 
conditions dictate otherwise. All tenders must be conducted 
electronically. 
 

7.3.5 Above the Regulations thresholds, requirements must be tendered 
and advertised on Find a Tender, together with such other 

Page 190



19 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

advertising as directed by the Corporate Procurement Manager. All 
tenders must be conducted electronically. 
 

7.4 Where it is considered appropriate to use additional advertising e.g. 
specialist requirements, they should be placed in one or more of the 
following:  

 
 A local newspaper. 
 Trade Journal. 

 
7.5 Where additional advertisements have been placed as outlined in Rule 7.4 

the advertisement shall: 
 

 Specify details of the Contract into which the Council wishes to enter. 
 Invite persons or bodies interested to apply for permission to tender. 
 Specify a time limit of not less than 14 days within which such 

applications or tenders are to be received by the Council, except 
where legislation or funding conditions dictates a different time 
period. Indicate the criteria and weighting to be used to select 
Tenderer and award the Contract, unless this is specified in the ITT.  
 

8.   Pre-Tender Market Research and Consultation  
 
8.1 The Council may conduct market consultation prior to the issue of any 

Tender. This may involve seeking or accepting advice from the market. This 
advice can be used in the planning and conducting of the procurement 
process as long as it does not distort competition or violate the principles of 
non-discrimination and transparency. 

       
9.       Procurement by Consultants 
 
9.1 Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any 

procurement, then the Appropriate Chief Officer shall ensure that the 
consultants carry out any procurement in accordance with these Contract 
Procedure Rules. 

 
9.2 All decisions must be made in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of 

Delegation of Functions. 
 
9.3 No consultant shall make any decision on whether to award a Contract or 

who a Contract should be awarded to. The Appropriate Chief Officer shall 
ensure that the consultant’s performance in relation to procurement is in 
accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules and legislation. 

 
9.4 Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any 

procurement the consultant must declare any potential conflict of interest 
that may arise to the relevant Appropriate Chief Officer prior to the 
commencement of the procurement process or at such time that the 
Contractor becomes aware of such a potential conflict of interest. 
 

Page 191



20 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

9.5 Where the Appropriate Chief Officer considers that such a conflict of 
interest is significant the consultant shall not be allowed to participate in the 
procurement process. 

 
10. Other Procurement Procedures 
 
10.1 The use of the negotiated procedure without prior publication, innovative 

partnerships, competitive procedure with negotiation and competitive dialogue 
as defined in the Regulations, can only be used in exceptional circumstances 
as directed by the Chief Finance Officer and with prior consultation with  the 
appropriate Cabinet Member and the Monitoring Officer. 

 
10.2 The use of reserved, concessionary contracts and dynamic purchasing 

systems may only be used following consultation and prior approval by the 
Corporate Procurement Manager.  

 

11. Naming Products Sub-Contractors and Suppliers 
 
11.1 The principle of non-discriminatory and equal treatment is undermined by 

the naming of products, Suppliers or sub-Contractors.  Equivalents are 
nearly always able to be specifiedand will be advertised with the wording “or 
equivalent” where possible. 

11.2 Where the Council has determined that a particular type of product or 
provision of service will be stipulated as an essential requirement of a 
Contract then this must be approved by the Appropriate Chief Officer 
following consultation with the Corporate Procurement Manager.   

12.      Electronic Tendering 
 

12.1 An electronic quote and tender facility now supersedes the use of paper 
tenders in line with the Regulations.  All electronic quotes and tenders must 
be issued using a portal approved by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 
All relevant staff must be fully trained in the use of the system and set up to 
use the facility by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 
 

12.2 For all quotes and tenders issued, the awarded Contract must be uploaded to 
the Corporate Contracts Register on the approved portal. 

 
12.3 An advertisement must be placed in accordance with Rule 7. Any advert 

placed on sell2wales must alert prospective bidders to the requirement and 
the need to register on the approved etenderwales portal. The advert should 
state that bidders must have JAVA to access the etenderwales portal and 
respond electronically. 

 
12.4 All correspondence between the Council and bidders must be concluded via 

the approved portal to maintain a defined audit trail. Under no circumstances 
must email correspondence outside the portal be used. Any verbal 
communication specific to the quote or tender must only be communicated 
through the relevant category specialist and must be confirmed via the portal. 
All clarification questions must be broadcast to all prospective bidders, where 
applicable i.e. not commercially sensitive. 

Page 192



21 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

 
12.5 The requirements for the submissions of bids must be set out in the Invitation 

to Tender (ITT) document issued to bidders via the portal. This will specify the 
return date and time, which will normally be 12 noon on the agreed date. The 
time and date when bidders upload their completed documents onto the 
system is recorded and forms part of an audit record.  

 
12.6  Any late bids submitted will be recorded by the system and must be 

disqualified. A report will be required from the system administrator of the 
portal that there has been no system malfunction if a bidder challenges the 
disqualification. 

 
12.7 Tenders must be opened electronically in accordance with Rule 14.  
 

 13.     Submission and Custody of Tenders and Quotations 
 
13.1 Where tenders are invited in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules 

or otherwise as determined by the Appropriate Body, the requirements for 
submission of tenders shall be set out in the invitation to tender document.  

 
13.2 Electronic tenders and quotes are held in the approved portal and are 

inaccessible until the specified closing date and time. 
      
14.  Opening of Electronic Tenders 
 
14.1 Quotations or tenders for requirements having an estimated value or amount 

of £5,000 and not exceeding £100,000 shall be opened via the approved 
portal at the same time in the presence of one officer from the corporate 
procurement team, this is to include the technical and commercial envelope. 

 
14.2 Tenders for Contracts having an estimated value or amount over £100,000 

and not exceeding £1,000,000 shall be opened at the same time in the 
presence of two officers, one designated by the Monitoring Officer and the 
other an officer from the corporate procurement team, this is to include the 
technical and commercial envelope. 

 
  
14.3 Tenders, including the technical and commercial envelope,  having an 

aggregated estimated value or amount exceeding £1,000,000 shall be 
opened at the same time in the presence of the Monitoring Officer or 
their nominated representative and  Two further officers usually an 
officer from Democratic Services and an officer from the corporate 
procurement team. 

 
14.4 All tenders opened in accordance with rule 14 shall include the Technical and 

Commercial envelope within the approved portal. 
 
14.5 A record shall be kept of all tenders and quotations  received through the 

approved portal approved by the Monitoring Officer, including any reasons for 
disqualification. 

 
15.  Amendment of Tenders 

Page 193



22 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

 
15.1 If an error is identified in the invitation to tender documentation before the 

closing date for the return of tenders, all Tenderers shall be appraised of the 
error and invited to adjust their tenders. 

 
15.2 If an error in the invitation to tender documentation is identified after the 

closing date for the return of tenders, but prior to opening of tenders, all 
Tenderers shall be given details of the error and afforded the opportunity of 
withdrawing the tender or submitting an amended tender. 

 
15.3 Except as provided in this Rule 15, a tender may not be amended by the 

Tenderer after it has been received unless examination of it reveals errors or 
discrepancies which would affect the tender figure in an otherwise successful 
tender, in which case:  

 
15.3.1 If the error is not arithmetical the Tenderer shall be given details of 

the error(s) and shall be given the opportunity of confirming without 
amendment or withdrawing the tender, or  

 
15.3.2 If the error is arithmetical the Appropriate Chief Officer shall correct 

the error(s) provided that, apart from these genuine arithmetic 
error(s), no other adjustment revision or qualification is permitted. 

 
16.  Post-Tender Negotiation and Clarification 
 
16.1 Where procurement is conducted pursuant to the Regulations through 

either the open, restricted, innovative partnerships or competitive dialogue 
procedures, no post-tender negotiations are permitted. Any negotiation in 
respect of the competitive procedure with negotiation must comply with the 
requirements of the Regulations.   

 
16.2 The responsible officer may seek clarification from tenderers where 

appropriate in consultation with the Corporate Procurement Manager.  
  
16.3 Where procurements do not exceed the Regulations thresholds the 

Appropriate Chief Officer may authorise negotiations in exceptional 
circumstances, following the opening of tenders and before acceptance, 
subject to compliance with any legislative requirements, and only when: 

 
(a) Amendments have been made to any relevant specification since the 

invitation of tenders, which could not have been foreseen at the 
invitation stage, or 
 

(b) The volume of goods, works or services required by the Council has       
 substantially increased or decreased since the invitation of tenders, or 
 

(c) Only one tender has been received, or 
 

(d) Tender prices exceed financial targets predetermined by the Council,  
 the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee,  
 

Page 194



23 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

 In all instances, the possibility of such negotiations must have been indicated 
in the invitation to tender. 

 
16.4 Negotiations shall be conducted in a manner which treats all Tenderers 

equally and is non-discriminatory and transparent at all times during the 
procurement process, and a full record of the negotiations shall be made by 
the Appropriate Chief Officer which shall include the names of the officers 
involved, minutes of all meetings and copies of all relevant correspondence 
and other documents. 

 
17.  Evaluation of Tenders 
 
17.1 The Appropriate Chief Officer shall examine tenders in accordance with 

predetermined evaluation criteria.  
 
17.2 In respect of all tenders the tender criteria shall be Most Economically 

Advantageous Tender (which can be the lowest/highest price only where 
appropriate) and the evaluation criteria shall as a minimum be listed in the 
Invitation To Tender documentation in order of importance. Any particular 
scoring or weighting attributable to any criteria and sub-criteria must be clearly 
stated. In addition, the criteria must be strictly observed and remain 
unchanged at all times throughout the Contract award procedure.  

 
18. Acceptance and Award of Tenders 
 
18.1 A Contract shall only be awarded subject to the tender evaluation criteria 

specified in the invitation to tender document.  
 
18.2 Tenders for Contracts having an estimated value exceeding £5,000,000 may 

be invited and accepted only by the Appropriate Body unless the power to do 
so has been specifically allocated or delegated to the appropriate Cabinet 
Member or Appropriate Chief Officer.  

 
18.3 No tender relating to a Contract to which Sections 2 to 9 of the Local 

Government (Contracts) Act 1997 apply, shall be accepted without the 
approval of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
18.4 Before a tender is accepted other than for the sale of goods the Appropriate 

Chief Officer must obtain the Chief Finance Officer's confirmation that the 
Tenderer's financial standing is satisfactory, unless the Tenderer has already 
been approved using the  prequalification of the tender process. 

 
18.5 The award of any Contract shall be in accordance with the Regulations and 

any other Legal Requirements. 
 
18.6 If the award of any Contract is subject to the Regulations then there shall be a 

standstill period of at least ten calendar days between the communication of 
the decision of the intention to award the Contract being notified to those 
parties who were selected to tender, or who applied to be selected to tender, 
and the entering into of that Contract. 

 

Page 195



24 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

18.7 Standstill letters issued as part of a tender process under the Regulations 
must not be issued prior to confirmation of award in accordance with the 
Council’s constitution. 

 
18.8 Feedback to unsuccessful tenderers must be included in the standstill 

letters and must include the characteristics and relative advantages of the 
tender selected. For Contracts subject to the Regulations, the requirements 
of the Regulations must also be complied with. 

 
18.9 Where a tender above the Regulations threshold has been tendered and 

advertised on Sell2Wales, the Council shall publish a Contract Award 
Notice on Sell2Wales which will also be included on Find a Tender, as soon 
as possible after the decision to award and in any event no later than 30 
calendar days after the date of award of the Contract. 

 
18.10 All correspondence notifying evaluation outcomes must be communicated 

through the approved portal 
 
19. Letters of Intent 
 
19.1 Letters of Intent shall only be used with the agreement of the Chief Officer 

Legal, HR and Regulatory Services and Monitoring Officer and only in very 
exceptional circumstances.   

 
19.2 Where the terms and conditions of the Contract are not fully agreed no 

Contractor shall be allowed on site to begin preliminary works until a full risk 
assessment has been carried out by the Appropriate Chief Officer as to 
possible implications to the Council by the Contractor being allowed to start on 
site before the Contract terms and conditions have been finalised.  

 
20.  Execution of Contracts 
 
20.1 Every Contract not exceeding £500,000 in amount or value shall be in writing 

in a form approved by the Monitoring Officer such form being the Form of 
Tender. However the Form of Tender should not be used in the following 
situations and a formal Contract must be entered into: 

 
            (a)  where the appropriate Directorate has assessed the level of risk 

associated with the Contract and it deems the level of risk to be high; or 
 
            (b)  where the Contract must be executed under seal. 

 
 The Form of Tender  must be issued as part of the tender and must be 

signed and returned by the bidder. On contract award the signed Form of 
Tender must be issued with the award letter, signed by either the 
Appropriate Chief Officer of the Monitoring Officer, or another officer 
authorised in writing to sign on behalf of the Appropriate Chief Officer or the 
Monitoring Officer. Both Parties are to keep a signed Form of Tender. 

 
20.2 Every Contract, including frameworks which exceeds £500,000 in amount or 

value shall be referred to the Solicitor for the Council for approval. 
 

Page 196



25 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

20.3 Contracts in writing or official orders not exceeding £500,000 in amount or 
value may be signed either by the Appropriate Chief Officer or by an officer 
in writing authorised to approve on behalf of the Appropriate Chief Officer.  

 
20.4 Every Contract for Works (other than Framework Agreements ) exceeding 

£1,000,000 shall require a performance bond and for Contracts below this 
limit the Appropriate Chief Officer shall determine the necessity for a 
Performance Bond based on an assessment of risk for that Contract. A 
Surety shall be approved by the Chief Finance Officer. 

 
20.5 A risk assessment shall be conducted for all service Contracts to determine 

the necessity for a performance bond. The approval of the Chief Finance 
Officer is required where a performance bond is not deemed necessary for 
service Contracts in excess of £1,000,000 in value. 

 
20.6 Contracts not exceeding £500,000 may be signed electronically except in 

the following situations: 
 

(a) where the appropriate Directorate has assessed the level of risk 
associated with the Contract and it deems the level of risk to be high; or 
 

(b) where the Contract must be executed under seal. 
            

The use of electronic signature must be in accordance with the procedure 
set down by the Corporate Procurement Manager.  

 
21.      Assignment and Novation 

 
21.1 Any Contract subject to potential assignment or  novation must be referred 

to the Monitoring Officer at the earliest possible instance. 
 

22.      Termination of Contracts 
 
22.1 For any Contract, or part thereof, exceeding £100,000 in value, early 

termination shall be approved by the Appropriate Chief Officer in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer and 
must be in accordance with the termination provisions set out in the 
Contract. Contracts of a lesser value may be terminated early by agreement 
prior to the expiry date or in accordance with the termination provisions set 
out in the Contract.  

 
23.  Financial Limits 
 

23.1 With the exception of the financial limit specified in Rule 20, which may be 
varied only by the Council, the financial limits specified in these Contract 
Procedure Rules or any of them may be varied at any time by the Chief 
Finance Officer in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, but any 
alterations shall be reported to the next meeting of the Council. 

 
24. Record and Document Retention and Control 

 

Page 197



26 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

24.1 A full report of all Contracts awarded should be written and kept 
electronically. (A checklist of what the report should contain can be found 
on the Corporate Procurement Page.) 

 
24.2 A full record of all documents used including the Delegated Power to invite 

and accept, any other internal approvals, should be scanned and uploaded 
into the approved portal or procurements ‘o’ drive against the specific 
Contract reference number. 

 
24.3 All Contracts under seal i.e. Deeds (inc. Tenders) must  be retained for a 

minimum of 12 years after the term of the Contract has expired. Contracts 
which have not been sealed must be retained for a minimum of 6 years 
after the term of the Contract has expired, unless a longer period is 
required by legislation or grant conditions. 

24.4 Unsuccessful tender and pre-qualifying documents which have been 
accepted for tender purposes will be retained for a minimum period of 2 
years after the start of the Contract within the approved portal. 

24.5 Any tender which is rejected or disqualified at the time of opening will be 
notified via the approved portal. 

24.6 All request for quotations must be retained for a minimum period of 2 
years after the term of the Contract has expired. 

24.7 Where Contracts are subject to the Regulations, they must also comply 
with the record, document retention and control requirements of the 
Regulations. 

25.         Contract Management 

25.1 A Contract must not start until the Contract has been signed or sealed by 
both parties and dated. Directorates must allow time for this in their 
forward work plan. 

 25.2 Within ten calendar days of the start of the Contract, the directorate must 
add the details of the Contract onto the Corporate Contracts Register and 
record all the required information within etender wales.  

These details must be maintained and updated as and when required to 
do so. Officers should contact the Corporate Procurement Manager if 
training is required.  

25.3 The Directorate shall be the Contract manager for the Contracts for which 
they are responsible for up to the Regulations threshold, but may 
authorise another officer to have day-to-day responsibility for managing 
the Contract.  For Contracts over the Regulations threshold, the 
directorate must appoint a dedicated Contract manager with appropriate 
skills and experience.   

25.4 The Contract manager is responsible for: 

(a)   Managing the Contract and ensuring that it is carried out in 
accordance with its terms and conditions; 

(b)  Monitoring the Contractor’s performance and carrying out mid-
Contract reviews to determine ongoing value for money; 

Page 198



27 

Version 0.1   April 2019 

(c)  Ensuring that the Contractor maintains the insurance policies 
required by the Contract; and 

(d)  Keeping a record of all payments, claims, monitoring, changes and 
certificates under the Contract. 

25.5 The Contract manager must consult the Monitoring Officer for 
consideration of the Council's legal position: 

(a)  Before any Contract is to be terminated or suspended;  or 

(b)  In the event of a claim for payment not clearly within the terms and 
conditions of Contract. 

 

26.      Corporate Contracts Register 

26.1  The Corporate Contracts Register is held within the approved portal and all 
quotations and tenders conducted must be created into a Contract. It is the 
responsibility of each Directorate to create and maintain their own Contracts 
within the portal. 

26.2 It is the responsibility of each Directorate to update the register following a 
quotation or tender process within the approved portal. 

26.3 Any officer that requires training must contact the corporate procurement 
unit.  

27.    Review and Amendment of Contract Procedure Rules 

27.1 The Corporate Procurement Manager shall continually review these 
Contract Procedure Rules and shall undertake a formal review at least 
every three years. 

 
27.2 With the exception of Rule 23.1 the Monitoring Officer shall have authority to 

make alterations of a minor nature or such as are required to be enacted 
immediately to ensure compliance with statutory obligations.  Any minor 
changes will be reported to the next meeting of the Council. 

 
 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Model Cyflenwi Gwasanaethau yn y Dyfodol
	5 Diweddariad Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2022-23 i 2025-26
	6 Darpariaeth Gwasanaeth Camddefnyddio Sylweddau ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr
	7 Gweithredu Rhaglen Trawsnewid Trefi (TT) 2021-2022
	8 Newyddiad Contract Menter Ymchwil Busnesau Bach
	9 Moderneiddio Ysgolion Model Buddsoddi Cydfuddiannol a Thir Yn Plas Morlais
	10 Moderneiddio Ysgolion - Ysgol Eginblanhigion Canolig Cymraeg Porthcawl
	11 Atal Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract y Cyngor a Dyfarnu Contract ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth Rhieni
	Appendix 1 Milestones - v1.0

	12 Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg
	Appendix 1 Cabinet WESP 140921 v1.0

	13 Penodi Llywodraethwyr Awdurdod Lleol
	14 Strategaeth Gaffael
	Appendix 1 Bridgend Procurement Strategy - Final - Signed Off 3.2 (230821)
	Appendix 2 Modern Slavery Statement 0.3 03092021

	15 Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contract Diwygiedig
	Clean version of CPRs - 08.09.2021


